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PRESS:

Akaku: Maui Community Television, Inc.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is
now in session. Today is April 26...27, 2010, and the time is 9:03 a.m. Good
morning, Members. At this time, the Chair would like to recognize the Members
that are here this morning. We do have Member Baisa -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --good morning. Member Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Medeiros. Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aloha and good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Excused at this time are Members Molina and
Member Johnson. From the Administration, we do have the Budget Director,
Mr. Pablo, our First Deputy Corporation Counsel, Traci Fujita Villarosa. As
always supporting the Committee is our Legislative Analysts, Ms. Revels and
Mr. Kaneshina, and our Secretary, Ms. Bouthillier
ITEM NO. 1: PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2011 FOR THE
COUNTY OF MAUI (CC 10-27, CC 10-61, CC 10-68)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, yesterday you, we made the first pass on the Budget
for Fiscal Year 2011, but before we go into deliberations, we do have people
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signed up for public testimony. For those of you that are providing public
testimony this morning, you have three minutes to provide your testimony. After
two minutes, the clerk, not clerk, but Staff will notify you that two minutes has
gone by and you have one minute to conclude. If everyone in the Chambers could
turn off their cell phone or put it on the silent mode. And for those of you that are
providing public testimony this morning, you have, when you come up to the
podium, give us your name and the organization that you represent. We will, we
would appreciate that. So, at this time, the Chair would like to call on the first
public testifier, Chief Jeff Murray, followed by Marty McMahon.

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
MR. MURRAY: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning, Chief.
MR. MURRAY: I'd like to clarify some of the items on Exhibit 1, that was the Chair's
proposal if you may, Page 10, that covers the Department of Fire and Public
Safety. First of all, the, the Training Program and the Fire Prevention Program,
Items 9-5 and 9-12, part of that reduction for position description, the amount of
29...$29,400 in each of those sections will need to be returned because that is a
collective bargaining agreement that deals with the Bureau Opportunity Benefit
Incentive that have made, was probably overlooked. I wanted to bring that to
your attention before you move forward.
Also, the rental agreement where we have moving the fee of $101,945 to the
Revolving Fund. I just wanna give you a little history and where it's gonna be.
In addition to the two salaries that we've already moved from that account, as of
the 31 st of March this year, we have a balance of $781,936. Fees collected for this
fiscal year from July through March is in the amount of $50,393. We are
currently out to bid for equipment and furniture for our warehouse, which is
approximation $100,000. And just to let you know that if the trend continues,
we'll have depleted this account in FY 2013.
Next, I'd like to talk about the positions, two positions, and I need some
clarification on, on, on my exhibit it says delete and, and can somebody clarify
that for me?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: All of the positions were deleted.
-4
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MR. MURRAY: So, deleted means gone? Okay, the situation that we've come upon is
that I have sent all the information forward on the interview process of both of
those positions that have been done. We have selected both of those positions -MS. REVELS: Two minutes.
MR. MURRAY: --and we have individuals, one, one person in particular that has given
her two weeks notice, has paid for her physical, and is gonna start the 16 th , I
believe, of March. And we also had the AC of Operations, which is the Assistant
Fire Chief of Operations, and I'm not sure if that was noted in the newspaper but I
didn't see it. I want the people to know that we have a person in command in that
level that will be disappearing and that that has been selected too and signed for
approval and that was supposed to be filled May 1 st .
Next on my list is the Helicopter Program.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. MURRAY: I understand that, you know, the cost that you're trying to cut. We've
tried to cut it from a million dollars to $825,000 and now with a $125,000 being
cut again takes us to $700,000. A little history on where that's at. The helicopter
contract roughly for one year just for the helicopter is $616,000. That would
leave us in excess of $83,000 to do firefighting and rescues. Right now as we
speak, we're at $858,000 right now in this fiscal year, and please be aware of our
surroundings that are outside. We are in drought conditions on all of the
windward coasts...leeward coasts, I'm sorry. There's been studies done in
California that their looking at Hawaii as one of those worse situations. I, I can't
remember. I think it's the early '70s that the last time -MS. REVELS: Four minutes.
MR. MURRAY: --we had something like this...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Mr. Murray.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Jeff-MR. MURRAY: Yes, sir.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: --do you have your testimony written?
MR. MURRAY: No. I can have it for you, though.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, if you can.
MR. MURRAY: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We would appreciate that. Members, any questions for
Chief Murray at this time? Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Chief, good morning.
MR. MURRAY: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you for being here.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: On the helicopter, I think you at the closing of your
testimony that you had time to express, we realize there's been warnings of the
dryness and the, you know, potential for fires and other disasters. But, so how
critical is the helicopter in responding to those? And we realize that we're a
three- or four-island community, County. So, is the helicopter also utilized on
Molokai, Lanai, and God forbid Kaho'olawe, you know?
MR. MURRAY: Absolutely. Thank you for that question. I'll elaborate on that. I'll
give you two instances on, on how helicopters come into effect and how we are
utilizing those tools to mitigate situations on all islands. In last July '09, Molokai
had an 8,000-acre fire. We utilized four helicopters for almost eight days. So, the
cost just for that fire alone just on our helicopter use -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MR. MURRAY: --was $115,000. And an example, another example we'll talk about the
tsunami. In preparation for what we thought would, we anticipated to, to
happen...and I'm glad that we did what we did, because what we, we hired four
helicopters, including the one that we had and three others. And we positioned it
strategically on Molokai, West Maui, and East Maui for a simple reason is if this
is a large scale incident that can happen anywhere, that we wanted to be prepared.
We paid in excess of $24,000 on that.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: So...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you for that information, Chief. You, you
mentioned three other helicopters. So, are those privately contracted for when
you require more than your helicopter?
MR. MURRAY: Yes. It's in excess and it's from the same company that we have our
contract with.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, okay.
MR. MURRAY: We have those helicopters equipped with radios so we can do
communications. We just got that done last year, which was in, in, in a sense of
safety, it was a huge upgrade.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, okay. Thank you. And, you know, we see on
our Committee Chair's proposal that he has found money for the MedEvac
helicopter, but in our district meetings, we heard people talking about the Fire
Department helicopter going in situations to extract possibly the injured or sick
person where the MedEvac couldn't go, transporting them to a MedEvac landing
area, and then the MedEvac taking over. Is that true?
MR. MURRAY: That's absolutely correct. That's exactly what we do. Our helicopter is
specific for small areas. It, it, it doesn't fit the purpose as a MedEvac. They're
both helicopters, but you're, you're basically having two different types of apples,
you know. They're apples, but they're different.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. MURRAY: And they have different uses.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Chief. And then finally, on the
position, which tell me if I'm looking at the right position, the Assistant Fire
Chief, the FD-0103. Is that the position that you were expressing concerns
about -MR. MURRAY: Yes. That is.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --being deleted?
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MR. MURRAY: That, that is.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And so how would this impact your operations if
this position is deleted?
MR. MURRAY: Well, operationally it would be a large blow, because now
operationally my Deputy and myself would have to jump in on a lot of these
things, which in a large incident, we're already a part of. And part of the
County's Emergency Operation Plan, this is the third person in succession that
takes my place in the EOC or in an area of command out, out in, out in the
districts.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh. And was, and the incumbent for this
position had retired or...?
MR. MURRAY: He had retired. So, even if we were to fill it, it would be at a lot, lot
lesser pay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And does this position respond to going to
Molokai or Lanai -MR. MURRAY: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --should there be a large incident?
MR. MURRAY: It's all based on the situation, and we're able to get that person in to
help mitigate that situation. Plus, what you have to realize is when we go on these
long drawn-out incidents, we need to be able to factor in the rest periods for these
individuals as well. And we, we just can't be running 'em for eight days straight.
So, these are other factors that we really need to look into.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chief, for clarification and for the
information you've provided this morning. Mahalo, Mr. Chair.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you, sir.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chair has few questions.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The $24,000 that we paid for helicopter service, we had
helicopters standby on Molokai, Lanai, and Lahaina?
8
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MR. MURRAY: Yeah. We had one on Molokai, West Maui...West Maui would be able
to take care of Lanai a little bit quicker.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, just one helicopter? Two? Three?
MR. MURRAY: We had four.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Four?
MR. MURRAY: And, and the reason for that is there's fuel situations that you have to
be aware of, and once, once we become isolated, you need to have that ability to,
to mitigate the situation as best as possible. We also had crews that came back
that are trained with that helicopter and rescue.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Just for your information, Chief, back in 2008 your actual cost
for helicopter was $542,000. Your Fiscal 2009 is $563,000. And in both years
you had five large fires. You mentioned that in 2009, you spent $169,000 for
Molokai? That was a big fire. But again, five large fires, 2009, little over half a
million dollars. 2010 you're budgeted a million dollars. Up to this date, I think
you spent like $800,000. One large fire. So, tell me, if I'm wrong in regards to
the numbers I just gave you.
MR. MURRAY: No, you're not incorrect. But just realize that the helicopter contract,
like I said earlier, of the $616,000, that is just specifically to have the helicopter
at, at your disposal. And that would only allow us $83,000 to do multiple fires
and rescues as well.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And, and maybe when you give us your testimony if you could
indicate what is the process or, you know, what is the priority in, in putting up
those choppers, either on standby or when do you let go. Because the MedEvac
has procedures that they follow and they utilize our E911 in regards to having
those helicopters lift up.
And the other thing, Chief, the positions that you held, and, and I'm looking at the
minutes that were provided to me, that the positions that you talk about were held
back to save money. And, you know, why wasn't it filled way back when when
you had the opportunity to fill those positions, like back, you know, starting in
July 1 st, 2009?
MR. MURRAY: They weren't open until January of this year. On the Assistant Chief's
position, what we did we utilized that time to save some funding not knowing
9
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what the future would be. And we utilized that time to, to basically evaluate the,
the, the individuals that were TA'ing to that position so we didn't make a hasty
decision on what we wanted to do. As far as the other one, it took us that long to
make that selection. And that selection was done a little earlier than the Assistant
Chief's one.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Again, you know, the County Budget is a program
budget. You have the flexibility to manage your budget amongst the A-B
Account. Evidently, C Account is, you know, there's no equipment purchase
other than lease of, lease of equipment. So, you have the flexibility to utilize your
budget in regards to the program budget, Chief.
MR. MURRAY: I understand that. Thank you very much. I appreciate that. But when,
when the situation doesn't allow me is if the thing is deleted. I, I'm not even able
to temporarily assign anybody to that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Seeing none,
thank you again, Chief.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you. Have a good day.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is Marty McMahon, followed by Alan Cordeiro.
MR. McMAHON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am Marty McMahon and I do
administer the County's Electronics Recycling Program. I did testify in front of
this Committee a few weeks ago, so I'll be brief. The request for our budget for
next year, which is our last request for the County, because we are transitioning,
our budget is $47,000 and it is found in the recycling section, the grants which are
given out in that section of the Department of Environmental Management. And I
don't know if it's possible for clarification. Obviously we heard the 167,000,
which was cut from that area, but we also understand, at least from our end,
there's a little confusion because it was a class B or a designated B salary cut and
so forth, so we're not really sure where that stands. Is there any clarification
that's able to be given to us?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Aloha Shares is not a line item, it's in the B
Account of the, of that particular department. So, they also have the opportunity
to utilize, because this is a program budget, to utilize funding from that program
budget to fund Aloha Shares.
MR. McMAHON: Okay. Just to be clear, we are not, I am not affiliated with Aloha
Shares at all.
-
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. McMAHON: Yeah. Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. McMAHON: I understand. Well then, it, it seems our recourse is to then now at
this point is to communicate with the recycling section itself, is that correct?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Department.
MR. McMAHON: Okay. Very good. Thanks to you and the Council. These are hard
decisions, and from the dozen of people I represent our gratitude in your years of
support for our program. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next testifier is Alan Cordeiro, followed by
Jacqueline Simone Ambrose.
MR. CORDEIRO: Good morning, Chair. Good morning, Committee Members. As you
know, my name is Alan Cordeiro, former retired Assistant Chief of Operations for
the Maui Fire Department. I'm very concerned, I'm here in, to testify and request
your reconsideration of deleting the two positions, especially the Fire III or
Assistant Chief of Operations. During my years as Assistant Chief of Operations
I helped manage and be number three. The Chiefs had to go to the EOC and I'm
out in the field, or the Chief would be out in the field managing and getting
logistics to manage these large operations that we've had. The day-to-day
operations is very important when we have to do with specifications for trucks,
following up on buildings, and all the other aspects of operations that needs to be
followed up. Even though we have people in the field, we still work with other
agencies that we have to network with. And that's what the Chief Officer would
do in the field, such as the Assistant Chief of Operations. This person would also
need to be in charge of the Incident Command System that sometimes we have a
second division or a fire that breaks out within the fire as Lahaina did
several...we had several fires. And then you would send the battalion chiefs that
you have working and assign them. And you'd have to be incident command. If
the chiefs are at the EOC, you are the person. That person would be in command
at these major incidents, not only fires but any major spills or other major
emergency that might arise, such as tsunamis. We also have to be concerned with
our personnel and maintaining their safety, maintaining, getting equipment, such
as working with Goodfellow Brothers and other major contractors that help us.
We do a face to face. They know us. We understand each other and we maintain
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this. And we can do the calling, because you ask central to do it, central dispatch
would be tied up at major fires, everybody's calling in. You, as an Assistant
Chief, would call all these other agencies and get them on the road and
responding to assist us -MS. REVELS: Two minutes.
MR. CORDEIRO: --and we coordinate this with the BCs or the officer in charge. And,
it's very important. And understanding what is operations, what is needed,
equipment needs, going to conferences, networking with different departments
throughout the State and the nation, and learning the things that we need to do to
manage at major incidents and the day-to-day operations. It's a very important
position. Very, very disturbed to see that being deleted...feeling like okay, I'm
retired so they'll just delete it along with me. But that's just my personal take.
Also on this, the Operation's Assistant for the Prevention Bureau...this is the
person that would be doing phone taking, making a secretary basically, assistant,
office assistant for the bureau that we have that is very important. The permits,
the -MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. CORDEIRO: --inspections, and, you know, getting this, keeping this person viable
to help run that bureau. This is the person that's in charge, the head person that's
in charge and meets people and greets people and files all the paperwork that the
firefighters need to go out and do inspections. Well, now they're tasked with...I
know it's a hard time. I appreciate all the hard work. Everybody's trying. I'm
. . .(inaudible). . . working, I'm still working with the Chiefs in trying to modify
and simplify our budget and do due diligence, and they have. We haven't bought
any big trucks. We're minimizing six more people that should have been brought
in to drive those tankers that have, that have been eliminated from the budget. So,
it's very, very cut to as best as we could cut it. And I appreciate your hard work.
And thank you very much for listening to me.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you. Jacqueline Simone Ambrose, followed by Tom Croly.
MS. AMBROSE: Good morning, Mr. Chairman -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning.
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MS. AMBROSE: --and Council Members. I spoke a couple of weeks ago briefly at the
Council meeting in Paia. I'm the Project Manager for Aloha Shares Network.
Aloha Shares Network is an on-the-net waste exchange, which saves nonprofits,
organizations, agencies thousands of dollars. About a year and a half ago, I
diverted, I had the opportunity to coordinate a diversion of 160 mattresses off the
Zaandam cruise ship, which was quite a challenge and that went to the homeless
shelter. I actually saved a lot of money, because they needed to replace the
mattresses and didn't have any money in the budget to do it. So, that's just one
example, and also the computers from the County were also distributed to
schools. I have a list here to save time if I may e-mail that to you of the various
organizations that have benefited from Aloha Shares Network.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you.
MS. AMBROSE: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Tom Croly, followed by Greg Kresge.
MR. CROLY: Aloha, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning.
MR. CROLY: Aloha, Budget Committee. I wanted to comment today...oh, I'm Thomas
Croly and today I'm speaking on my own behalf, because I haven't had an
opportunity to discuss this with the Maui Vacation Rental Association. But I did
wanna comment personally on the proposed tax rate for the Commercialized
Residential. I do appreciate the, the Chair's recommendation to reduce this, this
tax rate. However, as proposed, this is still not a fair rate. We are, we have a
newly established tax category and the rates set must take into account the people
it serves. This category primarily serves homeowners allowing, with, being
allowed to use a portion of their home for short-term rental.
What would the effects of this rate be? For me personally, the effects are it triples
my property tax. So, compared to my neighbor, and this is a real situation, my
next door neighbor who has two long-term rentals on his property and he lives
there, I pay triple the amount of tax that my, that my next door neighbor does at
this rate. This rate would effectively tax bed and breakfast rooms on a per room
basis at double the tax that we tax hotels at. That's right, bed and breakfast would
pay twice as much per room as hotels would pay. This tax rate will discourage
compliance with the ordinance, and this tax rate will penalize the people who are
honest and trying to do the right thing. The people who are paying all the right
- 13 -
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taxes, the people who have gone through the process of getting their permits.
And ultimately, this tax rate will result in less revenue to the County, because we
won't see as many people coming forward to make application, and as a result
we'll see less people in this category.
What would be a fair rate? Based on the information that I've given you, we
believe something between $3 and $4 would be a fair rate. That would put us on
par with where the hotels are being taxed on a per room basis.
MS. REVELS: Two minutes.
MR. CROLY: Another fair way to, to deal with these homeowners would be maybe to
keep the rate as, as recommended, but to reestablish some type of exemption for
these folks who are using the property as their primary home. A closer look needs
to be taken, perhaps, at all the property tax rates and how they relate to one
another. I'm trying to make the case that this particular category is a relationship
between homeowner, because that's who we're, we, we have in this category, and
hotel. And we're trying to find where in that continuum this belongs. But
perhaps all the rates need to be looked at from that standpoint. I'm not
complaining that my taxes are going to be too high. What I'm complaining about
is that if we're going to create this rate, it should be fair, and, and what's been
proposed is not fair relative to the other rates.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. CROLY: I'll, I'll end it there. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair, thank you very much. And thank you, Tom,
for being here this morning. As you know, this is rather preliminary and it's all
up for discussion still. We still have to have a Real Property Tax hearing, and I'm
hoping that many people will come to share their information. But you mentioned
in your testimony the idea of some kind of homeowner exemption for B&Bs. Can
you elaborate?
MR. CROLY: The, our ordinance as written says that if you get a B&B permit, you're
not qualified for the Homeowner Exemption. The Commercial, Commercialized
Residential tax rate category says you are not qualified for a Homeowner
Exemption. So, I think what we need to do if, rather than trying to rewrite both
those ordinances, is create an exemption for properties that do fall within the
-14-
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Commercialized Residential category that are used as the person's primary home,
and give them some kind of exemption. That would be able to use this category
for both owner-occupied and non-owner-occupied properties and establish some
level of fairness between those two, those two types of properties.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you very much for the idea. Again, you
know, we're just starting here and we're open to all of that to consider. Thank
you.
MR. CROLY: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, more questions? Seeing none, thank
you again. Greg Kresge, followed by Tracy Takamine.
MR. KRESGE: Aloha and good morning, Council Chair Pontanilla and Council
Members. My name is Greg Kresge. I'm the Deputy Director for the Department
of Environmental Management, and I'm here today to ask for reimbursement of
the $10,000 premium pay within the Department administration budget. And that
was eliminated or deleted in Council Chair Pontanilla's proposal and reduced in
Council Chair Mateo's and Councilmember Victorino's proposals. Our
Department was newly formed in 2007 and provides direction and assistance to
the Department's approximately 230 employees. Over the past three years, we
have seen three reductions in our budget amounting to approximately 20 percent.
This happened almost immediately as soon as we became a new Department.
Even though we received no funding this fiscal year for premium pay, we did
incur overtime expense in the unforeseen events involving the many changes in
the Health Fund and medical care options. We also experienced a lack of staffing
due to an extended employee illness, which resulted in additional workload for
the other existing employees of which there's only six of us, including the
Director and myself. As we have brought our budget down to barebones, we are
concerned that with the subsequent continued reductions in our budget, we will
not have enough money to address both unplanned events and our fixed costs,
pretty much salaries and, and our office rental expense. For this reason, we
request that funding for premium pay in our Department administration be
restored. The Solid Waste Division Chief, Tracy Takamine, will be providing
testimony this morning as well. The Department will be submitting a written
response covering both administration and solid waste. On the issues addressed
this morning, I am available for questions, and mahalo for your time and
consideration.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you again. Tracy Takamine, followed by Jocelyn Bouchard.
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MR. TAKAMINE: Good morning. My name is Tracy Takamine. I am the Solid Waste
Division Chief for the County of Maui. I would like to thank the Council for
allowing me time to comment on the Revised Budget dated April 25, 2010,
specifically the Solid Waste Management Fund. First comment, on Page 5, the
Administration, Administration Program, the proposal to reduce premium pay by
$50,000. A reduction of this amount will leave the Solid Waste Division
Administration with zero funds to pay for overtime. Failure to provide overtime
funds will result in CIP project backlogs, CIP design delays, reduced construction
project oversight and inspections, late report submissions, and most importantly
possible noncompliance due to landfill gas shutdowns and lack of timely
response. Due to the excessive workload and the myriad of permits and
regulatory compliance documents required to maintain landfill operations, the
Division's administrative staff is constantly working many long and tedious hours
just to keep up with the daily operations. And a current example, the Department
is currently negotiating a notice of violation from the US Environmental
Protection Agency with a potential fine of $850,000. This is for failure to
properly monitor, design, and construct the Central Maui Landfill Gas Collection
and Control System in a timely manner
Also, on Page 5 in Landfill Disposal Program, the Council is proposing to delete
five landfill positions, three of which we voluntarily decided to postpone filling
for FY 2011 and two that the Council decided to delete. Permanently deleting or
eliminating these positions will have a long-term negative impact to landfill
operations. The Laborer II and Landfill Attendant positions are in process of
being filled at this time, and elimination of these positions will result in more
overtime and less maintenance and litter control being done as required by permit.
In hindsight, we should have not offered to leave vacant the Equipment Operator
W position, which is DE-0187 at the Lanai Landfill. Our staff on Lanai are
stretched too thin to maintain daily operations to the island of Lanai. Therefore, I
am taking this opportunity to formally request that we -MS. REVELS: Two minutes.
MR. TAKAMINE: --be allowed to fill this position in FY 2011, and that the Council
restore full funding for this position. Under the same program, the Council is
proposing to reduce the Solid Waste Division's B Account by $994,430. I would
like to point out to the Council that the Solid Waste Division has already reduced
the Landfill Program budget by an average of 10 percent for the last three, three
years in each year. The Solid Waste Division has made a concerted effort to
respond to the budget crisis by reducing spending. But failure to provide
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sufficient funds to maintain operations could lead to noncompliance and increased
maintenance costs in the future. I'm asking the County, the Council to restore,
not to restore the entire $994,000, but I am asking the Council to restore at least
$300,000 in order to ensure that we can maintain our landfill operations.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. TAKAMINE: One last, one last issue, Page 6, Diversion Program, decrease B
Account, County grant subsidy by $167,000. Failure to provide these funds will
result in possibly not allowing the Lanai Recycling Redemption Center to open
as, as we planned. This center will be only a redemption center and there will be
no grant funds to collect traditional recyclables, such as plastics, newspapers,
cardboard, and metals. All these will continue to be landfill. That concludes my
testimony.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
Member Medeiros, followed by Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Thank you for your
testimony this morning. Regarding the $167,500 for the B Account, you
mentioned that it may impact Lanai's, is that recycle and redemption or just
recycle?
MR. TAKAMINE: The, the current operation right now is a redemption center, and it's,
it's not on this site. This site is being prepared. It's about a one acre site. That
land was provided by Castle and Cooke. We've already funded it through a grant
process for the, the preparation, design, and construction. The 160, actually
150,000 is needed in FY '11 for operations of the center. So, failure to get the
150,000 will only allow us to move the existing redemption center onto the
existing, the new site, and that's all that we will be able to provide.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you for that information and
clarification. In the decrease in the positions, and I think Hana is one of 'em, the
Landfill Bulldozer Operator position, how does it, that impact our operations at
the Hana Landfill?
MR. TAKAMINE: We currently have a working supervisor. So, we have decided that
we've been maintaining the operation in both Lanai, actually Lanai and Molokai
with the current staff, and we felt that in Hana, for example, the working
supervisor is actually the bulldozer operator who was recently promoted. So, she
is familiar with operations, she's been doing the operation for the past five, five
years at the minimum. So we feel that at the current time, we can do...and again
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it was just a proposal...that we wouldn't fill it. But if you, if the Council deletes
the position, all of these positions, in the long term it's gonna definitely impact us,
because we cannot maintain that operation. Right now, they're doing overtime
just to keep the landfill open.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you for your testimony. Mahalo,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, I just wanted to find out on the overtime, you
know, that was cut, that's 10,000, right?
MR. TAKAMINE: Fifty thousand.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Fifty thousand. Okay. Did you have in previous
budget years, 'cause I was, I, you know, I, I'm just not clear. How much money
did you have for overtime in previous budgets?
MR. TAKAMINE: We've always budgeted 50,000 in my administrative section, which
is my office and my engineering staff.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And out of that, do you have information on
how much you actually utilized? Did you use the whole 50,000?
MR. TAKAMINE: For example, in FY 2009, we, we used about $30,000 to $40,000.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So, but if we, if we were to, were to restore
even a portion of that, would that help?
MR. TAKAMINE: If, if you would restore $30,000 out of the 50, that would, that would
be -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. TAKAMINE: --sufficient, I believe.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I just wanted to have a, you know, some idea of
what, what your actuals were. All right. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. Can you clarify then, the, the
position that you are making reference to the Lanai position, the Equipment
Operator W?
MR. TAKAMINE: Yes. That's position number DE-0187.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
MR. TAKAMINE: That's Equipment Operator W. That, that position is actually the
refuse...he drives the refuse truck. Right now, we have no operator for the refuse
truck. We, we are cunently...my total staffing for Lanai is authorized of four,
Working Supervisor, Equipment Operator W, Bulldozer Operator, and a Landfill
Attendant. We only have two people over there right now. So, with two people
we are maintaining the landfill operations five days a week. We are also picking
up refuse two days a week. And we're supposed to be hauling landfill cover and
loading from Castle and Cooke. And, and even with three people, and even with
four, we'd be, we'd be stretched very thin. So, that's why I'm asking the Council
although we offered to hold off on filling that position, again, in hindsight, you
know, and I'll take the, the blame for that, we should never have offered that. We
should have filled that position and we should move forward in trying to maintain
full staff for Lanai in order to provide the, the daily operations in compliance with
our permit that's required. Right, right now we are barely surviving. I've had to,
when individuals and Workers Comp, we were sending an operator from my
Central Maui Landfill by ferry everyday for almost three months.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you for clarifying that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Chairman, I think, you know,
at this particular point in time, for me, I, I think, I think Mr. Takamine needs to
understand one, this, this is an unprecedented problem for this County in terms of
finances. You understand that, and I understand that. And all we have asked
departments at this point is these are tough times and we're gonna have to live by
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the budgets that is being appropriated. The call for the reinstatement of $50,000
for the administrative part of the operation, you qualify for overtime pay. You
also is one of the highest paid employees in that particular, in that particular
division as well. So, what we're trying to say is tough times are here. You're
gonna have to tighten the belt a little bit. We're not doing this because we wanna
punish a department. We're doing this to balance a budget. And, Mr. Takamine,
you know, we depend on your cooperation and participation in the difficult
choices that we have to make So, you know, I'm sitting here and I am getting a
little antsy trying to understand the need for all your restores when all we're
trying to do is to make ends meet. And your reference to not being able to meet
some of the EPA requirements, the Consent Decrees, you have not been able to
meet the decrees even with full funding. So, let's call a spade a spade. Let's deal
with the budgets that we have to deal with. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Seeing none,
thank you. Jocelyn Bouchard, followed by Tina Lia.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I get 'em. I get 'em.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Next.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. ... (laughs)...
MS. BOUCHARD: Good morning, Budget Chair Pontanilla and Committee Members.
My name is Jocelyn Bouchard. I'm honored and privileged to be the CEO of the
Maui Humane Society. I'm up here this morning just to provide some
clarification and correction on the amount that is being shown in the Animal
Management Revolving Fund, which is on Page 60 of the Chair's Proposed
Budget, about halfway down that page. And I understand the Chair is, is now
aware of this but the amount being shown in there is $405,645 leading to the
Chair's proposal to take $150,000 of our funding from this fund. In fact, there's
$43,000 in that account, and, and actually we just deposited another 23,000 from
the third quarter, so there's a total of about 66,000 in there. We have a request to
pull 65,000 of that to, from, to make up for the award of 150,000 that was given
to us from that fund last year. I hope you were able to follow that. I know it's a
little confusing. So, in other words, we were awarded $150,000 from that fund
last year. In fact, we're gonna take less than half of that, only 65, because the 150
wasn't available. Some of you may remember that I expressed some concerns
about that amount being available last year. Ultimately what happened, we had
three projects going on, we had to replace computers; we were doing a temporary
expansion, because we had to put off our capital campaign that is badly needed;
and we had to do the septic conversion, which was required by law. Because we
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had problems accessing this fund, we were required to go through a POS system,
go by the Davis-Bacon Law, et cetera, because they were counting monies. We
spent almost 150,000 more than we anticipated on those three projects, which is
why that fund got depleted, and why we are now, you know, taking less of, of that
award this, this existing year.
MS. REVELS: Two minutes.
MS. BOUCHARD: And just in closing I wanna just mention the implications of this
additional cut, were it not to be restored, would be significant. I'm having a real
tough time balancing the budget right now with the existing cuts, which we have
accepted, and I'm afraid we would be looking at another two to three, we'll be
looking about two to three layoffs of existing staff in addition to the three frozen
positions we currently have, and the decreased hours and furloughs that I'll be
looking at to be able to balance with the existing 10 percent cut. That was a lot of
numbers. I hope that makes sense to everybody. And again, thank you so much
for your time and the tough decisions you're making here this year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
Member Molina -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --followed by Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Ms. Bouchard. Can
you submit that in writing? Yeah, that would help the Committee.
MS. BOUCHARD: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: It was a little hard to follow.
MS. BOUCHARD: I know. Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
MS. BOUCHARD: Thank you. I will.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair. That was my question.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (Laughter)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions? Member Kaho'ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Just for clarification. Ms. Bouchard, you
said that the amount that's reflected here was not available?
MS. BOUCHARD: Correct. Yeah. It's, the amount that's reflected is 405,645, in fact it,
it, what it is showing in that account right now is 43,000, but really there's about
66 in there 'cause we just did another deposit that I guess isn't reflecting yet.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I, I'm just curious, because that's
the amounts that were given to us, so, so that makes it curious.
MS. BOUCHARD: Absolutely. Well, I think that that was probably because some of the
money didn't come out `til January from that fund to pay for some of these
projects. I, I'm not quite sure, and, and I apologize that I didn't catch that in the
initial budget either.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you for the clarification.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions? Seeing none, thank you.
MS. BOUCHARD: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is Tina Lia, followed by Sandy Baz.
MS. LIA: Good morning, Council Members. I'm Tina Lia. I'm Development
Coordinator with Community Work Day Program, and I thank you for hearing
our testimony and for your patience through the budget process. We appreciate
your support and we're grateful for any amount of funding you feel is appropriate
to help us care for Maui Nui's environment. Community Work Day Program
operates two recycling programs through funds awarded by the Department of
Environmental Management's recycling grants program. The grant amount for
these recycling activities is $20,000. The first program that falls under this grant
is a community paint exchange. This program receives an average of 10,000
gallons of paint each year and recycles that same paint out to community
members for free. The paint exchange allows leftover paint to be spread out on
surfaces rather than mixed into our landfill. The reusable paint program also
supports graffiti removal projects. It's utilized by other organizations, such as
Maui Forest Bird Recovery and the Kaho'olawe Island Reserve Commission.
And it's used in the painted litter barrels program conducted by all schools in
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Maui County. The Paint Exchange Program recycles paint to and from over 100
community members each month. We do what we can to not waste anything that
can still be reused. Any paint that's not usable is solidified with sugar cane fiber
from the HC&S mills so that it can be properly disposed of at the Central Maui
Landfill. The paint is sorted and processed on site with the assistance of
court-ordered community service workers and CWD volunteers.
The second program funded by this grant is Maui County's brand new Battery
Recycling Program. During this year, CWD was able to partner with 15
businesses in Maui County to be drop-off locations for the Big Green Box
Recycling Program. There's currently a big green box in every district including
multiple locations in Upcountry, East, South, and Central Maui as well as dropoff locations on the islands of Molokai and Lanai. The funding from this grant
pays the cost of sorting and taping 2,000 pounds of batteries, which averages out
to about 15,000 lithium, NiCad, alkaline, and button batteries. The grant also
covers the cost of shipping the first pallet of 2,000 pounds of batteries -MS. REVELS: Two minutes.
MS. LIA: --which will be ready for shipment sooner than we had anticipated. The public
response to the launch of this program has been overwhelming. We received
nearly 200 pounds of batteries in the first two weeks. As a nonprofit, CWD is
able to get in-kind donations from businesses to assist in the transportation of the
batteries, and we're currently following up with shipping companies to request a
discounted shipping rate to Southern California, where the batteries are processed.
So again, thank you for your time. We appreciate all the support you can give to
Community Work Day Program to help us work with and care for the
communities of Maui Nui.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Can you
provide us your written testimony?
MS. LIA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So we can make copies. Thank you.
MS. LIA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: A question before the next testifier. It would be
helpful to the Members, I believe, if the testifiers are responding to the Chair's
proposal to give us a reference page so we can get to it quickly.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Some members have done that, but some have not.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next testifier is Sandy Baz, followed by
Mark Hong.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair and Committee Members. My name is Sandy Baz
from Maui Economic Opportunity and I'm here to say thank you. Thank you for
listening to the community and understanding the need for bus passes and the
fares. It's something that I think the community will, will appreciate a lot
especially those that ride the Maui Bus and the MEO system in being able to have
access to these valuable services.
Thank you for listening to the seniors and their plea for the senior transportation
services. They appreciate that very much. I, I've gotten some calls already from
some of the seniors that were very happy, and, and they really need these kind of
services for their independence, for their mobility.
Thank you for addressing the, the little portion of the contracting issue that we
discussed, that I brought up. And so we'll work on that.
Thank you for restoring the cuts to our Head Start afterschool and summer
programs on Maui and Molokai. They're very much appreciated by the children
and parents in our Head Start Program.
Thank you for leaving one staff person in our Enlace Hispano Program. That was
reduced some more, but I appreciate. One person, at least, will be able to assist
the Police Department and other public safeties with some translations and other
issues as well as provide information and referrals and be still a connection with
the community that needs a little bit extra connection resources. And, and youth
services, you know, there wasn't any more funding put in that. We'll just reduce
that services through that, but we are also, we've applied for some funding
through the Department of Housing and Human Concerns for, with substance
abuse prevention as well as Federal money that we, we hope to receive this
upcoming year that may assist in, be able to still provide services to that clientele
a little bit different than exactly what the County was doing. But...
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MS. REVELS: Two minutes.
MR. BAZ: Thank you. That's what I'm here for today. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you. Next testifier is Mark Hong, followed by Billy Amoral.
MR. HONG: Good morning, everybody. Mark Hong representing Parks and Rec,
mainly the Ranger's Department. I was just informed of this deletion of the
positions with the rangers late last night. So I'm gonna hit right on that and my
opinion about the whole shebang, I guess. The rangers is a new, new division but
a big asset. I'll leave that to the question period 'cause I know I only got three
minutes if you guys have questions in that area and why I feel that way. The
supervisory position is a needed position. I hope it's not deleted during this, this
fiscal year. And the way that...we need somebody in there. In the same token, I
understand we're deleting the Special Events Coordinator. Ever since from day
one, we've been answering to that, that person. So, we delete those two, it's like
what direction do we go? What direction do you folks want us to go, basically?
The parks, the beaches, we, I'm sure we all agree that's, that's an attraction for
visitors. I strongly feel we need to take care those, those two areas. We have
worked very hard in keeping those, the parks, the County parks up to par, and in a
lot of cases where the parks had issues, they're, I can use the word immaculate.
I'll name one, Kanaha Beach Park. Remember the harbor?
MR. KANESHINA: Two minutes.
MR. HONG: Kalama Park, we, we like to step it up over there with all the money spent
there. That's another park with, with issues. We're operating at a skeleton crew
right now with basically four rangers on the road. One's pretty much stuck in the
office handling stuff like this that, you know, which a supervisor could handle.
Two during the day, two during the night. In the long run, you know, now in the
shorter run, it'll take its toll. We're not, there's no compromises, bottom line. I
strongly feel to hit us now in this area, cutting back, or not granting us the two
positions that were granted earlier. As far as what we do on a daily basis, I can
answer that all during your time, during the question period, if need be. We work
closely with DLNR, MPD. That's the only way we, we as the park rangers can
get things done -MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
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MR. HONG: --in a joint effort. Yeah, and I wanna touch into the park stuff again with
the special events position. We need something. Whether it be the Park
Supervisor or the Special Events Coordinator.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --questions?
MR. HONG: Thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --followed by Member Johnson, followed by Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Hong, for being here today. Let
me ask you a couple of questions. First of all, you said about your daily duties.
What is your daily duties were...for the safety for the beaches, monitoring all
commercial use, also the use of special events on the beaches themselves? All
that is part of your daily duties?
MR. HONG: You're correct. Special events doesn't only stay. We have had a whole
load of things thrown our direction, which I strongly feel we have handled very
well. In fact, completed close to 100 percent. The special events stuff is not just
the beaches. It's, it's an MMA event at the gym, it, it could be the State Baseball
Tournament. That has to be policed.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. HONG: There's, there's no, you know, I hate to use the word liability this, liability
that, but basically that comes into, comes into the picture no matter how, which
direction we attack it from, which way we look at it. We have to have some form
of security at almost all these events. Priorities, yeah, commercial ocean
recreation activity, that's a priority. We, on a daily basis, we can come in, get a
bunch of assignments, check with the supervisor or a fellow ranger, you know,
that's what you're gonna have if you're lucky, one guy working with you, who's
gonna handle what. And you're off to the races, and do whatever you can. The
day goes by very quickly. Lot of times, I'm sure Billy can attest, I put in a couple
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extra hours, you know, just, that's just the way I am and most of the other rangers
too, because just to, you know, get the job done.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, Mr. Hong, you're saying that in your daily
duties, you're not only covering beach parks, which I understood, you're covering
all these other parks and other facilities for special events purposes.
MR. HONG: Yup. And -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. HONG: --we can't drive around and check George Sun Yat Park [sic] in Kula -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. HONG: --you know. We have parks with issues that has to be checked on a daily
basis. MPD will not do the checks that we conduct, plain and simple. They'll,
they'll, they'll respond to complaints, but they won't just get out, they...meaning,
I'm not downing 'em, but they, they have their hands full also. We go out
and...I'm not saying every park, like I just said. But certain parks we have to do
that. Kanaha Beach Park, Keopuolani on certain occasions, especially a lot, lot of
stuff is happening at Keopuolani, whether it be a soccer tournament, softball
tournament, whatever, these things you have to get out and walk it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. HONG: You know, especially with the, the new signage that we added, the new,
the new laws coming up. Charley Young's, Kamaole, for, I'm sure we all know.
We had to step it up in that area. It has toned down, you know, so now we don't
have to on a daily basis.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. HONG: But Kalama Park can take a lot of time.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. HONG: You know that park is, it happens during the nighttime.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. HONG: I don't work nights, but I seen it last Friday and oh, my God.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Hong, and, and, and I'll ask one
more question and yield to my colleagues so, 'cause they had, they wanna ask
some questions too. The last thing I wanted to ask, this elimination of this Special
Events Coordinator, this, this is who you guys report to directly on all the various
special events that are going on, if there's violations, problems, or whatever it
might be, right?
MR. HONG: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: This person is the coordinator?
MR. HONG: That's correct. Ever since I've been on the job, like, like it hasn't been a
couple years yet-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. HONG: --that's my main guy.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. HONG: That's our main guy-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. HONG: --who we respond to, to get assignments. And no matter how this whole
thing is reorganized, I still see the rangers working very closely with whoever that
person is gonna be. That's still the go-to guy. If you're handling special events -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. HONG: --I strongly feel we need a Special Events, I believe the title is Coordinator.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh. Yeah.
MR. HONG: Don't quote me on it, you know.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: How many, how many rangers you have? How
many rangers -MR. HONG: Right now we have --
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --actively...
MR. HONG: --we have five.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Actively working right now?
MR. HONG: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair. I'll let the others ask
questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. And, and I just wanted to find out, the one
position, you know, the Special Events Coordinator, that was one of the positions
that we received from the Administration that was vacant. So, do, does one of
you handle the supervisory tasks? Or, how do you get your assignments? Or who
do you report to if it's not that individual now?
MR. HONG: I believe it's a temporary assign, assignment position right now, and, and
that person is not a ranger. He does a well job, but he's, he's, he's not a ranger.
Yeah. It has never been a so-called...you know we were called, the real title is
Park Security Officer, but we're referred to as -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Park rangers.
MR. HONG: --park rangers. It has never been occupied by a park ranger.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. HONG: But we have always responded to that person.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and who, was there, was the position ever
filled?
MR. HONG: It was at one time, and I think it's a temporary assigned at the moment, but,
but, but filled right now--

-29-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 27, 2010

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, so...
MR. HONG: --as, as a temporary assigned position.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, oh, okay. So, what you're saying is somebody's
assigned within your ranger staffing to, to do that, to hand out the assignments? I
guess I'm not following -MR. HONG: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --what you're saying.
MR. HONG: The person...I'll get right to the point. That person is Billy Amoral right
now. He's not a, he's not a ranger. He's not counted as one of the five that,
that -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. HONG: --uniformed rangers, but that's who we report to.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And he's within the Park's Department in another
capacity?
MR. HONG: Yes. But right now he's TA'ing as the Special Events Coordinator.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. HONG: That's one of the positions that is on the list to, to delete, maybe,
. . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Alright. Well, we'll, we'll figure it out. We'll
get the answers from the Administration. But the other thing that I wanted to
clarify too, because you do the camping permits as well?
MR. HONG: We do the camping enforcement.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON. Enforcement. Right.
MR. HONG: Those...whatever's, whatever requires a permit is forwarded to our office
and we go from there.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right.
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MR. HONG: We try to, we try to, as a group, we try to associate what will be priority
and what will be at the bottom. As of now, we've been involved in a lot.
Camping, at one time, was the top. Now it's way on the bottom of the pile, the
camping permits. We try to get there, but a lot of times, you know, we can't, we
can't, we don't even reach that point. It has moved from the top...just to show
what we have come into and what we've gotten involved with, you know,
camping at one time was big, now it's not. Same thing with the...I, I'll associate
camping with the, I'll call it what it is, the homeless problem that we're
experiencing. 'Cause a lot of the time those two are, are related. Whatever we
wanna call it, a camping violation or whatever, you know. That, that has moved
down too. We, at one time, when, when, and we seen it in the papers, you know,
when we clean out Kanaha Park, they move to the airport side. Airport cleaned it,
we had to fine-tune it at Kanaha and adjacent parks all the way up to Keopuolani
and even Iao Valley. And we have, we have, I don't know where they, I know
they don't evaporate, you know, the problems don't evaporate. I don't know
where they're at now. They're scattered, but we have to keep, we, we, that's
when that, that thing can move up on our priority list is when the, the, the
numbers get bigger at any certain park.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and I know we did task you with the
additional responsibility for keeping drinking down, you know, at, you know, like
we passed the ordinance that basically disallowed drinking at certain expanded
beach park areas. And from my understanding, you have done a really good job
on that. So, I'd like to thank you.
MR. HONG: Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
MR. HONG: I was just going to say we definitely addressed that and we're still dealing
with that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. HONG: That's still a big issue. Like I said, I walked Kalama Park last Friday for
the first time during the PM hours with the, the volunteers from Kihei, and I, I
was in awe. I mean, I've worked, we've, I've worked...just two weeks ago, we
worked a joint effort with MPD and an arrest was made at that park.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
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MR. HONG: But it stems mostly, you know, I'm not gonna blame homeless this,
homeless that. That was definitely juveniles and the arrests were underage
drinking.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. HONG: That's, that's what was brought in by them. But last week Friday when I
walked that park, same thing, you know. We, you just, we just have to keep on it.
When that slows down, we take our attention somewhere else. But it's always a
full agenda. It doesn't matter what shift you're working, the AM or PM, the
problems differ, you know. The issues differ but same amount.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And you have your ocean rec activities
permits too.
MR. HONG: That is still one of the priorities.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. HONG: Because that started it all, you know, and we're still dealing with them.
And there's a lot of, it's a hard investigation, you know. A lot of these, the, the
CORA illegal vending. It's hard, but, and it takes a lot of time, but with Billy
assigning, where we get back to the supervisory role, assigning certain rangers
that kinda tasks, that's where it helps. It provides direction. And I strongly
believe, you know, the statistics plays a big role in, in justifying any position or
stuff like that, the numbers game. And the supervisory role, that will, that would
kinda fine-tune things up in, in our, in our Department -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. HONG: --you know.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I really appreciate your response, and I do thank you
for, you know, improving. 'Cause, I, the complaints have gone way down.
... (laughs) . . .
MR. HONG: Yeah. Oh...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I mean, I receive far less complaints than I used to at
those areas, so I, I just wanna thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
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MR. HONG: You kinda made my day, just on that.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (Laughter)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair. And thank you, Mr. Hong, for being here.
It's been very interesting to listen to you. You know, this, these are positions we
don't know a whole lot about, because you're relatively new. I, I'm interested in
the hours and days you work. What is your typical work, work week?
MR. HONG: We've tinkered with that, and I, I think we've been, in a nutshell, we've
been successful. A basic time would be 6:00 to 2:30, the day, the day rangers.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Uh-huh.
MR. HONG: And then, 2:00 to 10:30. We were forced to tinker with those hours
because of how the laws...you know we got citation books, right?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
MR. HONG: Okay. So, I'll give you a good example, camping violations. The law
states 6:00 in the morning, 6:00 in the evening, no problem, okay. To catch a
camper, you have to, you have to cite 'em before 6:00 in the morning. So that, we
have one ranger, thank God it's not me... (laughs)...but wakes up and comes in,
he hits the road at 5:00 in the morning. That's the only way he can stay within the
element of the offense to issue the citation. That citation has to be delivered
before 6:00. So, it, it takes time. This guy, I don't know, I know he's hitting the
road earlier. We have areas in...I won't just name parks, but in Kihei, then this
guy has to make it to the west side, and there's no way he can do the central too.
So, he'll, he'll alter his plans, you know.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You do this how many days a week?
MR. HONG: He does it five times a week.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Five times, five days a week?
MR. HONG: Five days a week. We're a skeleton crew. So, that guy does it five times a
week. I'll come in. I'll get, I'll get my stuff. It's different. I don't, like I said,
because of my time, my usual times is 6:00 to 2:30, I'll deal with other issues, and
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I'll try to...if we, we're not gonna handle everything, but at least we can address
it. I can coordinate something with DLNR and then a lot, MPD has been such a
big help working hand in hand with us. I coordinate a lot of, I call it joint efforts,
I think that's what they call it too, with MPD, but we address the, the complaints
that are referred to us. And then we handle a lot of the small stuff so that MPD
doesn't have to get involved.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That, that's fine. Thank you very much.
MR. HONG: I'm gonna add one more thing, because I hear, this is the biggest plus from
the rangers, from the MPD to the rangers, is they have a protocol of sending two
officers to handle a camper, plain and simple. If we, if we get assigned to that
from dispatch, it's just one of us and we handle the whole park, you know. So,
these guys are free for dispatch to assign them somewhere else, you know. So,
that's, that's a big...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, thank you. We're, we're happy to hear you're
working with the Police Department. Thank you.
MR. HONG: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Mr. Hong, thank you very much for your
testimony. And I just wanted to, I just wanted to make sure that you knew that
the two additional positions, the Park Security Officers, one of 'em there was no
request to fill from the Department, and the second position, the Department
supposed to have been in the process of re-describing that position. So, they were
not filled not by this body, by the Department. Okay? I just wanted you to know
that just for your own information. Okay? Thank you. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. HONG: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, next. Thank you again for being -MR. HONG: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --here this morning.
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MR. HONG: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is Billy Amoral, followed by Pat Rocco.
MR. AMORAL: Good morning, Council Members and Chairman Pontanilla. My name
is Billy Amoral and I have been temporarily assigned to the Special Events
Specialist position on Page 19, PR-0386. The Special Events position is
responsible for all special events, the CORA, Commercial Ocean Recreation
Activities, and supervises the park rangers. The Special Events Specialist
position has the responsibility to define what constitutes a special event, to
describe the application and review process, and to establish guidelines and
procedures necessary to allow the County and promoters of special events to
achieve mutual goals while protecting the County park's resources and
maximizing the overall benefits derived from such activities Annually, numerous
groups and organizations request special use of Maui County park facilities.
These, these usages, these uses range from small to large events such as charitable
fundraisers to the Maui County Fair. Each request is unique and requires varying
degrees of commitment and involvement by the Special Events Specialist. The
Special Events Specialist is the liaison between the Parks and Recreation and the
other County departments, such as the Fire Department and the Liquor
Department, as well as the State Department of Health.
The Department of Parks and Recreation recognizes the many cultural, social, and
financial benefits that can be derived from the proper management and
implementation of these special events. Not only do they enhance the quality of
life, stimulate economic growth, tourism, and promote public recreation, but they
also provide financial support and public appreciation for many worthwhile
endeavors. Ensuring park facilities and recreation resources for special events is
the responsibility of the Special Events Specialist. In recognizing the benefits, the
Special Events Specialist has the responsibility to adequately balance the needs
and requirements of these special uses against the management and use of its
resources and public property, the protection of public health and safety, and the
compliance and enforcement of all County of Maui statutes and ordinances. The
Special Events Specialist position ensures that any event, whether public or
private, for profit or nonprofit, has a reservation, adequate insurance, reducing
liability issues, and has complied with all policies and procedures to reserve a
facility of the Department.
Another responsibility of the Special Events Specialist is to oversee CORA,
Commercial Ocean Recreation Activities program.
MR. KANESHINA: Two minutes.
-35-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 27, 2010

MR. AMORAL: These, the activities governed by this program are surfing, windsurfing,
kite boarding, kayaking, scuba diving, and snorkeling. I am responsible to ensure
that the rules and regulations which govern ocean commercial activities using
County beach parks are adhered to. It is unlawful for any person to conduct a
CORA activity on County property without a permit, and a permit is required for
each activity.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. AMORAL: Anyone seeking to conduct a CORA activity must submit an
application for said. It is then reviewed by myself and a determination is then
made for either rejection or acceptance. A fee is attached to each permit issued,
which creates a revenue for the Department. There are currently 48 permitted
CORA vendors. These 48 vendors hold a total of 139 permits.
Another responsibility would be the supervision of the Department's park rangers.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Mr. Amoral, for being here. So,
you are acting as the Special Events Specialist?
MR. AMORAL: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And you're back here on Maui?
MR. AMORAL: Yes, I am.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Ah. Welcome home.
MR. AMORAL: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: ...(Laughs)... Sounds like you have your hands full.
How long have you been back?
MR. AMORAL: I returned to Maui in November of last year.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. So, this position is, is effectively filled.
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MR. AMORAL: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Well, that was, that's important, because we were
told earlier that these positions were vacant and that nobody who's currently
employed would be displaced. So, this is an important piece of information.
Thank you.
MR. AMORAL: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Member Medeiros.

Thank you.

Members, any more questions?

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Amoral, thank you for
your testimony. You're in the Special Events Specialist position, but you're there
temporarily assigned. You're not an incumbent of the position?
MR. AMORAL: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So, I, I just wanted to be sure we got that
correct. Thank you for that correction. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So, you're, if you're temporarily assigned to the
position, what position do you currently hold?
MR. AMORAL: I'm the Recreation Leader III in East Maui.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Members, any more questions? Seeing
none, thank you again.
MR. AMORAL: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is Pat Rocco, followed by Mary Kielty.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Whoa. They brought all the guns, yeah.
MS. ROCCO: Good morning everybody. Thank you for having all of us and listening to
us. We're here to support our Department and hopefully not losing -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair? Can, can she go closer to the mic?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Can you talk into the mic, please?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, please.
MS. ROCCO: --vacant positions.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
MS. ROCCO: Hopefully we're here to get our points across that we need all the
positions that we have listed. I'm just going to give an overview. Attending
special events are an integral part of recreational activities here on Maui offered
to our citizens and to visitors to Maui. I imagine well almost everyone here has
attended, and on the island, has attended a special event of one sort or another.
They might not even know it's a special event, but it's categorized by that and we
as a Department try to make the event safe and healthy and fun and a good
recreational activity for all our citizens. We encourage the special events, but we
do need help as far as the districts go as keeping that position of Special Events
Coordinator, because they help us to fine-tune all the regulations that are needed
to put on a special event. Let me give you a couple of examples. In Central
district alone, where I'm the District Supervisor, we might have ten special events
in one week, especially during the political year, because all of the political
functions are considered a special event too. So, we might have two political
activities at Wailuku Community Center or Velma McWayne -MR. KANESHINA: Two minutes.
MS. ROCCO: --during the week and those are special events. I need help to make sure
that all the regulations are being followed in the special events, and the
enforcement officers help us to make sure these events happen safely for our
citizens. I wrote a lot of stuff down, but I got, got off track here a little bit. And I,
I don't wanna just speak about central, even though we have the most going on,
but all the other districts have activities in their, in their areas too, like the
basketball, Maui Invitational in west, the Taro Festival in Hana. All of these are
special events and we need help in coordinating them. Let's see.
MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MS. ROCCO: Okay. Three minutes already? Whew. ... (laughs)...
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (Laughter)...
MS. ROCCO: So, I just want to put the plea in to keep the position. It's very important
and so are the enforcement officers. They have brought a lot of consistency to the
Department in looking over our facilities and helping us out. They're helpful to
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the citizens and they're helpful to the districts and the management of the Parks
Department. I might say they are also helpful to our Park Caretakers if you go all
the way down the line. It's very difficult for a Park Caretaker, some Park
Caretakers, to tell people to stop doing something. Their job is there to maintain
the park, and they, they try and, but an Enforcement Officer really does the job.
MR. KANESHINA: Four minutes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. ROCCO: Okay. I just wanna put one more plea in here. I have just had a half-time
Park Caretaker move up to a full-time Park Caretaker position in the War
Memorial Complex that left me a vacant half-time position, which I do need to
fill. Because it's only been two months and we have the list now to fill, fill that
half-time position as well as the half-time Recreation Aide.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you again, Pat.
MS. ROCCO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mary Kielty, followed by Solomon Namauu.
MS. KIELTY: Good morning. My name is Mary Kielty. I'm the Chief of Aquatics with
the Department of Parks and Recreation. We understand that these are
challenging days. Over the last couple years, we have been tasked with making
numerous reductions within our budgets. We have complied each and every time.
In an effort to assist our County throughout these harsh economic times, our
Aquatics Division has identified positions to remain unfunded to help save our
County monies. Although we did not want to see the removal of the EPs
completely, because at some point in time, hopefully sooner than later, this
economy's going to turn around, and when it does, we would hope that these
positions be reinstated. At that point in time, it may take more time and money to
achieve this. There are three positions that Council has selected to delete that
Aquatics did not identify. They are PR-0270, 0445, and 0304, in which currently
an employee has return rights to that position. These three positions are essential
in maintaining adequate staffing at our pools. They also play a part in our overall
reduction plan, in our impending furlough plans for Fiscal Year '11. I feel
Aquatics has taken an active role and created a plan to further assist our County in
saving funds. Starting May 31, we will be closing pools on holidays to help save
on overtime costs.
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MS. REVELS: Two minutes.
MS. KIELTY: Effective July 1, we will be closing pools one day a week to assist in
creating savings. These positions you are requesting to delete have already been
factored into our reduction and furlough plans and are essential to their success.
In cutting these three positions, you will be impacting a reduction program meant
to assist our County in generating savings. This will also affect our community as
we may have to implement additional pool closures. Currently, our community is
suffering with this economic downturn. Recreation is a stress free, healthy outlet.
Our pools and our beach parks are free, and they're great venues for our young
and our old to enjoy. Please, reconsider your deletions. Grant us our three
positions.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MS. KIELTY: And leave all our EPs in place. I feel our Aquatics Division has made a
great effort in creating plans to assist all of us in this unstable economy. Help us
to help you. We all have a common goal here, a thriving, healthy government and
community Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
Member Johnson, followed by Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mary. Thank you very much for coming here.
One of the questions, I guess that comes to my mind, first off, is when you close
on the holidays, statistically, what is your utilization on holidays? 'Cause I would
think the pool days probably would be most popular on the holidays because the
kids are off. The parents are off. They go to the pool, chill out, you know,
whatever. So, is that a heavy usage day?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
MS. KIELTY: No. Actually it's not, and that's a great question. My staff, we spent
many hours on researching our numbers, all our sign-in sheets. The holidays
actually were very low. It seems people are going to the beach, barbequing. So,
they're not coming to the pool. So, that was one of our, of course, one of our
factors in deciding these choices.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. I really appreciate that, because that's one of
the first questions we get asked is oh, how come, you know, closed on a day when
I get off? So, I just research, you know, if you have any stats that you can, you
know --40-
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MS. KIELTY: Oh, we have plenty.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --let us...yeah.
MS. KIELTY: Yup.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Just, you know, even just a quick and dirty summary.
MS. KIELTY: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That's all we need, because when we start getting the
criticism for cutting positions, and cutting, and cutting, and cutting and not having
the services available to the public, we want them to understand that these were
the things that were underutilized.
MS. KIELTY: Right. Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thanks very much, Mary.
MS. KIELTY: We can provide that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros. Oh, before I call on
Member Medeiros, you, Ms. Kielty, you mentioned return rights of one
employee?
MS. KIELTY: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Can you...
MS. KIELTY: That's correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Can you identify...
MS. KIELTY: Oh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Can you identify the return rights-MS. KIELTY: The number?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
MS. KIELTY: PR-0304. That employee is currently under, with Ocean Safety in a
limited term position under the Makena contract. He does have return rights to
the pool.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. That was my question.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, thank you. And thank you, Ms. Kielty, for
being here today. I appreciate the information. The question I had, those three
positions that we have identified in our budget to be put off, deleted, how many
more days, if that was to come to fruition, do you expect another day of closure
for many pools? Or what pools? Because we didn't identify where, what areas,
right? These guards pretty much have areas, but they're transferrable if needed,
right?
MS. KIELTY: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So, with that in mind, if we were to delete
these three positions, what would be the impact?
MS. KIELTY: Well again, it will affect the entire plan. We're down to numbers now.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. KIELTY: It's all about numbers.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MS. KIELTY: Yeah. We cannot open the pool with short staff. It would be unsafe. It,
it, it would affect, it'd be hard to say at this point, because of the furloughs as
well.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And you mentioned as of July 1
intending to close pools once, once, once a month?

st

you are

MS. KIELTY: Once a week.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Once a week. Okay.
MS. KIELTY: If the holiday falls within that week -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. KIELTY: --it will only close one time.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, for that holiday.
MS. KIELTY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That was gonna be my next question. If a holiday
fell within the same week, would you close it twice?
MS. KIELTY: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So, just once.
MS. KIELTY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So that, that helps a lot. And, and, and, and
concluded, in conclusion, I should say, would this be on a rotating basis? Let's
say, for example, Central Maui, we're blessed with one, two, three, four pools,
right?
MS. KIELTY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: In Central Maui area, yeah?
MS. KIELTY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, would like maybe two would be closed on
Wednesday, two closed on Thursday, or will you close all the same day?
MS. KIELTY: No. We, we will stagger it, and again, back to the other question --
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. KIELTY: --with stats, we reviewed our stats, we've chosen the least impacted days
to make closures.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Very good. Thank you. And I know, Mary, you
had showed me some of the stats and you guys have been working for a long time
putting this together, and I thank you, because that's important. And if we could
get a copy or some kind of -MS. KIELTY: Oh, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --summary, I think that helps us to make good
decisions. If you have 'em -MS. KIELTY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --if you could give 'em to staff, and if, Mr. Chair,
we could get that, we'd appreciate it. Thank you, Mary.
MS. KIELTY: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank, thank you. Members, any more questions for the
testifier? Seeing none, thank you again.
MS. KIELTY: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Solomon Namauu, followed by Karen Noelani Deguilmo.
MR. NAMAUU: Test. Good morning. I'd like to thank the Council for having me here,
and especially my, my bosses, Tamara Horcajo and Floyd Miyazono. Floyd
called me up yesterday to come here and testify for the Park Caretaker's position
for Upcountry. I'm the Maintenance Supervisor for Upcountry now, east district,
which is the biggest district for parks. If you delete these positions, with what
manpower that I have now, the moral will go down. We'll have more industrial
injuries, more overtime, which has been cut to help out, and I need that positions
filled, because my workers, I'm so proud of them. They are few. I'll give you an
example. Kula, Kula section, which consists of Kula Park, Rice Park, Sun Yat
Sen, Keokea, Kula Center Tennis Court, I have two workers there. Now, that's
big parks. And I'm very proud of my men. And they take pride in their job. But
pride cannot last long. They going get hurt. And we need, we serve the people,
the community. You know, I, I, I was a Park Caretaker. I worked my way up. I
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used to be at central. And my specialties was baseball fields. They brought me
Upcountry to fix it up. I was proud that we have two major league players that
made it, that played on the field that I made. It was safe, it was beautiful, and it
was healthy. I wanna give the next keikis the opportunity, like Shane Victorino,
and Kurt Suzuki had to play on safe fields. And I want to give the public, the
community, the people clean centers, clean parks.
MS. REVELS: Two minutes.
MR. NAMAUU: But without the manpower, I cannot provide that. My men cannot
provide that. I need these positions filled. Right now, two full-time positions for
the Park Caretaker's vacancies I'm waiting for, for a while...and a half-timer.
And we was granted four full-timers expansion. I waited a long time. The
people, the community Upcountry, you know, they are, they are happy on the job
we are doing, but we wanna give 'em more. They deserve more. They deserve
more. The people deserve more. The keikis deserve more. We're all a team
here. We work for the people. We serve them, like I said. And I know what my
men go through, because I started at the bottom.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. NAMAUU: I know what needs to be done. I was there at the bottom, and I worked
myself up, you know. But without the help of these Park Caretakers, like I said,
my men is just like the 300 Spartans. They did the best they can, but in the end,
what happened? They failed, because they never have numbers. We need the
numbers there. We need it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. NAMAUU. Like I said, we only take pride in serving the community, especially the
keikis...baseball, soccer, basketball, whatever.
MS. REVELS: Four minutes.
MR. NAMAUU: Without their help, the keikis and the communities cannot get nothing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Namauu.
MR. NAMAUU: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And thank you. That analogy is a very
good analogy. I mean, we hope we no lose all you guys like that.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (Laughter)...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: How many personnel, right now presently do you
have in your division, in your section?
MR. NAMAUU: In my section?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. NAMAUU: The Kula section I have two.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. NAMAUU: In Eddie Tam, which is a big complex -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. NAMAUU: --I have three. One 75-year-old lady; two other workers. In Pukalani
and Haliimaile, I have two, and that's very big parks.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And you don't cover Haiku and all that area?
MR. NAMAUU: Haiku is a different...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Different district?
MR. NAMAUU: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That, you're, you're...okay. That's why I wanted
to know where the boundary was -MR. NAMAUU: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --with, what your division.
MR. NAMAUU: Haliimaile to Sun Yat Sen is mines
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: All, all of that. That's a big area in itself.
MR. NAMAUU: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And my other question was with all the lack of
numbers that you have, you still been able to maintain your fields in a very good,
good and timely manner? 'Cause I know there's basketball, little league, open
league, all kinds of stuff happening up there. Are you guys responsible for the
gyms also?
MR. NAMAUU: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: For all the gyms? The Kula gym, the Eddie Tam...
MR. NAMAUU: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. What about the, the community centers?
That's not under you guys.
MR. NAMAUU: Community centers is all under us.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: All under you?
MR. NAMAUU: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, you take care of all of these?
MR. NAMAUU: All of these.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: With the limited manpower you have right now?
MR. NAMAUU: Yes. But, like I said, when baseball season come, we have to drop the
other stuffs. Things fall back. Upcountry, you gotta think too, it rains a lot.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. NAMAUU: The grass grows. My men gotta weedeat.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. NAMAUU: You know, they have a lot of jobs to do, trash, litter, bathrooms, ball
fields, centers, everything they gotta do.
-47-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 27, 2010

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. NAMAUU: But sometimes we gotta let things fall back, and then they gotta catch
up. And when they gotta catch up, lot of them get hurt.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. NAMAUU: Lot of them get sore.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. And we don't want that happening. You
know, of all these positions that were deleted, and again, we all looking at this
now and, and whether we...how many could you, if I said, how many could you
live with if we cannot give you everything? What would be the minimum number
we could give you back that you said okay, this will at least tide me over `til next
year or to some other time when we get more money. How many?
MR. NAMAUU: I knew you was going ask that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, well I was ... (inaudible) . . .
MR. NAMAUU: Give me half.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Half?
MR. NAMAUU: Give me the cavalry. Give me half.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Give you half. That would be the cavalry to save
you?
MR. NAMAUU: You know that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And let me say one more thing. Thank you
for the recognition, but we get one more boy, Kanekoa Texeira, he used to play on
the same fields Upcountry 'cause he's from Kula. So, the three boys owe you a
lot, and thank you very much. And Maui owes you a lot. And we'll do our best.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
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MR. NAMAUU: Like I said, Maui no ka oi. And always when I was at, you know,
central working on the ball fields like that, Maui was always the best. Always the
best.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Namauu. Members, any more questions?
Thank you again. Next testifier is Karen Noelani Deguilmo, followed by
Zachary Helm.
MS. DEGUILMO: Aloha -COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aloha.
MS. DEGUILMO: --Council Chair Pontanilla and Council Members. I know this, we
are all in hot seats today, so I will calmly give you my message, my manao. I can
be found on Page 22. So, if you'll allow aunty your audience, I will speak. First,
I am known as Aunty T, and I'm a Recreation Specialist, although I liked to be
looked upon as a public servant first. I'm here to humbly speak in behalf of our
PALS Recreation Leader II. Currently, we are recruiting for this position. It was
actually recruited twice. The last was on February 7 th , and it closed on
February 23. As a Recreation Specialist, I supervise this person, and find if it was
recruited twice, it must be pretty difficult to fill this position. I want to let you
know also that there were several people that have written something for aunty,
because I was in that position. So, I cannot be too biased. So, I asked for their
manao. So that you understand the magnitude of PALS, it covers three islands.
Really.
Also, this Recreation Leader II position is very essential for many reasons. One,
we actually have an inclusive PALS integration. You realize that we have many
children out there that have needs. We have opened different ways to
accommodate and if not, we've been able to ask other resources for help.
MS. REVELS: Two minutes.
MS. DEGUILMO: Number two, program growth and development. You have to grow
with the, the needs of your families. It's not just about children. It's about their
parents. It's about their families. It's about their needs. Food service program,
we've always been asked about that, and realistically this program still provides.
We've been working feverishly with the State. Special rate determinations, these
are for families who are on reduced and free rates. We are a program that
provides for them.
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Now, you may be thinking who's running the show? Well, we have had a brave
soul who actually temporarily assigned up until September. Thereafter is aunty.
And it is a difficult position to wear many hats. My job as a specialist is to
supervise this person.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MS. DEGUILMO: But as I've said, there must be someone that is being currently
recruited. The Department of Personnel is working on that.
I have one closing comment past the three minutes. Lives rooted in God's
unchanging grace can never be uprooted, Hebrews 13:5. And just to mention, the
PALS budget, we have always done it on a flat budget. So, I pray tell your
aunty's not size 24, now fits in a size 12 dress. Thank you.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (Laughter)...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, aunty.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? I, I, I
just have one. Aunty, the, you said you're recruiting for the position right now, is
that an internal recruitment or external?
MS. DEGUILMO: Department of Personnel is external.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: External?
MS. DEGUILMO: External.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Members, any more questions?
Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Aunty T, good, good morning. The position has
actually been vacant since 12/15/08, so what took so long?
MS. DEGUILMO: I believe that the Department did put out the request, and I cannot
answer that other than truthfully, it must be a tough position to fill, really. I mean,
this position deals with lives. Your impact on children, employees that come
through our program have gone on to be doctors and teachers and even a State
Senator or something. He's out there. But I don't know why.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Thank you.
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MS. DEGUILMO: But it has been on recruit.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Aunty T. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Aunty, for being here.
MS. DEGUILMO: Thank you, dear.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is Zach Helm, and as soon as Mr. Helm provides
his public testimony, Chair is going to call for a short recess. And, and, Members,
you know, like Chairman Mateo had indicated, just to note, and a comment from
this Chair, is that some or most of the positions were vacant for a long time.
Mr. Helm.
MR. HELM: Aloha kakahiaka, Budget Chair Pontanilla and Council Members. First of
all, thank you for this opportunity for us to testify, but I'd like to give a special
mahalos to all of our testifiers from our Department. And I really appreciate all of
the support. My testimony this morning is concerning pretty much the island of
Molokai and Lanai. We haven't talked about the neighbor islands. And I feel
that we're still part of the County of Maui, and we need to realize that we need to
do whatever we can to support these islands. And I know, I realize you have to
make very difficult decisions, and you already have. And, but, you know, I know
it will have some type of major impact with all of these reductions and deletions
of positions from an operational standpoint, and also the general public will have
a big effect.
For example, Molokai has the highest unemployment in the State. It's currently
at 17 percent. Part of your budget proposal is eliminating one full-time Janitor I
position and two half-time Rec Aide positions. We are in the process of filling
these positions. None of these positions were vacant more than five months.
Currently, it takes at least four to six months to fill positions from the beginning
of the hiring process to the new employee's first day. Eliminating these positions
will hurt, and I feel losing any positions on these islands, Molokai and Lanai, it
has a big economic impact, even if it's a half-time position.
MS. REVELS: Two minutes.
MR. HELM: Also, I feel that there is a position on Lanai we're trying to recruit and fill.
It's a Recreation, half-time Recreation Aide. The community on Lanai has been
requesting to keep the restrooms open on weekends on Lanai at the community
center, and we've been paying overtime for our full-time workers to service and
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open those facilities. With this position, I feel that we can address that concern on
Lanai. So, I, I really feel that, you know, if these positions cannot be retained, at
least keep the EP alive. And that's all I have to say right now. If you have any
questions? Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, questions for the testifier? Member Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Helm, thank you very much, and thank you for citing those
three positions on Molokai especially. Mr. Helm, you, you indicated that these
positions there was an ongoing recruitment for the positions?
MR. HELM: Yeah. Just to clarify. One of the, the half-time Rec Aide, well actually,
two of 'em, one of 'em went to the swimming pool as a full-time Pool Guard. So,
that position became vacant the beginning of 2010. The other, we had an
individual retired, which was the end of 2009.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Oh.
MR. HELM: And currently, one of those positions was already posted, and we're
waiting for the, the list of names for us to interview.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. And the only reason I ask is because on the position
sheet that we got from the Department of Personnel Services on March 10, 2010
this year -MR. HELM: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: --the two recreation positions were listed, it's listed as NRF, no
request to fill. So, this is coming from our personnel department. So, some of
these positions went on the block because we dealt with the most current
information from the County's Department of Personnel. So, I'm, I'm hoping
that your Department touched basis with, with Personnel on some of them. So,
probably why it's on the block. Thank you, Mr. Helm.
MR. HELM: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just a fast question. The person that retired holds
what position?
MR. HELM: The half-time Rec Aide position on Molokai.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
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MR. HELM: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions for Mr. Helm? Seeing none, the
Chair is going to call for a midmorning recess and we'll reconvene at 10 o'clock.
And when we come back, the next testifier is Floyd...I'm sorry, at 11 o'clock.
The next testifier will be Floyd Miyazono. This meeting is in recess.
. . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

10:53 a.m.
11:04 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is
now reconvened. Members, I just wanna acknowledge the presence of
Member Johnson and Member Molina this morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The next testifier...and, Members, we do have 15 more
testimony to hear.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Whoa.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Next testifier is Floyd Miyazono, followed by
Laura Seaton.
MR. MIYAZONO: Good morning, Chairman Pontanilla and the Members of the
Committee. I'm Floyd Miyazono. I'm the Chief of Recreation from the Parks
Department. My reference is Page 21 of 61. And I would like to somewhat
expand on what Mr. Namauu was talking about relative to the deletion of the park
caretaking position. Certainly, as you can see, he has a lot of pride in his workers
and I do have the same with their workers. Their workers are very excellent
workers. But certainly from the standpoint, just for your information, I do wanna
inform you that two of the positions was recently vacated. One was promoted and
the other one recently left the Department. Also, for your information, we, we are
in the process of interviewing for these positions, so we did the recruiting work,
and we are in the process of interviewing to fill these positions within the next
week or so. So, we have proceeded with the filling of these positions. As I take a
step backwards as we take a look at why we had requested for these positions, it's
always very important from the Department's standpoint to look at our minimum
maintenance standards, and as we look at our parks and take a look at what needs
to be done within the park system. You know, that's how we determine how
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many Park Caretakers we need and try to come up with minimum maintenance
standards. We believe that's very important in providing a safe and healthy
playing environment, in this case. I would like to also expand on the South Maui
parks position that's also on the same page, 21 of 61, and although the EP is left
intact, I, I notice that the funding is being considered for freezing or deletion.
MR. KANESHINA: Two minutes.
MR. MIYAZONO: I do want to mention that certainly Kihei, as we all know, South
Maui as we all know, is a very booming and large community, and we, we are in
the process of acquiring in January, I think that's the scheduled completion date,
of a 17 acre park as well. That would entail two lighted fields, a soccer field, a
multipurpose field, and two restroom facilities. So, certainly from the standpoint
of the importance of this position, I ask for your consideration in retaining the
funding for this particular position as well.
And in closing, from the standpoint, I just wanna mention something about the
Rec Leader position, which is on the following page. That was brought up also
by Aunty T, or Karen Deguilmo. This certainly, there is a need for a permanent
position there. As we take a look at what type of services and what -MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MR. MIYAZONO: --kind of program is being implemented from the standpoint of
servicing over 3,000 youths, I believe. You know, personally it's, you know,
justified. Okay. I'm through. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you very much, Chair. And thank you,
Mr. Miyazono, for being here. I wanna go back to the testimony of Mr. Namauu
that you referred to. He told us that in the East Maui area he has three, five, seven
people, two in Kula, three in Eddie Tam, and two in Pukalani, so that's seven.
You mentioned two positions were vacated. Are those two of that seven?
MR. MIYAZONO: To my understanding, no.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No. So, who are these two people then?
MR. MIYAZONO: There was a person that was promoted from a PC-1 position. He
was promoted to a PC-2 position.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Uh-huh.
MR. MIYAZONO: So therefore, his position becomes vacant. So that's one of the
vacant positions here.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But is it of these seven people or is it in another area?
MR. MIYAZONO: Oh, it is in the same area.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's in the same area.
MR. MIYAZONO: It is in the same area.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, there were more than seven?
MR. MIYAZONO: There were more than seven if you count the two vacant positions at
one time there were -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Nine.
MR. MIYAZONO: --nine.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, there were nine -MR. MIYAZONO: There were nine.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --and now they're down to seven?
MR. MIYAZONO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. I'm looking at the proposal before us, and it
shows that there are eight positions that are being deleted. It's kind of interesting
that we would have nine positions and actually seven that are filled right now and
look at eliminating eight. It doesn't, the numbers don't make sense.
MR. MIYAZONO: One of the positions, if you take note of 0048 that is in the, although
it's in the East Maui parks district, but it is in the coastal district. So it's a
different baseyard.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: When you say coastal, what, what is that?
MR. MIYAZONO: Coastal would include Paia, Haiku, in those particular areas.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Is that the case with any of these other eight
positions?
MR. MIYAZONO: All of the others is in the Upcountry district.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, we've got half of the people that we really need to do
this job, more or less, if that's the Department's position?
MR. MIYAZONO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You know, I, I'm not surprised to hear this, because, you
know, I've had some of the Park Caretakers, you know when we have events and
things at the centers, and they, they will say, you know, that they are really
stretched. So, I'm not surprised that, you know, Mr. Namauu would come here to
say what he said this morning. But again, you know, I think everyone
understands we are suffering to try to balance a budget without having to do more
drastic things. You know, we could be looking at a second furlough day, which
we're very reluctant to do, because that's gonna affect everybody. So, we're
trying to figure out how can we provide the services that we're providing without
expanding the, the workforce so that we don't have to look for some more money.
`Cause if we have to look for some more money, you know, it's gonna hurt worse
the things we have to do. So, that's what we're trying to do here. And we
understand that you folks have a huge job to do. But we also have a terrible job
here too. So, you know, thank you very much for coming.
MR. MIYAZONO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair, and good morning, Mr. Miyazono.
MR. MIYAZONO: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And I certainly appreciate your input, and having been
a former Parks Director yourself, you certainly see the whole scope of things. As
it relates to East Maui, you know, I guess I believe Eddie, the Eddie Tam complex
is the biggest -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's huge.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --park area in the district. Am I correct?
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MR. MIYAZONO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And with, you know, now we're down to seven.
Basically you have two that have been, I guess the two positions, one a
promotion, and was it the other person that was, that person retired? Or...
MR. MIYAZONO: That person left the Department.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Left the Department. Okay. So, taking into
consideration you have Eddie Tam, Kula, Pukalani, Sun Yat Sen, and to see this
amount, you know, being wiped out will certainly generate a lot of comments
from the community throughout. And as we know folks in Upcountry Maui are
very vocal. And I, I can certainly concur with Mr. Namauu's comments about at
the very least getting half of the proposed cuts or vacancies restored. Do you
share that same insight with Mr. Namauu?
MR. MIYAZONO: Certainly from the standpoint of what Councilwoman Baisa had
mentioned, you know, going through the real tough economic times. Anything
that we could have would certainly be appreciated.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh. And I know, I, I walk around Eddie Tam
Complex occasionally, and I know the fields are kept up nice, but I get comments
from the public about the weeding aspect. And I know, being that you already are
down to almost, to a skeleton crew, it's hard for them to keep up. So, when you
figure out people get sick and so forth, then the workload just keeps building up.
So, I can just see more and more complaints being brought to my attention, so
anyway. But thank you for your insight, Mr. Miyazono.
MR. MIYAZONO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just a comment from the Chair. The South Maui
parks, we do, we, we still have that two expansion positions, because of what's
going on out in South Maui on that new park. And the number that you see there
is, it's a reduction because of an employee that is now with the Administration.
We left the EP in there so that that person has return rights. It, it's just the
funding that was removed. So, the EP is still there. We need to comply with
union contracts regarding return rights, and basically that's what you see.
Although there's no dollars, the EP count is still, still there. Members, any more
questions? Member Medeiros, followed...
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Miyazono, thank you
for your testimony. Does the Department have the prerogative to move people
from district to district in order to assist at certain times?
MR. MIYAZONO: Yes, we do.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So, somebody that working centrally, central
can go to East Maui parks and so forth?
MR. MIYAZONO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And we did talk about, some of the testifiers
did when speaking for the parks did talk about the positions in the East Maui
parks, right, that you've been talking about too. So, just as a recap, it was
mentioned that there are two Caretakers that take care of the Kula area, how many
at Makawao?
MR. MIYAZONO: Makawao I'm not certain. He may have said two-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, okay.
MR. MIYAZONO: --two as well.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And then the other part was Pukalani, was that
three?
MR. MIYAZONO: There's Pukalani and Haliimaile. That's the same work crew.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, same work crew?
MR. MIYAZONO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And how many would be there?
MR. MIYAZONO: Two.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Two?
MR. MIYAZONO: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And, and so the Kula one also takes care Sun
Yat Sen?
MR. MIYAZONO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Alright. Thank you for your information and
testimony this morning. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I, I believe he said three Makawao.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any more questions for our testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And thank, yeah, thank you, Chair. And thank
you, Mr. Miyazono, for being here. I appreciate. You know, when you, you're
talking about East Maui, but in, in overall when you looked at all these deletions
from various Caretakers and Rec Aides and all that from all of your, your
Departments, right. Do you feel that beyond the Caretaker the rest of these
positions, do you feel we could freeze 'em and not have a problem right now? I
mean, I know it's gonna be harder, right? I mean, we all understand that. But
times are tough so we gotta make some tough decisions.
MR. MIYAZONO: As I look at the priorities, and certainly that's the reason why I kinda
concentrate on the Park Caretakers. Certainly from the standpoint of the Rec
Aides, it would certainly affect our recreational programs. We certainly will
continue to service the youths, possibly not servicing the adults as much as we've
done in the past. We have been providing them with staff, but probably as it
comes along that they may have to provide funding for their own staff, like
referee, umpires, score keepers, and so on and so forth. So certainly we wanna
continue the service with the youths, but I think it's gonna affect the programs
more so from the adults. The adult programs.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And when you say adult programs, would this be
our senior programs, our senior softball and all the other programs that we
provide for our seniors?
MR. MIYAZONO: Yeah. I apologize for...I'll clarify from the standpoint --59-
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. MIYAZONO: --of adults and seniors.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. MIYAZONO: You know, seniors and youths are, are our priorities. So certainly
from the standpoint of servicing and funding, that's the least amount of impact we
want to have on those particular populations. So it would...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So you, so what you're referring to is like the 30
and over, 40 and over, 50 and over basketball leagues and softball leagues, you
know. You get all these different leagues out there. They will now be tasked
with picking up whatever expenses maybe we have been generous in helping
them in the past with?
MR. MIYAZONO: Yes, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And then the other part was a question I
wanted your, your take on was the security officers, park rangers, whatever and
the Special Events Coordinator, 'cause I think you've worked closely with them
in the past. Without the Special Events Coordinator, and, and again, they've been
TA'ing all this time, but if we don't get one, what effect do you think it would
have on all the overall, in your area, all the overall parks?
MR. MIYAZONO: I think from the standpoint of putting more burden on our districts
would be very difficult. Well, first of all, from the standpoint of special events,
you know, it would be our responsibility, but making it very difficult to really run
those programs properly, because of their ongoing responsibilities that they have.
Aside from that, you know, we also depend on them very much on the security
services that they provide. And without having someone to communicate with,
you know, the coordination and the supervision of these particular enforcement
officers would be very difficult. And, you know, it would be difficult to come up
with something that would be as effective as compared to if there was that person
in place.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And in, in closing, Mr. Miyazono, if the
Department, in my mind, would give us, you know, of all these deletions, if
they'd give us what is essentially needed. And I think that's the word I wanna
use. Like Mr. Namauu said, half. I can live with the cavalry arriving in that
sense. What of all the rest that are being proposed by, by the budget we are
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putting out here, if you could give us that. At least then, in our minds, we have
something to work with. I think that would be very, very helpful. And, and, and
what we can live without this year, although there may be some uncomfortable
and maybe some less services offered to the public, hey, we have less services in
the private sector also. We understand these are tough economic times. So,
whatever we can do to be realistic I would appreciate. I think, Mr. Chair, if the
departments would bring forward what they really, really need and what they can
live without for now, I think that would be fair all around, and then we can make
some real, what I call real true, good decisions. And then we find the money
wherever we can find the money. But thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. In regards to your Recreation Aide, you know,
those positions were frozen and unfunded at the request of the Department. In
regards to your, just a comment from this Chair, with the manpower that you have
today, you're still functioning as Parks and Recreation? Am I right?
MR. MIYAZONO: Could you repeat your question again?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: As, as far as I'm concerned, with the number of personnel that
you have at this time, you're still functioning as Parks and Recreation.
MR. MIYAZONO: Yes, we are.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Member Molina, followed by
Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. Mr. Miyazono, one quick
question. In the East Maui parks district, do you get support, Ka Lima 0 Maui,
do they provide the Department assistance there?
MR. MIYAZONO: No. They just provide services in South Maui and Central Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So, our East Maui parks will feel it more than
when we, you know, if we lose manpower versus the other park areas, yeah?
MR. MIYAZONO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Alright. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Miyazono, I may have
missed it, but I wanna note it down. You said one position the person retired and
one the incumbent left the, the Department. Can you identify those by numbers
for me?
MR. MIYAZONO: I'm not really certain which one is which, but we got PR-0206 -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. MIYAZONO: --and PR-0350.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Three, five...okay. Thank you, Mr. Miyazono.
Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair? One quick question, if I may?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank, thank you, Chair. Mr. Miyazono, you
mentioned earlier that you can transfer or send people from Central Maui to East
Maui to help when there's shortages of manpower. What does that entail? Is
there premium pay? Is there travel time? Is there...what, what is the procedure
when you take someone from one area and move 'em to another area as a
temporary to help that area out?
MR. MIYAZONO: Normally, the union would come in and request for possibly travel
time-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. MIYAZONO: --gas, gas money. And I think those are the thing that comes to mind
from the standpoint of the requirement. As part of the recruitment, we do allow,
in this particular case as I mentioned earlier, that we are ready to interview for
these positions. We, we have opened it up to all of the districts within the whole
County, more from the standpoint of the half-time Park Caretakers. So, we,
we've...
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I just wanted to know if, if, if there was any
kind, you know, like sometimes you have to pay 'em, you know, overtime or
premium time and all that kind. But no, it's just if any...probably travel and gas
from their primary base station to wherever they'd be assigned to.
MR. MIYAZONO: That's correct. They may even request for a vehicle at times, but...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you for that clarification. Thank
you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just one last comment. Mr. Miyazono, you know,
we got copies of the vacancy list from Department of Personnel, and, and I would
encourage you to look at that, because some of the dates that they show, you
know, vacancies go back, you know, two, three, maybe four or five years. And if
it's not required at that time up to today, why is it all, you know, all of a sudden it
all becomes required. So, if you can take a look at the vacancy list, because it
does tell you something that maybe we didn't need the positions at that time. So,
thank you. Thank you for being here.
Next testifier is Laura Seaton, followed by Tamara Horcajo.
MS. SEATON: Good morning everybody. Thank you for your time particularly during
these trying times and particularly with that smell? Does it always smell this
good up here?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (Laughter)...
MS. SEATON: If it did, it wouldn't be so scary. ... (laughs)... I am Laura Seaton. I am
the new Administrative Officer for the Department of Parks and Recreation. I
transferred from, after six and a half years serving, the Department of Public
Works. And I am speaking to you on behalf of the proposed elimination and of
two EPs at the County-owned and -operated Waiehu Golf Course. And this is on
Page 22 of the Chair proposal, Exhibit 1. The positions in question are PR-0053,
Golf Course Groundskeeper I, which is vacant, and PR-0239, Golf Course
Groundskeeper II, which is filled and has been for a few years now. In last year's
Fiscal 2010 Budget, a position was incorrectly identified by DPS as vacant when
in reality it was not. We also had a similar situation with a position in Public
Works. In both instances, the position was unfunded in the current fiscal year
budget. Also in both instances, because we could not get funding restored to the
positions, we used a combination of operating funds and a position vacancy
within the same workgroup to keep that employee working. We made the choice.
Since the Groundskeeper II position is able to use mechanical equipment and is
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able to accomplish a wider variety of tasks at a minimal difference in salary,
$1,380 a year, we chose to keep an incumbent in the Groundskeeper II position
and not fill the Groundskeeper I position. The current Council proposal to cut not
only the funding but the EP for these two positions will eliminate a currently
filled position, and will put a currently employed golf course employee on the
street. The Waiehu Golf Course is a unique place in the County park system with
over 230 folks, most of whom are residents, using the course daily. We
constantly hear the cry from those users and from County officials to improve the
course, and the crew does what they can and they do their best. Funding
continues to be the challenge, yet we are very confident that the crew we have at
the golf course now is doing all they can to keep the course in the best shape it
can be -MR. KANESHINA: Two minutes.
MS. SEATON: --at this time. We respectfully and emphatically request that you
reconsider restoring the funding ,and implore you not to eliminate the EPs. If we
need to continue to do more with less, we can accept that. But do not take the EP
away. By eliminating this EP, you are eliminating a filled position, which not
only takes the position from under a permanent County employee, it sets us up for
violation of the UPW Bargaining Unit 1 Contract and potentially may set us up
for liability. If you have to take the money, take the money. There is no benefit
to us financially for you to eliminate the EPs. Please do not take the EPs.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. SEATON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Before I call Members for questions, thank you for
bringing forward that one of the positions is filled. And if you can, identify that
position?
MS. SEATON:
That would be PR-0239, Groundskeeper...Golf Course
Groundskeeper II.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. And, and again, you know, we receive
vacancy reports and, and, I'm, I'm glad that all of you are coming here testifying
on all of the positions, because that gives us an idea if you guys are current on
your positions in your Department. So, in regards to you just mentioning that this
one position is filled, you know, we're not so naïve that we not going fill 'em -MS. SEATON: ... (Laughs)...
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: --you know, put back the funding. That's not the intent. And
we all understand, you know, UPW, HGEA contracts, and we gotta abide by
those contracts. So, thank you. Members, questions? Member Nishiki followed
by Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you. I don't like a cloud over my head in a
decision-making situation. So, for you to say that we may be violating a UPW
contract concerns me. You either know if there is a violation or you don't. Is
there a violation -MS. SEATON: The...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --in how we are dealing with these positions being
eliminated and one being unfunded?
MS. SEATON: If you delete the...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Speak to both of 'em.
MS. SEATON: I, I am. If you delete the EP of one that is unfunded, if you delete the EP
of a vacant position, there are no repercussions. If you delete the EP of a filled
position, we haven't been in that position before. So, I, I can't speak confidently
on what would happen, but it would be a problem. It would definitely be a
problem particularly with the union because we would be eliminating a filled
position that is filled by a permanent full-time employee.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So, the other one, 0053, you don't really know whether
there is a violation or not?
MS. SEATON: There won't be a violation.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MS. SEATON: It, the, the concern is we used 53 to fund 239, because 239, even though
it was filled, was not funded last fiscal year.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Got it. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Laura, good morning.
Thank you for being here. And I didn't know you moved to the Parks.
...(Laughs)... Tell me, when we were going through the process of our budget
from the beginning and this is not only a question for you, for the other
departments...we referred to a vacancy list that was upgraded for us by DPS.
Knowing that we're looking at that list, does any of the departments go and ask
for the same list and see if the list was current and accurate?
MS. SEATON: Well, I think that what DPS has in their records of what's happening
with the position -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MS. SEATON: --can be very different to what's happening within the department with a
position. And when you ask for information from an isolated source, potentially
the risk is run that you're going to get information from only one perspective. For
example, if you take a list only from DPS, you're not communicating with the
Department, so the Department has different information. For example, if you're
using a list that was generated from DPS on March 10 th , it's now April 27 th , six
weeks is a long time, and a lot of things can change between this date and
March 10 th . So, it's frustrating to be held accountable for a dynamic thing, a thing
that's constantly changing and constantly flux, fluxing, and from only the
perspective of the Department of Personnel and not from the Department itself.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And you make, and you bring up some good
points as far as that list. But I, I think it would have been good for the
departments to look at the same list the Council was looking at and making a
decision on, especially the Chair's proposal. You know, he looked at the most
current and latest list of employees and what DPS had, and, you know, he crafted
his proposal accordingly. So, I think if the departments had different information
on particular positions, it would have been good to bring it to our attention or at
least to the Chair's attention.
MS. SEATON: And I agree.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MS. SEATON: And personally, if I may make a personal comment, I find it unfortunate
that that doesn't happen anyway.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
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MS. SEATON: And that why, why this issue is looked at from a vacuum of one
department or the other department when we all should be figuring this out
together is very frustrating from a department standpoint as well.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. SEATON: And, and it's unfortunate that we can't have an open conversation about
it. And so when the list is generated, both the department and DPS are confident
of what's on that list at that time.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. Right. Thank you for your information. I
think the Chair, in requesting that list, I believe goes through the Administration,
who makes the request from DPS. So, it is a dynamic list, like you say, and I
think yeah, we need to be more current and accurate with it. Thank you for your
testimony. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And just to let you know that we sent out another
request to all of the departments to identify from the detail budget looking at the
vacancy list to ensure, not the vacancy list, but to looking at the number of
employees that were within the department to ensure that the, the, if a position
was vacant, you would identify the vacant position so we could match it with
Department of Personnel. So, you know, we did compare both from the
departments and Personnel the vacancy list. So, whatever you see in here is
basically the result of those two studies. Thank you.
MS. SEATON: And, and if I could just make one very brief comment in the, in
connection to the position I'm speaking of, PR-0239, that position shows in the
budget as unfunded. So, it's understandable that the Council or anyone else who
would look at the budget would say oh, it's an unfunded position where in reality
it actually has a person in it. So, you may be taking information directly from the
budget and making an assumption because it is unfunded that perhaps it is
unfilled.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. You know, there's a lot of positions that were, you
know, we find out that it's now filled, because somehow, somewhere funding was
available to fund those positions. And in this case here, you utilized funding from
another position to fill that position, so, you know, that's the choice that you guys
make because this is a program budget. So, going forward, some of the hard
decisions that are being made because this is a program budget, you know, you
could utilize the program budget to your advantage in some cases. And in this
case here, on the Fiscal Year 2011, we're giving you guys the opportunity to run
your operation based on the program budget.
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MS. SEATON: And, and we appreciate that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MS. SEATON: And my main point is the elimination of EPs removes that opportunity
and ties our hands. So, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next testifier is Tamara Horcajo, followed by
Agnes Hayashi.
MS. HORCAJO: Good afternoon. Oh, it's morning. Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning.
MS. HORCAJO: My name is Tamara Horcajo and I am the Director of the Department
of Parks and Recreation, and I truly thank you for your attention and patience this
morning with allowing our staff to bring this to our concern. We received the first
draft of the Council's proposed budget yesterday afternoon, and I'll say we were
devastated. Our Department had worked very hard with Budget Office and the
Mayor's Office to bring to you a budget that showed that we understand that this
is a unique time in our lives and in our County. We had, as Chair Pontanilla
indicated, the Department had identified positions to not fill in order to create
savings. We are capping our programs. We are reducing services to our youth,
who are our priority, as well as our seniors. We are capping programs in PALS as
well, because we don't have the current, the money currently, 'cause for the past
three years we have been doing cuts. We have eliminated services in some of our
recreation programs for our adults. We're moving our evening programs to
daytime to save on electrical. We're closing pools on holidays. We are
anticipating additional cuts, of course with the closure of pools once a week in
each district. We will be looking at cutting again programs, and that was with
before we received -MR. KANESHINA: Two minutes.
MS. HORCAJO: --this devastating blow. I do understand that it is difficult with the
Personnel information as well as ours. We are a dynamic Department. I believe
we're the second largest in number after the Police Department for employees.
So, we have recruitments that are in-house, promotion without exam, and
recruitments that are outside the Department. I'm going to take you to Page 19
very quickly, 'cause I know I only have a couple minutes. The Special Events
Specialist position that was vacant, unfortunately the park ranger program was
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just tacked on to that existing position with no mention or change...no mention of
those supervisory responsibilities in the Special Events Specialist position.
MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MS. HORCAJO: Therefore, we cannot, because the position is not adequate, doesn't
have an adequate position description, DPS would not allow us to recruit again,
which is the correct thing, because the position description hasn't been updated.
We have updated our position descriptions. We have identified one of the Park
Security Officers as a supervisor for the rangers, and we have submitted that
information. That is why these positions have been vacant. We have been
working on them to create appropriate job descriptions and another table of
organization. On the next page, the Aquatics programs -MR. KANESHINA: Four minutes.
MS. HORCAJO: --which is Page 20. The three positions that were mentioned by the
Aquatics Chief are essential for our plan. We had identified all those other
positions for you and for the Mayor that we know we can do without. We, we
figured out how to close the pools. We figured that out. So, we are looking at
those three positions that we need. If we can go on to Page 21, the Department
has been working, as you probably know, for eight years on park maintenance
standards. We know how many Park Caretakers we need in order to clean the
restroom one time a day, to mow every ten days. We have this information. We
finally are getting into the position to be able to recruit and create those positions.
Four of the Park Caretaker positions in east district -MR. KANESHINA: Five minutes.
MS. HORCAJO: --have recently just been created, and I'm saying within the past
month. It's taken us that long with DPS to get these going. It's unfortunate that
they got caught right now in this timeframe. I do want to just say quickly that the
South Maui parks, we've been...I think it was said, great, trying to do more with
less. We have 17 acres coming on-line. That's 17 acres open from 6:00 in the
morning `til 10:00 at night, seven days a week with two positions. And with the
elimination of the District Supervisor, it's going to be a bit of a mess. So, we
strongly...we'll do all our homework. We'll get the information in that we can.
And we appreciate your support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Presently, do you have one temporarily assigned
person to be the acting District Supervisor to the West Maui area...Kihei area?
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MS. HORCAJO: That's correct. The South Maui Recreation Technician is assigned
temporarily to this, because there is no funding attached, so we couldn't afford to
hire. However, you know that there is cuts in the program there, because that is
our full-time recreation staff. With the coming of the new park and facilities
there, it will be a stretch for this position.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And again, the supervisor's position, because the
person is now, I guess, in the Administration, the EP still remains without the
funding?
MS. HORCAJO: We would very much plead, humbly, to keep the EPs even if we don't
get to keep funding for other positions. We have finally figured out, not finally,
but we know what we need in our parks, and if the EPs can stay, when times are
better, then we'll all work together to get those filled.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Tamara, the, on Page 19, which is the Special
Events Specialist, you said that has been re-described. Do we know what the
level of pay is and the, you know, the position description?
MS. HORCAJO: The Special Events Specialist will stay at an SR-22, so that position
will continue to be that, to keep that rating.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, do you know what the level of pay is for an
SR-22?
MS. HORCAJO: I believe it's indicated right here -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh.
MS. HORCAJO: --the $45,576 that's being -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MS. HORCAJO: --proposed.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So, so you got that. And then I guess the
$64,000 question is, if it's taking so long from Personnel Services for you to get
this information so that you can adequately staff and then try and prepare a
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budget, what, what is, what do you believe is the problem in Personnel Services
that you're not getting the information that you need when you need it?
MS. HORCAJO: I really do feel bad for the Council and the departments not being able
to be exactly on the same page and understanding, 'cause this is critical to all of
us. And again, I guess the Department feels like they submitted what we could
submit without that. Some dialogue with the Department and I will assist in
providing that. I believe that we did provide to the Council justification that those
positions were in the process of being reorganized and re-described. So, that was,
that was given to Council.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and what was the turn-around time? What's the
average turn-around time? When you send a request forward to Personnel
Services, what, what are you looking at? I mean, six months? A year?
MS. HORCAJO: To re-describe a position and do a re-org is probably, I'll go out here to
say one to two years -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, my lord.
MS. HORCAJO: --in order to get, to get the work done. And that, that may be a
different information for...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
MS. HORCAJO: But that's been our, our Department's experience.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That, that's all I need to know because the problem is
clearly not with what our departments are trying to do. But it rests in another
area. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just a fast question, who does the re-description,
the Department of Parks or any department, or the Department of Personnel?
MS. HORCAJO: For the positions in our budget, the Department of Parks submits a
position description to the Department of what we feel is needed in our park. As I
understand it from DPS, they need to evaluate that position to find out if there are
other positions Statewide that have that. And that is probably part of what takes
the time, is to look Statewide. I know that we are doing something unique with
our special events, and we're trying to find the correct supervision there, so that
may be a part of the concern as well.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Thank you.
Member Kaho' ohalahala?

Members, any more questions?

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Yeah. I, I think my questions are
along the same lines as yours, Chair, and that of Member Johnson, that all you do
is that you make your own description. And is, is there a format in which you
follow to do so?
MS. HORCAJO: We do use other examples from Civil Service.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: You have similar positions within the
Department?
MS. HORCAJO: That have similar positions.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then you use that as a guide to help
you re-describe this other position that you need?
MS. HORCAJO: Yes, we do.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And after having done so, then you're
saying you have no more control over that process, and it takes two years then to
complete?
MS. HORCAJO: In, in the case of Parks Department, unfortunately, you know, we have
had some turnover not only on our own staff but in DPS, our liaison staff. So,
with some of these positions, I will say that just the timing was terrible for
us... (laughs).. . in terms of where they landed between vacancies of positions.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. In terms of your comment about it
takes two years -MS. HORCAJO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --to process this. Once you're completed
with your re-description, you've submitted it back to DPS, it now takes two
years?
MS. HORCAJO: That would be worse...my experience has been when we re-described
a position, that we have not seen that happen within a year to two years.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you for the clarification.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, more questions? Seeing none, thank you
again, Tamara. Next testifier is Agnes Hayashi, followed by Milton Arakawa.
Before Ms. Hayashi provides her testimony, Members, we got 11 more testimony
to hear. You guys wanna take your lunch recess -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --or go straight through?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Lunch recess.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Lunch recess? Okay. After Agnes Hayashi, the last
testifier...or maybe Agnes going be the last one, because the number of questions
that are being brought forward, it, it takes almost 15 minutes for a testifier to, to
leave that podium. So, Agnes.
MS. HAYASHI: Thank you. And good morning, Budget and Finance Chair Pontanilla
and Members of the Committee. And hopefully my, my time will not take
15 minutes I will try as hard as I can to go through this and explain it as, as
succinctly as possible. My name is Agnes Hayashi and I am the County Finance
Director [sic] testifying on behalf of the Department of Finance regarding the four
vacancy positions in our Department amounting to approximately 198,000 that
are proposed for elimination.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair? Excuse me, I, I hate to interrupt, but could
she give us the page?
MS. HAYASHI: Sure. I was...I'm sorry, I was getting to that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay. Please?
MS. HAYASHI: Yeah. I'm so sorry.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. HAYASHI: That was proposed for in...that was proposed for elimination in the
Budget and Finance Chair Pontanilla's Proposal dated April 26 th , Pages 6 and 7
specifically.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
MS. HAYASHI: Thank you for allowing me the opportunity to provide testimony. I am
here to further explain the responsibilities of these four positions, and therefore
the need to retain them in the Fiscal Year '11 Budget. While we recognize the
Chair's proposal was to provide just a starting point for this Committee's decision
making, recognizing the very challenging task ahead of you, we believe it critical
to provide you with the necessary information to ensure that you can make
informed, sound decisions Granted you have heard a lot of information this
morning alone. To facilitate your analysis, I have also provided the Committee a
written testimony this morning, letter dated April 26, 2010, which contains the
detailed information, and I will only highlight it in this testimony now. This
memo also offers suggestions and alternatives in the light of the difficult choices
you must make At this time, if I may, I would like to summarize briefly what is
contained in detail in this memo. The first position is the Driver's License
Examiner DF-0096.
MR. KANESHINA: Two minutes.
MS. HAYASHI: This position, this position is in Molokai and it is with the Motor
Vehicle and Licensing function, became recently vacant in March 2010 due to the
retirement of the incumbent employee. This position is only one of two positions,
which provides the full range of driver's licensing and motor vehicle registration
to the residents of Molokai, hence it's critical for the island of Molokai to provide
these satellite office services. Now, to offer some reduction in costs, we do
propose for your consideration the reallocation of the SR-16 Examiner position to
a Service Rep SR-15 position, which would yield a savings of approximately
$6,700, and that is further explained in that memo.
I'd like to move on to the second position, which is the Assistant Accounts
System Administrator position, DF-0174. This position resides in the Accounts
Division. If, if you may recall, it was one of two expansion positions established
in the Fiscal Year '10 Budget as a direct result of concerns raised by the auditors
contracted by the Council to prepare the Fiscal Year '08 CAFR and single audit.
Specifically, the auditors found that the Accounts Division, excuse me, was too
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limited in its resources to meet the financial audit timeline requirements
established by the Maui County Code. Adding resources -MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MS. HAYASHI: --is the strategy that management set upon in Fiscal Year '10 to address
that concern. Clerk III, DF-0035. It's an MVL function and it's to support the
Countywide satellite offices. Please be aware that our proposed budget already
reflected a cost savings resulting from reallocating this position, a cost savings of
approximately $20,000.
And the last position is the Auditor, SR-22 position, and I must say this is a
position that resides in the Director's office. It's very critical in the light of the
economic challenges we're currently facing...for the need for this position.
During difficult financial times like this, fiscal monitoring, internal controls
evaluation, the primary responsibilities of this function, and the only position in
the County dedicated to perform these responsibilities have become even more
critical.
MR. KANESHINA: Four minutes.
MS. HAYASHI: In closing, the Finance Department's perspective is that all Department
positions are highly, are high priority and critical to our strategy to addressing
significant needs within our core functions. In its preparation of the Department's
budget proposal, the Department scrutinized its annual budget to maintain the
slimmest of personnel resources necessary to meet public service needs. As you
have seen over the past several years, the Finance Department has attempted to
minimize our budget. The Department of Finance has maintained a very
conservative financial posture; however, we also do recognize the challenges
confronting the County Council in its deliberation to address the many needs and
requirements of the County -MR. KANESHINA: Five minutes.
MS. HAYASHI: --and respect your decisions. As such, we respectfully ask for your
consideration to reinstate the positions in the Fiscal Year '11 Budget, and if not at
the requested level of funding, then even at zero dollars funding. Please be
assured that the Finance Department will not fill any of these positions in Fiscal
Year '11 if the Council chooses to fund these positions at zero funding. Including
these positions in Fiscal Year '11 even at zero funding provides the Department,
as you've heard from other departments, the critical flexibility in managing our
budget and of having these necessary positions available in future years to
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complete internal functionality and provide the service requirements of the
Department of Finance when the County's fiscal situation does improve. Again,
may I reiterate, I've gone through a lot of information and this is included in great
detail in my memo provided to you April 26, 2010. I thank you for the
opportunity to provide this input.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions? I got...oh, Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, thank you, Chair. And thank you,
Ms. Hayashi, for being here. I don't think I need 15 minutes, but just a little bit of
discussion on your, your letter. I was interested when you talked about the
Auditor, and you were pointing out how important this is to evaluating, you know,
our financial operations and looking for cost analysis and looking at better
internal controls. Can you share with the Committee some of the things that this
office has done this past year in this area?
MS. HAYASHI: Certainly. Last year, we did prepare an audit plan. I will say that
we've had, we had some difficulty encountered in retaining that position. We did
have the position filled, and the incumbent was with the County for three, four
months and the position became vacant again. So, it has been difficult to retain an
employee there. It was further delayed because of our strategy in filling the
requirements of our Accounts Division. This position, which is under the
Director of, which is under the Finance Director's Office, works very closely with
the Accounts Division. About this time when there was that vacancy, we were
also trying to move ahead with filling the expansion positions that I had
mentioned in Fiscal Year '10. We see that those positions will work
complementary with each other, and we were also trying to progress with the
filling of our Accounts Administrator position who retired in November 2009.
So, there was some, there was some conflicting strategies going on, but when
everything is said and done, it would make for a very strong fiscal management
team.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I certainly can understand that, but it seems like there's
been difficulty in keeping that position filled. Yeah.
MS. HAYASHI: That, that's, that appears as such...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Is someone in it at the moment?
MS. HAYASHI: No. It's not...that's why it's a vacant position currently, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
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MS. HAYASHI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
MS. HAYASHI: But we are, we are in the status of...in fact all of these positions are at
the point that they are ready to be filled. It was our strategy to fill them within the
next three months.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you.
MS. HAYASHI: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Fast question from the Chair. These vacancies, how come
wasn't filled earlier? And why wait?
MS. HAYASHI: Certainly. Council Chair Pontanilla, if I may, for each one of them.
The Examiner position has really not been vacant very long. It was...the vacancy
came as a result of the retirement of the incumbent, which occurred in
March 2010.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I understand that one.
MS. HAYASHI: Okay. The Assistant Accounts...the Assistant Accounts System
Administrator, as I had mentioned, there had been a retirement of the incumbent
in November 2009, and we purposefully delayed that filling of this position,
because we felt it was, one of the key reasons, is we felt it was very important that
the Administrator be able to choose her subordinate. That position, the interviews
have been completed, and we are ready to fill in the next two, three months.
The Auditor position, as I have explained before, there were some delays in
actually...we went through the recruitment process. Because of the very limited
list, we did interview everyone on the list. Because of the very limited list and the
list and for the purposes of generating cost savings, we were looking towards
delaying the actual filling until early 2011, again following the filling of the
Accounts Division personnel. And I think I, I missed one.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MS. HAYASHI: I'm sorry. The...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Clerk.
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MS HAYASHI: The Clerk III in the Motor Vehicle and Licensing, that is going through
a reallocation, and the primary reason for that stall is the reallocation, which
we've completed the union consultation, it's ready to fill, and will generate
$20,000 in savings, and so we felt it was important to go through the process of
reallocation although it might delay it, delay filling it, it will generate cost
savings. So that is the justification.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: When you say reallocation, explain?
MS. HAYASHI: Oh, the reallocation. One of the things we tasked our division heads to
do, and we do this, you know, we try to do this every year, obviously, but it
becomes very critical especially during the budget time. We ask our division
heads, we task them with looking at their operations, looking at how they can,
how they can create efficiencies yet effectuate cost effectiveness. In this
particular case, this position is actually a driver's, was actually a driver's licensing
position, and we are proposing to reallocate it to a Clerk III, because in the
assessment of the functionality of the Motor Vehicle and Licensing, we saw a
greater need to be able to make more efficient how we can provide support to our
satellite offices. And that was the intent behind that. In analyzing the workflow
and the efficiencies of the operation, it made sense. The Division had done their
due diligence and we supported that move.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, when this thing was re-described to this Clerk III, in
actuality it was one for one?
MS. HAYASHI: I'm not sure if I understand.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: In other words, you re-described a Driver's License III
position?
MS. HAYASHI: Driver's License Examiner I.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, Examiner I.
MS. HAYASHI: An SR-16 to a Clerk III, which is an SR-10.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, the position that you re-described to this new clerk's
position is in actuality that one position that is, that was a Driver's Licensing
Clerk I that is now a Clerk III?
MS. HAYASHI: Well actually, it was an examiner. So, performed...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, an examiner.
MS. HAYASHI: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What, whatever it is.
MS. HAYASHI: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, there was no gain, in other words?
MS. HAYASHI: Not an increase in EP, if that's what you mean.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So the net is zero?
MS. HAYASHI: The EP count is zero, but the salary savings is a savings of 20,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
MS. HAYASHI: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, questions? I hope you got that. Okay. Thank you.
Thank you, Agnes, for being here.
MS. HAYASHI: Thank you very much for the opportunity to testify.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, it's at that time, so the Chair is gonna recess
this meeting `til 12:30, and when we get back the...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: 12:30?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: 12:30?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 12:00?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I, I'm sorry, to 1:30.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 1:30, yeah? Oh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Almost gave you 2:30.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Whew.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And when we get back, the testifier will be Milton Arakawa.
This meeting is in recess. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

12:07 p.m.
1:32 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is
now reconvened.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, the next testifier this afternoon is Milton Arakawa,
followed by Sheri Morrison.
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. My name is Milton Arakawa, Director of
Public Works. On behalf of the Department of Public Works, we'd like to take
this opportunity to provide the following comments on the Budget and Finance
Committee Chair's proposal for Fiscal Year 2011, Exhibit 1. . .(clears
throat). . .excuse me, Exhibit 1, dated April 26, 2010.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Twenty-seven or twenty-six?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Page?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Twenty-six or twenty-seven?
MR. ARAKAWA: On Page 26 -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay.
MR. ARAKAWA: --of 61, Engineering Program, General Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you.
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MR. ARAKAWA: We would like to request reinstatement of the positions within the
Engineering Program. We believe that deletion will have significant negative
impacts to the Division.
The first position is the Office Operations Assistant II, PW-0485. This position is
a clerical position to help the building maintenance and CIP inspection section
with the increased quantity of project documentation. Without this position,
support for the Traffic Safety Council, Outdoor Lighting Standards Committee,
and Commission on Naming Streets, Parks, and Facilities will also be hurting.
The Engineering Aid III, PW-0018 position, is an active and currently filled
position, and deletion of this position will require laying off an existing staff
person. So, we are asking for reinstatement of the position and funding.
The Civil Engineer VI, PW-0487 position, has an important job overseeing
building maintenance work and construction contracts, including our Federal aid
contracts. The previous incumbent in this position recently moved to another
position within the Engineering Division. Without a section head here, our
building maintenance work and monitoring of construction contracts will also
suffer.
The Land Surveyor I, PW-0013, is the chief for the County's only land surveying
team. This position, along with the Engineering Aid III and Engineering Aid II
are the land surveying team, which does all of the -MR. KANESHINA: Two minutes.
MR. ARAKAWA: --land surveying for County-designed projects. Without these three
positions, there will be no internal survey crew. Thus, all survey work for our
CM will need to be contracted out. Since survey work is a basic prerequisite for
many projects, including many of our resurfacing jobs, this will lengthen project
time as well as require additional money for contracting out the work.
The Engineering Aid II position, PW-0017, was unfunded last year. We did not
fill this position, because funding was not available. And this position is the third
member of the County's only land surveying team, and we are requesting that -MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MR. ARAKAWA: --the unfunded EP remain in the budget. Let me just briefly mention
college interns, PWT-059 and 060 in general. These positions are part-time
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opportunities for future engineers to gain experience within our division, and we
requested the unfunded EP remain in the budget.
We also have a brief comment on Page 27 of 61, Development Services
Administration Program, General Fund. The Clerk III, PW-0658 position, was
reallocated from the Building Permit Review Section to assist the Building,
Plumbing, and Electrical Inspectors. While new construction has slowed down,
renovations as well as complaints and violations have not, and this person will
help ease the workload. And we would suggest that rather than eliminating the
position, an alternative would be to shift this position and the funding to the
Building Permit Revolving Fund.
MR. KANESHINA: Four minutes.
MR. ARAKAWA: And the previous comments relating to the interns also apply here.
We respectfully request your favorable consideration of the comments, and I'll be
happy to answer any questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The position that you want shifted to the
Building...what was, what was the fund again?
MR. ARAKAWA: The Building Permit Revolving Fund. This position was a Land Use
Permit Clerk at one time, and, as I mentioned, it got reallocated. And we wanna
shift it from the Building Permit Review Section to the Building, Plumbing, and
Electrical Inspection Section.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. ARAKAWA: And it was formally funded through the Building Permit Revolving
Fund.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You know, the Land Surveyor that got promoted, Land
Surveyor I, 0013, when did he get promoted?
MR. ARAKAWA: I believe that was last year, last summer.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Members, any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Question. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Good afternoon, Mr. Arakawa.
Just a quick question on the college interns, those two positions. I guess one with
the DSA program as well. Typically, do they work a full day and what rate of pay
do they normally get? Now, you're asking us to basically keep the position, but
no requirement, unfunded, of course.
MR. ARAKAWA: We're asking that the unfunded EP remain, and we are not certain if
this year we're able to fund the college interns. But if the opportunity applies in
the future for next year, it would help if the positions were already established.
And the other thing is if we are given the opportunity to request for funding next
year, the next fiscal year starts in July, so it would be very difficult to find college
interns on July 1. So, it, it makes a difference for us even if it doesn't have a
budget impact this year for Fiscal Year '11.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And they help decrease the workload for your
engineers and...
MR. ARAKAWA: They help quite a bit, because they can do a lot of the field work,
which would preclude the professional engineers from doing it and going out in
the field and doing, doing the...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So, it could save us some money as well, too?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. And, and what, what, you know, what is their
rate of pay typically by hour?
MR. ARAKAWA: It depends on their year of college and I cannot tell you offhand. But
it depends on their year of college.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Coming back to the Civil Engineer VI, when did
the position, or when did the incumbent in this position move?
MR. ARAKAWA: The incumbent in that position recently moved, I believe it was last
month sometime. And this was triggered, because we had a retirement in the
- 83 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 27, 2010

design section head, another Engineer VI position. That person retired at the end
of, I'd say December of last year. So, the existing construction section head
moved over to design, and that was, that's what created the vacancy.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And, you know, the Land Surveyor I, yeah? How come
wasn't filled last year?
MR. ARAKAWA: Actually, this was triggered by a series of events. There was a
retirement in that position actually in 2006, and we did fill the position, Land
Surveyor I position. And...but that person applied for a Land Surveyor II
position, so he moved into that position, which resulted in the vacancy for the
Land Surveyor I.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair. And thank you, Mr. Arakawa. I don't
know if I heard correctly, but was, did you say that the Engineering Aid III is, the
position is filled?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's PW-0018?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: When was it filled?
MR. ARAKAWA: It was filled around summer of 2009.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, okay. Here we go again. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, any more questions for Mr. Arakawa? So,
that one position that you mentioned in DSA could be funded through the
Building Permit Revolving Fund?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes, that's what we are suggesting.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. Okay. Members, any more questions? Seeing none,
thank you, Milton.
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you very much.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier is Sheri Morrison, followed by Bill Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: ... (Laughs)...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Not you, Bill. The other Bill. No get nervous,
Bill. ... (laughs)...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's okay, Bill.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good afternoon, everyone. My name is
Sherri Morrison. I'm the Managing Director for the County of Maui. I'm
speaking today on behalf of the Mayor and the hundreds of employees working
on behalf of the County and the community Our employees are real people with
real jobs to do and they have come before you today and other days, because
they're dedicated, like you, to public service and because they care about their
community For all these and others, I'm here today to request that as you review
the revised budget, you remember the heavy responsibilities these employees bear
each day.
Since the summer of 2008 through 2009 and in their FY 2010 budgets, these
employees have been asked to reduce expenditures. You have not seen all the
many good services and proposals that have ended up on the cutting room floor.
Spending and resources have been reduced, yet the workload remains. For all
those employees who have seen the current proposal and have felt shocked at the
number of positions that would be abolished, I request that you take another look.
Simply going through a list of positions that may or may not happen to be vacant
on any given day and abolishing them will be much more destructive than you
may intend. Each position is tied to other positions and to an overall management
plan to accomplish the goals and objectives in each department, in each division,
and each section.
I ask you to first look at the immediate and long term impact on services before
chopping a random list. We have seen how that has impacted State government
and made it dysfunctional, and I don't think that's what we all want here. It is
also painful to hear the discussion of reallocations, re-descriptions, position
classifications, vacancy report and delays at DPS. These are the result of the red
tape created by what I believe is an archaic civil service system. Rather than
asking you to go through the work that even long-time managers find tedious and
frustrating, I have another approach to suggest. It's important to realize that the
budget proposal you received from the Mayor took many months to be finalized.
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Departments were asked over and over to reprioritize, and now the Council has
the benefit of over 5 million more in funds that we did not have access to when
preparing this budget. The CAFR was not yet completed, the Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report, and Real Property Tax Certification had not yet
occurred. There are sufficient funds to balance this budget without removing all
these positions.
If you, at the same time, feel the County should further reduce expenses, then let's
spend some time during the next year deciding together which programs, services,
or grants should be discontinued. Let's ask the public to redefine priorities. This
is a positive and productive approach that we can all work on together.
I would also respectively ask you to reconsider reductions in the Mayor's
Office -MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MS. MORRISON: --and in the Department of Management. I've asked those in the
Department of Management to provide you with testimony today to assist you. In
the Mayor's Office, a budget position that is temporarily vacant was removed.
This is a person that works part-time during the year to assist with the input of
data required for the complex details of the CIP budget and the six-year plan. It is
vacant until we start once again to prepare an annual budget. Without this staff,
you will receive much less information to assist you in your decision making and
staff in the budget office who do not receive overtime will be asked to sacrifice
even further.
As you well know, I respect the work of the Council. I worked here many years
and understand the important role this body plays in our way of government. I
ask you to respect and listen carefully to those employees who have come before
you and who will come before you again, because as I said, like you, they do care
about their work and about their community. Thank you, Mr Chair and
Members.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you. Oh, Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Thank you for being here
this afternoon. I just wanted to clarify from you. In part of your testimony, you
said that there is sufficient funds and I just wanna ask you how much and where is
that?
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MS. MORRISON: In the budget that...in two ways there are sufficient funds from my
perspective. Certainly the budget that the Mayor submitted included all these
positions, and funded them. In addition, the Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report was not completed at the time that the Budget staff had to prepare
estimates from the Finance Department and from Departments as to what the
revenue would be -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MS. MORRISON: --for this coming year. As a result of not having that information,
they were unable to give you an accurate number for Carryover/Savings. The
Carryover/Savings number, I think Mr. Pablo provided some communication
about that in the last couple of days, was increased by 4 9 million beyond what we
had available to consider in preparation of this budget. That shows up in, on I
think Page 2 of this document. In addition, the Real Property Tax Certification
occurs every year on April 19 th , and there were 200 and some odd dollars,
200,000, excuse me, more dollars that were added to this budget, which would
add together make certainly more than $5 million. So, from our perspective, even
without the 5 million, we had proposed a balanced budget with all these proposals
included in it. However, in addition, you also have that -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MS. MORRISON: --those funds.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you so much for that information.
Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Seeing none,
thank you, Sheri, for being here.
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros, followed by Denny Schwind.
MR. MEDEIROS: I did that to make sure that it was this Bill Medeiros.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (Laughter)...
MR. MEDEIROS: Chair Pontanilla, Members of the County Council Budget and
Finance Committee, good morning. My name is Bill Medeiros. I'm the
Geographic Services Manager in the Geographic Analysis and Cartographic
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Services Division in the Department of Management. I'm speaking on our
section in the Budget Chair's recommendation, which is Page 15 on Exhibit 1,
Item MGT 12-7. And there's a reduction to our premium pay from $10,300 to
$1,300. Premium pay is primarily for us overtime. And during our normal
operations, we do not generate a lot of overtime, incidental overtime. We're
pretty tight on those kind of things. So historically, overtime has primarily been
occurred for emergency and disaster response and critical projects that require
either time-sensitive deadlines or have night meetings involved or something like
that. So, it's always a special kind of a thing that occurs, that requires us to put
out overtime. The $1,300 equates to just over 43 hours of overtime for mid-level
GIS analysts. Mid-level means GIS Analyst III. We have a few above that and
one person below that. The Analyst III also includes a position, which is
specifically created for, to support Civil Defense, Fire, Police, and other
emergency services during emergencies such as tsunami, flooding, fires,
hurricanes, and earthquakes. And the person has to report to the Operation Center
when they're called to support those kinds of activities, including not only the
main kind of things, the big things like hurricanes and tsunami, but also during
fire. You know, so when we have wild fire, we also provide support to Fire
Department. My concern is that this is 43 hours of overtime.
MR. KANESHINA: Two minutes.
MR. MEDElROS: So, multiple events or one major event that extended over two days,
we don't exhaust our overtime for like the entire year. And so that's why I just
wanted to bring that up. The other thing is the furlough day also increases the
potential of an event like that occurring on a day that somebody's not working.
Alright? So, if it occurs during work time, we, the OT is shortened. If it occurs
on the weekend or on the day off, they're gonna be OT the, the whole time they're
on duty.
And so, in summary, our normal day-to-day operations can be maintained with
the proposed budget reduction. However, it, if services are required to support a
disaster or special project, I feel that the available funding would be expended
quickly. Thank you, Chair Pontanilla and Members. If you have any questions,
feel free to ask.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for Mr. Medeiros?
Councilmember Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. And thank you,
Mr. Medeiros, for being here this afternoon. Tell me if I heard right that the
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reduced premium pay would be equal to 43 hours of overtime? Is that correct? Is
that what you said?
MR. MEDEIROS: That's what I just calculated out. It's about 43 days, 43 hours -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Hours.
MR. MEDEIROS: --or about just under two days of overtime.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. Okay. What, what was the actual premium
pay used in the two previous budget cycles?
MR. MEDEIROS: We've used very little overtime, and so we're not anywhere close to
10,000.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, okay. Okay.
MR. MEDEIROS: My concern is more proactive. If an event, you know, we've, so in
the last tsunami, we ran up about $400. We had two people taking OT and that
was one day. And so we've been lucky in the last few years that we haven't had
anything occur over a weekend like this last, the tsunami.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MR. MEDEIROS: And so, like I said, day-to-day operations it's not a problem.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. MEDEIROS: But I just did wanna bring up that it would be, we would have an
issue if we had a long-term thing.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MR. MEDEIROS: And certainly if we end up negative and we have to come back for
say supplemental, you'd be fully correct to ask me why I didn't tell you guys
upfront. And so, I felt it was just important to at least bring up that impact so
you're aware of it.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And, and normally when it involves
overtime, or your, your section gets called upon to respond or to provide services,
who are the agencies that normally would call you to respond and, and, you know,
be a part of doing what you have to do for those agencies?
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MR. MEDEIROS: Yeah. Most of the time, it'll be Civil Defense, perhaps Fire
Department. And then at some point maybe Police Department, although Police
has a lot of support already built within their thing.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. MEDEIROS: And we can...and normally if they're doing a special operation or
something -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MR. MEDEIROS: --we, we do that work in advance, provide them the, the data they
need, whether it's maps or actual data.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh. Uh-huh.
MR. MEDEIROS: And so rarely do we get called in at night. So, the night calls are
usually coming out of emergency operations.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh. Uh-huh.
MR. MEDEIROS: Civil Defense.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. Okay. Thank you, Mr. Medeiros.
Appreciate the information and your testimony. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thanks.
MR. MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Denny Schwind, followed by Jacob Verkerke.
MR. SCHWIND: Good afternoon, Council Chair Pontanilla and Members of the Budget
and Finance Committee. My name is Dennis Schwind. I go by Denny, or DJ.
My responsibility under the Managing Director's Office is that of the Chief
Security Officer for the County of Maui. I'm here this afternoon to discuss the
Budget Chair's recommendation on Page 15, Exhibit 1, Management 12-3 whose
recommendation is to eliminate funding for the maintenance and service
agreements for the Countywide security system. I think it's important to know
that the Countywide integrated security system encompasses over 15 of our
facilities on all three islands, including this building, Kalana Pakui Building, the
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Wailuku Courthouse, all of the Motor Vehicle Driver's Licensing service centers,
and last but not least our golf course maintenance building and all of the Maui
Police Department facilities all use the same system. The software and hardware
systems failures requires service technicians to attend, excuse me, attention, and
the costs for these services are addressed as part of the annual service agreement
both on the hardware and software side. The system security agreement includes
all transportation costs for the technicians, air, ground, lodging, running
diagnostics, cost of all parts, component shipping charges, and all labor fees. The
cost...it also covers the cost of upgrades for our digital video recorders, and
software for all new releases of the access control software, network software for
our closed-circuit television systems. And is also included at an average cost of
about $7,000 annually per facility, or I kinda did a slight calculation, about $600 a
month -MS. REVELS: Two minutes.
MR. SCHWIND: --per facility. While the County's information systems are supported
by the MIS Division, the Countywide security system is coordinated and managed
by myself and Captain Hudson down for the Maui Police Department, through
this annual service agreement to ensure that the system is functioning, I guess, as
advertised. Eliminating this funding will not only allow the service and critical
support of the Countywide integrated security system, reducing the funding
amount and attempting to operate the system on an incident-by-incident basis on a
price-per-basis of materials would be more expensive and inefficient. Last, but
not least, without the security system agreement, each service call would require
the County to pay for the technician's time from the time in which the technician
was dispatched until the time the job was completed -MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. SCHWIND: --any and all transportation costs, air, ground again, lodging if
required, all costs for loaner equipment, costs for replacing components, some of
which can cost upwards of $10,000 each, and shipping for all replacement parts.
And I also wrote myself a note, the cost of all software upgrades, which are now
included in this annual maintenance agreement.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's it?
MR. SCHWIND: ... (Laughs)... That's it. And if you look around you, there's, there's
like four devices in this Council Chambers that are tied into the Countywide
system.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Chairman, thank you. Thank you. Mr. Schwind, thank you
very much for your testimony. And I'm just, I'm just gonna ask for clarification
so I can get a better understanding of, I guess, the Managing Director's request for
funding. Because in the details itself, there was a separation between County
Facilities Security Projects and the general operation for the MD's office. Then
I'm taking it to understand at this point that the funding you refer to was not really
listed under security, County Facilities Security, but listed somewhere else? Is, is
that what I'm, I'm understanding?
MR. SCHWIND: There's two appropriations within the Department of Management.
One is for the maintenance of the security system, and one is for the expansion, in
other words new requisitions or procurements for the system. I believe, if I'm not
mistaken, that the maintenance of the security system is in an appropriation that
shares other costs of maintaining other equipment within the Managing Director's
Office. So the separate line item would be for the expansion of the system itself.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: And that expansion item, can you tell me what the dollar value
of that expansion?
MR. SCHWIND: The expansion is $35,000. That's kind of what we've been averaging
over the last five or six years.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. So, actually, it's not, it's not broken down into security,
facility security, and regular operations then? You're just recognizing the 35,000
as a project or an expansion?
MR. SCHWIND: It's a separate line item in, in the Managing Director's budget for
35,000. I believe it's Countywide security, I don't have the document in front of
me.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah. Yeah, it...yeah. It lists the 35,000.
MR. SCHWIND: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: But the other references you're referring to are existing
contracts -MR. SCHWIND: Yes.
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: --that currently exist -MR. SCHWIND: --that is correct.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: --for security services?
MR. SCHWIND: That's correct. Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: But it's not lumped all together for security?
MR. SCHWIND: No. It, it's not a separate line item for security. It is included within a
maintenance appropriation -VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay.
MR. SCHWIND: --of which the...
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Then, then, Mr. Schwind, the other funding sources that
would be listed under Professional Services or Other Cost Services, those funds
could not be utilized to assist in dealing with the security needs?
MR. SCHWIND: They're all earmarked for a specific purpose.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Well, specific purposes doesn't really recognize, is not
really recognized other than like what you're recognizing, you know, Security
Services. It's just listed under Services and Contracts. That's not specific.
MR. SCHWIND: Yes. By sub-object code, that's kind of the definition that Finance
looks for under those maintenance -VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Oh. Okay.
MR. SCHWIND: --generic maintenance agreements, so the security system was just put
into that -VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay.
MR. SCHWIND: --particular sub-object code.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I guess it's just as clear
as anything else.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Fast question. Who is the provider for this service
repair agreement?
MR. SCHWIND: The company that provides the services both hardware and software
for us is Security Resources out of Honolulu. They were awarded a contract
based on competitive bid back in 2001-2002 Fiscal Year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And the contract runs for how long?
MR. SCHWIND: The contract is renewed annually and up until we go out for bid again,
until for some reason the system needs to be replaced. Right now, it's still being
expanded.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So...
MR. SCHWIND: But that is our standard. They are our Countywide standard.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You know what Chairman Mateo had just mentioned about
there is another item regarding security. Why couldn't that number, your repair
and maintenance, be included as part of the security system for this County?
Because makes sense.
MR. SCHWIND: One is for maintaining what's in-house right now once equipment
comes off of warranty, and the other is for procurement for new purchases, this
kind of way of separating the two costs.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I'm just looking at some of the previous years in regards
to description and justifications, and in the Countywide building improvements,
you know, it's noted in several areas that...or in several years in regards to
security improvements. And I don't know how much money you spent doing
security improvements in, in those years, if any.
MR. SCHWIND: I don't have any savings at the end of the year, so basically we have
been looking at 35,000 for expansion over the last five or six years, and then the
maintenance again has been increasing based on how long the equipment has been
installed and new equipment that comes off of warranty. So that side has been
growing, and will continue to grow as equipment ages. Some of it's getting eight
or nine years old now and will need to be replaced. The 35,000 the Managing
Director has been gracious enough to provide for expansion, and that amount has
been consistent for the last four or five years.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you, Denny.
MR. SCHWIND: You're welcome. Thank you for the opportunity.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next is Jacob Verkerke, followed by Ann Cua.
MR. VERKERKE: Good afternoon, Chair, Members of the Committee. My name is
Jacob Verkerke. I'm the Manager for the MIS Division for the County, and I'll
be speaking on Exhibit 1, Page 15, Item...Management 12-5. The proposed
$152,000 reduction in the C Account creates an overall reduction in the proposed
MIS budget compared to Fiscal Year 2009, start of the economic crisis, of
20 percent. This puts Countywide funding for IT at about a half percent of the
total County budget. I think typical one to two percent is the low end, low end of
the range for IT funding in companies or organizations of similar size. The
$5,000 reduction in premium pay is of less concern to me at this point than is the
$152,000 C Account reduction. That amount is equal to the total amounts
requested for PC replacement, which was 112,500, laptop replacement, which was
17,000, and printer replacement, which was $22,500. This reduction represents a
40 percent reduction of the requested funds for information technology hardware
and software. Forty percent. The impact of this reduction will be tremendous to
the MIS Division to our ability to support more than 1,000 computer uses in the
County resulting most likely in below optimum operation levels and functionality.
Without these resources, the MIS Division will be limited to ensuring that
corporate applications, network infrastructure, and the data center continue to
function at operational capability.
MS. REVELS: Two minutes.
MR. VERKERKE: This will likely come at the expense due to the proposed reduction of
hardware and software support to departmental users and functions. I may have
created the impression during my earlier presentation that hardware and software
purchase were no longer necessary, because of the extension to maintenance
contracts that I talked about as a way to reduce the overall budget requirements
for the next year. This is not the case. Not all equipment is covered by those
extended maintenance contracts. Maintenance does not eliminate the need for
replacement based on obsolescence or due to complete equipment failure. We
have a lot of equipment that's just no longer up to the job, and we can't afford to
put off replacing that another year.
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I presented to you at that same presentation our service catalog of 32 services.
Those services, with hardware and software components, will be seriously
impacted.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. VERKERKE: In our budget request, we had no totally new initiatives. So, there's
no new things that we don't do right now that we could suspend for a year.
Mainly what we asked for was funding to expand ongoing use of technology to
improve the efficiency and effectiveness of County operations, such as video
conferencing, document imaging and management, and improved wireless access
to information systems. Through helping to improve that efficiency and
effectiveness, MIS plays a crucial role in efforts to overcome the County's budget
reductions of the last couple of years.
And I wanna close on a personal note. It is my opinion that my personal real
property tax is too low. So, feel free to raise that a little bit. You don't hear this
very much, but I believe that there's room to play with that. It's, it's, I'm
embarrassed to tell people how little I pay for real property tax, so feel free to take
a look at it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. VERKERKE: That's my presentation. I welcome questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Thank you.
Seeing none, thank you very much.
MR. VERKERKE: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is Ann Cua, followed by Donna Stafford.
MS. CUA: Good afternoon, Chair Pontanilla and Members of the County Council. Feels
strange to be on this side of you. My name is Ann Cua and I'm a supervisor in
the Current Division of the Planning Department. And I've been with the County
for 28 years. And I'm here today to testify on the Budget Committee Chair's
proposal regarding the Planning Department's Budget, and more specifically the
Current Division's portion of the budget. And I am gonna be referring to
Exhibit 1, Page 23, PLN 16-3. This proposal includes three, three major areas of
concern for me and my, my Division and Department.
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First is the deletion rather than the freezing of the Planner I position, PC-0058 and
the college intern positions. The Department, through the Mayor's budget, agreed
to freeze these positions for FY '11 to help with the budget situation. And this,
this would allow the re-examination of funding for these positions in the
Fiscal Year '12 budget and future budgets. I'm requesting that instead of deleting
these positions, you, you freeze them, because it is much easier and less costly to
fund a frozen position than rather, rather than recreating a deleted position. So
that's, that's one request.
My second area of concern is eliminating the funding for the West Maui, West
Maui Planner V position. This currently is a limited term position in our office,
PC-0069. As a limited term position, the incumbent, who is serving in the
Mayor's cabinet level, has return rights to this position. The position was filled
with a limited term employee since March of 2009, and this individual recently
transferred to a permanent position, PC-0003 on March 16 th , 2010.
MS. REVELS: Two minutes.
MS. CUA: So, this position has only been vacant for 30 days, 30 working days. And
yesterday, we actually started interviewing for this limited term position knowing
full well that the incumbent could return to this position.
My third area of concern, which is, I feel, the most important reason why I stand
before you today is deletion of the Supervising Clerk position, PC-0075. This
position has been vacant for only six working days since April 16 th . The Current
Division has four clerk positions in Maui. We have one in Molokai. These four
clerks support the Planning Program Administrator and 14 planners within the
Current Division. The first clerk position has been out on Worker's Comp, and
we have no idea when or if she will return. The second clerk will be out on
maternity leave starting July. And yesterday, when we received the news of this
proposed budget, we also received the news that she needs to stay home for the
rest of the week, because of complications. So, we don't know if she's going to
be back next week, and if she is back next week, hopefully she'll be here long
enough until she goes out on maternity in July. The third clerk position of the
four is our Supervising Clerk, which is being proposed for deletion, which we
have had -MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MS. CUA: --vacant for six days. And we've requested a list for an internal recruitment,
or we've, I, excuse me, we have put out internal recruitment to try and at least
give opportunity to someone within the Department to get this position.
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And so that would basically leave us one clerk to handle the, all the
responsibilities of the Division, letter formatting, travel, public inquiries, file and
record retrieval, telephone coverage, recording of permit actions in KIVA, and
maintaining office supplies.
MS. REVELS: Four minutes.
MS. CUA: So, you can see the timing has just not been in our favor in terms of this clerk
positions. So, while I stand here, I really appreciate the difficult position that
you're in. I've, I've heard some of your meetings. I, I, I would not want to be in
your shoes. But I, I come here with serious need asking you to not delete our
Supervising Clerk position for the reason I've stated. This position would
seriously impact the issuance of permits within the Division. The Supervising
Clerk is a working supervisor position who trains and distributes work to clerical
support staff. This person also formulates letters and performs other clerical
related duties. And during this economic time, it is critical that we keep permits
moving, especially for those who are ready and willing and able to develop.
MS. REVELS: Five minutes.
MS. CUA: The deletion of the Supervising Clerk position will severely impact our
ability to issue permits in a timely manner, which in turn leads to delays in project
development, economic recovery, and construction hiring. Thank you. Are there
any questions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? The
reduced Planner V, we took the funding, we left the position in, because of the
return rights. The person that was there that was TA'd, according to you left, and
you wanna fill that position?
MS. CUA: Well, what, what we did, this has been a limited term position since the
person who was initially in this position when it wasn't a limited turn, term
position vacated the position to take an appointment with the cabinet. So,
whenever we have hired for that position, it's always been based on limited term,
and being that that position, the person in that position since 2009 has recently
moved over to a permanent position, we were hoping to fill that at least `til the
end of the year and see what happens with return rights from the incumbent.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions regarding testifier's testimony in
regards to the positions that she's concerned with? One more question, that
Supervising Clerk...vacant six days?
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MS. CUA: Six working days.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Six working days?
MS. CUA: Yeah. April 16 th was her last day. She moved over to Public Works,
Highways, 'cause they had a position, permanent position that paid her more.
And so we were not able to do anything until she left. And we, you know, we, we
have put in a request for an internal recruitment, but literally the position has been
vacant for that short a period of time. Six working days. I think that...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, you identified it as a vacant position when we sent out that
last memo to identify all your vacancies?
MS. CUA: Yeah. I'm not, I'm not sure about how the technicalities of what kind of list
you got from whom, when, to show what was vacant. But my understanding is
that because when asked that position happened to be vacant, we reported that it
was. But that's all we can report that it is. We cannot really say, you know, that
we're interviewing or, or whatever. So, I mean that, that's just the fact. That's
when it was vacant, and we're hoping to fill that real soon, because we are really
in critical clerical shortage right now.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Any more questions, Members? Seeing
none, thank you, Ann.
MS. CUA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next one is Donna Stafford. Donna Stafford? Lori Tsuhako,
followed by Rita Ban-eras.
MS. TSUHAKO: Good afternoon, Budget Chair Pontanilla, Council Chair Mateo and
Members. My name is Lori Tsuhako and I'm the Director of the Department of
Housing and Human Concerns. I've submitted written testimony, which I hope
you have. I'm just gonna briefly go over this. I'm not gonna read it out loud to
you. I thank you for the opportunity to provide testimony on behalf and in
support of the Department of Housing and Human Concerns relative to the Fiscal
Year '11 Budget proposal offered by Chair Pontanilla. There are three positions
within our Department that were proposed for deletion in the Chair's proposal,
and I would like to take a minute to discuss all three of them with you.
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The first is a Staff Services Assistant position in the Administration Program,
which is the Director's Office. And I think when I appeared before you about two
weeks ago...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What page? I'm sorry, Lori.
MS. TSUHAKO: Oh, my. Excuse me, Mr. Victorino. The, my budget starts on Page 9
of Exhibit 1.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you.
MS. TSUHAKO: Toward the bottom of the page.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Lori.
MS. TSUHAKO: The Department is in the process of trying to re-describe this Staff
Services Assistant to an Accountant position. As I said on the floor previously,
the Department has brought in about $2 5 million in grant revenue to the County
as well as worked with other funders to help agencies raise about $2 million for
social services. The proposed re-description of this position to an Accountant
would allow, I believe, would allow the Department to be a better grantee to those
funders who have provided us money as we will have a higher level of
accountability and oversight over grant budgets, as well as helping my
Department review the, the budget proposals offered by agencies who are
receiving money through the County.
The second position that's slated for deletion is the Housing Program
Specialist III position in our Housing Division. This position was created in this
current fiscal year, but was left unfunded and therefore the Department had no
ability to fill this position since it was created. This position would be planned to
serve as a staff services specialist for a variety of different housing programs that
are administered through the Department, including the Affordable Housing Fund
Program -MS. REVELS: Two minutes.
MS. TSUHAKO: --thank you--the County's First Time Homebuyer's Grant Program, as
well as function as a compliance monitor for HOME Investment Partnership
Programs, the Residential Work Force Housing Policy Program, and the County's
Affordable Housing Program.
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And I think the most immediate need that we have, Mr. Chair and Members, is
Information Outreach Aid II position, which is HC-0136, which is located in our
Human Concerns program, specifically in our Maui County Office on Aging. We
have just received a notice from the Department of Personnel that shows that
personnel action has been taken. We actually interviewed for this position on
April the 19 th and have selected a candidate and have offered the job. That person
is scheduled to begin work in this new capacity on May the 3 th of this year. This
position is a working supervisor in our outreach program for our aged and
enhanced information assistance and outreach branch. And...
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you. And is the main conduit by which our outreach workers
make direct contact with frail elderly and arrange for services needed by the frail
elderly. I would ask for this Committee's reconsideration for all three of those
positions. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you, Lori.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is Rita Barreras, followed by Allan DeLima.
MS. BARRERAS: Good afternoon, Chairman Pontanilla and Members of the Budget
and Finance Committee. I'm Rita Barreras. I'm the Director of the Aging with
Aloha Coalition, and I'm gonna speak about the Maui Community Care Core
grant, which is on Page 16 toward the bottom of the page. I brought a couple of
documents to share with you today. One is called the Maui Community Care
Core Grant Summary, and it's under currently our fiscal agent, which is
University of Hawaii, Maui College. This gives you a snapshot overview of our
four strategic goals and our key objectives and progress we have attained to date.
I wanted to state again from previous testimony that I gave that effective July 1,
we would be switching over to Tri-Isle Resource Conservation and Development
Council Incorporated as our fiscal agent. And we really thank you for considering
continuing support for our coalition.
What I wanted to share with you today, which I thought you might find
interesting, is in addition to our strategic goals, at the back of this document, the
last couple of pages, two or three pages, is a summary of the last three courses or
classes that were held at Maui Community College in terms of our experiment to
look at the long-term care curriculum pilot project. We are just entering the phase
-
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of evaluating how that went, and tomorrow is the last class. So the last graduating
class will occur tomorrow.
And then in the last page, I shared with you when I testified previously that we
were doing a community survey to find out what the, how the economic recession
affected older people and people with disabilities in Maui County.
Dr. Lorrin Pang has done an initial analysis and you'll find that at the last
paragraph where it says about 30 percent reported having had money problems
since the economic downturn, this was very strongly associated with late payment
of bills, less money for dental care, less money for basics, reduced travel, need for
part-time work, concerns with mortgage and rent, and use of alternative
medicines, and considerations for moving out of State.
MS. REVELS: Two minutes.
MS. BARRERAS: These--thank you--these items might be considered the results of
money issues also strongly associated, but perhaps the cause of money issues
were low income, having a disability, living in large households, younger age,
race, and not associated with living alone. So, I thought you might find this
information helpful throughout your deliberations in terms of services affecting
older people and people with disabilities. Any questions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. BARRERAS: I'll be glad to take.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, questions for the testifier? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, and I'm sorry, Member Kaho'ohalahala was not
here, because he was the one that actually I thought might have some questions,
because of, I guess, the change. And many people looked at this as a State
function before, and yet this is really a community project about workforce
development. One of the things that I wanted to know is that with regard to the
continuation of the curriculum at Lahainaluna High School, which you, you
know, you, you talk about in here, many of the students, of course, are going on.
They're not necessarily going on to college. But I, I wanna find out, are, do you
believe in terms of working with both Maui High School as well as Lahainaluna,
that we are satisfactorily preparing for the workforce that we're gonna need, and
particularly now with Healthcare Reform being passed where more and more
people will be covered by this, you know, national health program?

- 102 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 27, 2010

MS. BARRERAS: Thank you for that question. Yes, we work closely with Maui High
School and Lahainaluna High School. We've had now couple of experiments.
One is the students that are, are graduating and are going on to college. The
second experiment that we wanna try with both schools is similar to the one that
we did at the college, which you take people who probably who don't wanna go
to college. They wanna stay and live here in Maui. And we wanna grow our own
workforce. So, they are willing to work with us to try and create that kind of a
project, grow our own workforce, so that we tap those students now at a younger
age, get 'em to training, and get 'ern a preparatory kind of training program so
that they know what to expect to move toward being a certified nurse aid, or a
home health aid, or whatever position that might mean. So, I, I feel like we're
doing very good work in this area.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and have, you know, because I, I'm not sure if
it's contained in here without reading through the whole thing, but the individuals
that are actually participating at the high school level in that career path. What
have your numbers been looking like? I mean, is it increasing? 'Cause obviously
we have an aging population, so.
MS. BARRERAS: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: You know, we have to have numbers that match.
MS. BARRERAS: Right. And so when we did the first evaluation of the high school
project, we knew we had graduated a little over 100 students going through the
program. And then the same is true now with the college program. It's another
100 students that have graduated over the last three years. We're at the phase of
doing the evaluation now -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MS. BARRERAS: --to figure out, so what did all this mean? You know -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
MS. BARRERAS: --how, how effective have we been and how would we shift course?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And I really look forward to that information,
because that's gonna help us address a lot of the situations that we're gonna face
with all of the, and myself included, all of us aging rapidly.
MS. BARRERAS: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Anyway, but thank you very much. If anyone has
any additional questions, your phone number is on here?
MS. BARRERAS: It's 264-0491.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Alright. Thanks very much.
MS. BARRERAS: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you.
MS. BARRERAS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is Allan DeLima...not here? Scott Teruya.
MR. TERUYA: Good afternoon, Chair Pontanilla and Members of the Committee. My
name is Scott Teruya. I'm the Administrator for the Real Property Tax Division,
and speaking today on behalf of the Department of Finance to provide the
Members with some information regarding to, in regards to the Commercialized
Residential classification and to assist you in the deliberation process. Properties
in the Commercialized Residential land class have Improved Residential or
Agricultural zoning but have been given the privilege of being able to rent to
short-term tenants. The Mayor's proposed rates, rate of $6.25 was 29 percent
lower than a similar property with the same ability to rent in the Hotel and Resort
category. Any rate lower than the Hotel class is providing a tax relief to a class of
properties who have been given the privilege of using their property at a use
reserved for Hotel zoning. In comparison, a similar or lower rate compared to
Improved Residential or Agriculture would be inequitable to those properties who
rent to long-term tenants. Unless they change their zoning, they do not have an
option to rent on a short-term rental basis. It should also be noted that not all
properties in the Commercialized Residential class are owner-occupants, and this
class includes transient vacation rentals.
I would also like to remind the Members that the Mayor's proposed rates for
Commercialized Residential was similar, not identical, but similar to Commercial;
however, their valuation is based on a Residential or Agricultural sales.
Properties in Hotel or Commercial zoned properties, the assessment is based on
similar sales, which would be Commercial or, or Hotel. So, it's not identical in
the reasoning. So, tax rates similar to Commercial or Hotel does not have the
same effect due to lower values for Residential and Agricultural lands.
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That's my testimony, Chair. Thank you for the opportunity to testify.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Plenty hands. ... (chuckle) ... Member Molina, Baisa, Johnson,
and Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chairman. Mr. Teruya, just one
request. Can you provide that, your testimony in writing?
MR. TERUYA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Mr. Teruya, for
being here. Of the parcels, or folks that are in this new class, can you tell me
what the breakdown is between B&Bs and TVRs?
MR. TERUYA: Ms. Baisa, I don't have that information on, on, on hand. But it would
be good to identify...I think one of the problems that we're having is we're
having two totally different categories, two different people in this category. One
is B&Bs and one is TVRs, one lives on and one doesn't have to live on. So I
think that's the problem that the Members are having right now.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. I'd like to have that information.
It's my understanding that the lion's share of this is B&Bs, and that there's a few
TVRs thrown in. And I see them as two very different animals. One where the
B&B owner lives on the property and the other where the owner does not live on
the property. And I see that as a big difference, because one is a homeowner
living in his home and the other one is not. So, I'd like to have those numbers.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Scott, one of the things that I, I kind of look at,
you know, which is a little bit different from Hotel zoned property and the use of
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the property is that a hotel is zoned that way and there's no chance that at some
point in time a permit could be pulled and that use denied.
MR. TERUYA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, how do you, you know, when somebody has no
transferability of that permit, no guarantee that that property could ever be used
for that purpose again, how do you address that?
MR. TERUYA: Okay. That's a good question. I think what we need to understand
is...my statement I made is they may be taxed at a similar rate. Like transient
vacation rentals in the current fiscal year, they are taxed as Hotel-Resort. And
according to our County Code, Hotel and Resort is use less than six months in
duration. Okay. But their assessment is not based on Hotel sales. So, if they had
the ability to outright use it for short-term rental use, they would be valued like
Hotel properties, meaning assessed value, yeah. But the rate is, is separate. So
the rate is not a use. So, if, I'm not sure if that answers your question.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I, I understand what you're saying, and I guess
the problem that I have is that they're so dissimilar in terms of the operations, the
support services -MR. TERUYA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --needed, all of the ancillary things that go with that,
and not to mention I guess that when somebody's buying a property, if they know
that that permit is non-transferable right from the get-go and given what the
market conditions are now, I couldn't make that same statement that that property
in today's market would be able to garner that kind of income. So, I guess
ultimately it's up to us. But I just wanna kind of see what your take was, and why
you kinda felt the way you did. So, I thank you for your response.
MR. TERUYA: Okay. And the underlying zoning would make a big difference in the
valuation because having that ability like a spot zoning -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. TERUYA: --to have that conditional use, if you had the outright ability to do it for
that short-term rental, obviously the assessed value would be a lot higher as well.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and I appreciate that. Thanks very
much, Scott.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay. I'm sorry. The guys went so fast. Scott,
they gave, you know, Mr. Croly provided a chart, which I'd like to give to you a
little bit later. It's very interesting. But what I wanted to look at is I just take the
very top one here on this chart based upon assessment. Oh there, okay, thank
you, Gayle. Look at the very first one, Maui By The Sea. You know, so we are
now all looking on the same one, yeah? And everybody has it, yeah? Guys?
This is what Mr. Croly gave us this morning. And I think the interesting dynamic
is if there were like there were before presently under Homeowners, this one
would go from 2,400 to a little under 5,300 based upon the assessed value and the
loss again of the, what you call, the exempt, the Homeowner's Exemption, you
know. So, but then you go over to the $5, and it jumps from the 2,400 to 12,000,
which is an extreme jump in that respect, yeah? And then they're proposing 3.12,
which would be 7,500, which is still a tremendous jump when you go from a
Homeowner's rate to, to this proposed rate and the rate that the Chair proposed.
And this does not even include the Mayor's raise of $6.25, which obviously
would make this more like 14,000 if you went with 6.25, yeah? What I'm trying
to get from you, Scott, is again based on these charts here, and let's say we were
to stay somewhere between $3 and $4, you, you're gonna see a major hike in all
these people's real property tax, isn't that correct?
MR. TERUYA: Yeah. And I think one thing to note that these are all B&Bs, right? I'm
assuming.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I, I am assuming that also and...
MR. TERUYA: Because, because what we're not showing is all the TVRs.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well...
MR. TERUYA: Because the TVRs are going down.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The TVRs...
MR. TERUYA: Because TVRs used to pay Hotel rates.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. TERUYA: Now they're gonna pay something less.

- 107 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 27, 2010

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And something less would be whatever we come
up for Commercial?
MR. TERUYA: Yeah. So, how many TVRs there are, you're gonna have a revenue
shortfall because all the TVRs were paying 8.20.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I see.
MR. TERUYA: Now they're gonna pay something less.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I see. I see.
MR. TERUYA: So, that's why I said we have two different groups here, and we're
trying to find middle ground. It may be unfair for B&Bs, but you don't hear any
TVRs testifying today.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, you know, I, I don't blame them. I wouldn't
be testifying either, would I? But, Scott, why was that change made? Why are
we moving all the TVRs? Because we have created this new...
MR. TERUYA: ... (Laughs)...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I guess...trick question, yeah?
MR. TERUYA: I didn't create this class.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. I just wanted to ask you that
question so that everybody would be moved into that class. That what's that
intention was?
MR. TERUYA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Alright. Thank you, Scott. I appreciate
that. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Seeing none,
thank you, Scott. Okay, the last testifier this afternoon is Wendy Osher.
MS. OSHER: Hi, Council Chair Pontanilla and Members of the board. I'm
Wendy Osher. I'm speaking in my capacity as a Member of the Fire and Public
Safety Commission. I just wanted to, I came today to reiterate the testimony
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presented this morning by Fire Chief Jeff Murray and retired Assistant Chief Alan
Cordeiro in their request to support the reinstatement of funding for two positions.
Firstly, the Assistant Fire Chief of Operations position that was formerly held by
Assistant Chief Cordeiro. It's the number three position in the Department, and I
was kind of shocked to see that it was being removed from the budget. They're in
charge of incident command when large incidents occur. They're also in charge
of dispatching partner, partner agencies in support of their operations. Also, the
reinstatement of the Office Operations Assistant for Fire Prevention position,
which is in charge of permits and inspections. It's very detail-intensive in that
Department, and both of those positions were actually slated to start in May of
this year. The positions were not expansion positions, but existing positions that
were vacancies due to the retirement of personnel.
And also I'm speaking in support of the reinstatement of funds for the fire rescue
helicopter as well. The other commissioners couldn't be here today on such short
notice, so hopefully my testimony will speak on their behalf as well.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. OSHER: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you very much.
MS. OSHER: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Is there any one that want to provide public testimony at this
time that haven't signed up? Please come forward. Seeing none, the Chair is,
without any objection, close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS (excused: SK).
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, we'll take a short recess, ten minutes.
We will reconvene at 2:50 p.m. Meeting in recess. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:

2:40 p.m.
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RECONVENE:

2:55 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is
now reconvened. Members, that was a long morning and long afternoon so far
with public testimony. So, at this time, the Chair is going to call on
Mr. Fred Pablo for some comments. Mr. Pablo.
MR. PABLO: Thank you, Chair, and good afternoon, Members. After I heard all the
testifiers this, this morning from the departments, I thought I'd try to give a
framework on how the budget was put together this year. This is the third year of
cost cutting. I think I've mentioned it several times. And the Fiscal Year '09 was
the first year the Mayor started the Fiscal Implementation Team consisting of the
Finance Director, Managing Director, and I. We have reviewed major purchases.
We have reviewed contracts. We have reviewed vacancies, which have been over
24 months.
This year when we, when we started the budget, we actually started in, in
September. We went out to the communities. We asked the communities what
they would like to see in the budget. We also asked them how would you fund it
if the, if the economy is on a downturn. We were trying to gather input on
whether they'd be willing to pay additional taxes. In many cases, they, they
testified for what they wanted in the budget and said they'd be willing to pay tax.
When we came back, this budget that you see before you is something that has
been in process since October. I personally met with each department head, and
we went through each of the budgets. I knew we would have to look at all three
areas; equipment, we would have to look at operating expenses; we would have to
look at salaries and wages.
As you can see over the past five weeks, there's hardly any equipment in the
departments' budgets. Hardly any. And that's why there's hardly any
adjustments there. As you can see over the past five weeks, there's hardly
anything in the operating expenses. Most departments are flat or they're actually
operating below last year's budget. Consequently, there's very little adjustments
there.
The last area is salaries and wages, and that was a very important one that I had to
face. And I base this on a lot of experience. I base this on a lot of public, what do
you call, I mean professional journals, and also a GFOA course, which I took last
year. And you can have a hard freeze or you can have a targeted freeze. And I
chose that it would be best to take a targeted freeze, to take a look at what are the
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priorities of this County, what are the needs of the community, and how are we
gonna fund those. I met with every department on this.
The positions which are under question right now are there because the
departments have given something else up to have it in there. When you compare
last year's budget, operating budget, it was at 461 million. Fiscal Year 2011
Budget is at 455, I mean 400...445 million. We've seen a 15 million decrease in
the operating expense of all of these departments. So, you can see they have
given up quite a bit in first year '09 and '10, and also in this third year of cost
cutting.
When I did a targeted, targeted freeze, it was for several reasons. And I tried to
cover this on the first day of my presentation on March 22 nd . We have eight funds
in this County budget. Seven of those funds cannot be used to fund the General
Fund. The General Fund is where the shortage was, and that's because that real
property tax is a major revenue source in the General Fund. So, any type of
savings that you will find in the self-sufficient Water Funds, Sewer Fund, Liquor
Funds do not help the General Fund. The cuts, the savings are in the General
Fund.
When you look at employees, there's four major departments which make up
pretty much 80 percent of all employees in the General Fund. The first one is
Police, and then you're questioning what do we do in public safety? Do we hold
off or do we take advantage and fill positions? Now the other big one is Fire
Department. Again, it's a public safety issue. How much is public safety worth?
The third one is the Parks and Recreation, and as you can see this morning, we
took a very serious look at Parks and Recreation, what positions should we target
to freeze. And after looking at the different type of programs, we did freeze 20
positions in Aquatics, and as a result we're gonna have to close swimming pools
at least once a week. The next area, the next biggest department is Finance, and
as you know and I know, Finance is a revenue producer. So pretty much we left
Finance alone.
But those are the four big departments. They make up 80 percent of the General
Fund employees. We did a balanced approach looking at targeted savings. We
have targeted 69 positions to be frozen at zero funding; however, we would like to
see all the EP counts in the budget. As you heard from the testifiers, those EP
counts are hard to come by, and sometimes it's hard to fill, taking up from one to
two years once it gets approved by this body.
So, I thought that'd be a good background to see where we, where we are and
how we got there. It wasn't something done overnight. It was something done
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with a lot of thought since September last year after meeting with the
communities. Thank you, Chair, for this opportunity. I'd be happy to answer any
questions that Members may have.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. PABLO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll start off with Member Molina. In regards to the
testimony that we heard this morning and part of this afternoon and the comments
by Budget Director Pablo, Mr. Molina, you have any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. Just one question for
Mr. Pablo. You know, there seems to be one common element or occurrence that
we've been hearing from the departments as it relates to vacancies and EP counts.
There seems to be some kind of maybe lack of communication or communication
breakdown. I mean, seems like the left hand don't know what the right hand is
going, you know, because only now we're finding out well now the departments
need these positions. We were given information from Personnel...and I'm not
pointing a finger at, at anyone. Can you help explain that to us? And, and I recall
Personnel years ago, they had a new system implemented to, I believe one of the
main reasons for it was to improve the communications from Personnel to the
department as it relates to vacancies and EP counts and so forth. And this is the
first budget that I can recall, and I've been on this Council for ten years, that there
seems to be this communication breakdown or whatever. And I don't know if it's
going to come to a point, Mr. Chair, where we may have to dig, dig down and get
some explanation from the Personnel Director. I don't know, Mr. Pablo, if you
can comment on this?
MR. PABLO: Thank you. This is my fourth year as the Budget Director and, and so I
can't comment on what has happened in the past. I did hear what happened, you
know, this morning through the testimony. Whenever something like this comes
up, sometimes it's best to do a process mapping, you know, have someone in
there to look at the processes and see how it can become more, more efficient and
effective. That would be my only suggestion.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Well, you know, we also heard concerns
expressed to us from the Managing Director as well as far as a systemic problem
with, with the whole hiring process. But anyway, it's just been, it was really
frustrating, Mr. Chair, to hear all of this stuff. And I know it's hard for you as the
Budget Chair. You put out a proposal to us, and now we may have to go back to
the drawing board. So, I think it's something we need to look into. What the
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heck is going on here? You know, it's taking up a lot of our time, your time. So,
anyway I'm just venting right now, Mr. Chair. So, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, and you bring out a good point. Some of the
positions were filled and, you know, today we find out they're filled. So, you
know, those positions are, you know, we're gonna reinstate those positions.
Again, you know, like some of the testifiers had mentioned, we do have two
unions that, you know, have bargaining agreements with the County of Maui so
we gotta abide by those agreements. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. I don't think there's a
whole lot to say. We've seen your proposal and we've heard the departments
today. I can't say I was surprised by hearing what was said, because if I were a
department director and I had asked for a position, then I certainly would be here
to defend it. And, you know, it's rare that somebody would ask for something
and then say oh, that's okay, no need. So, you know, I expected them to come
and say we need these people.
I think what was more disconcerting to me was to hear a department director tell
us that it takes as long as two years to process a position. You know, that's very,
very difficult for us because like you're doing now, you know, you have scarce
funds, you're trying to fund positions that really need to be funded. And if it's
gonna sit there for two years, then what's the point?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, I don't know how we change that. This is my fourth
year on the Council. This is my fourth budget, and I've heard this four times.
And I don't know how do we make it better. That, that's the frustration that I
have, 'cause I realize that this is the year when every dollar counts and the money
is in salaries and wages. Everybody knows that. I don't care what kind of a
budget you have. I came from running a large corporation and most of the money
was in salaries and wages. So, that's normally where you go to make cuts. So,
it's, it's very frustrating, and I don't know. It's going to take the wisdom of
Solomon and thank God we have you as a leader, because I don't know how
we're going to figure this out. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Baisa. You know, if a position takes that
long, two, three, sometimes four years, I, I can see that the EP is included in, in
the budget process, but not the monies.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
- 113 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 27, 2010

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Because once you put monies tag onto an EP for two, three
years, that's monies that, you know, could be used elsewhere. You know, capital
improvements, maintenance and repair, but no. It's all, you know, stagnated in
vacancies. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. And yeah, I, I, I join my
colleague, Mr. Molina, about the information on vacancies and other personnel
status. But, you know, having worked in the department for many years, I
understand the dynamic nature of that kind of list, that it can change from day to
day, from week to week, from month to month. And it's difficult to keep it as
current as most of us would like to have it. But that, that's easier said than done
when you're dealing with that many departments and personnel. ...So, I, I, I can
see where the information, more accuracy and more updated information would
have been really helpful. But I, I can also see the other side, that it's kinda
difficult doing that on a day-to-day basis.
So of course, through today's testimony, we found out some, some positions we
thought were vacant are filled and so forth. So, I know how difficult that makes it
for your proposal, Mr. Chairman, because I can imagine the work it took to craft
your proposal with your staff on the weekend. So, I, I think for us it's, I don't
know how better we can do it, you know. But that does present a problem in, in
getting that kind of information. And that's what caused a lot of the problems that
brought this many people to testify this morning from the departments.
As far as, you know, everything, everything else...well, talking about vacancies
or personnel statuses, my concern when I observed the proposed, your budget
proposal, and even, you know, talking about Personnel, is that...and it was
brought up at some points in today's testimony is there are also requirements by
labor agreements when you talk about Personnel. And I think the Fire
Department brought up some requirements that, you know, for them to have
certain things. And so, it is a difficult thing to put together and have all the
correct information. So I, you know, I, I give you credit, Mr. Chairman, for your
efforts in putting this together, because that was a daunting task for you and your
staff. But other than that, you know, we have to come up with a budget that's
balanced but, you know, at the same time we have to come up with a budget that
doesn't go beyond our means of allocating money for that. And I think through
testimony and through Member's responses and expressions, we, we really have
to be realistic and look at what we have as far as revenues and what we have to do
as far as, you know, bare necessities and continue to operate this government and
this County until we can realize better times. And hopefully those better times
come sooner than later. But, thank you, Mr. Chairman, for your efforts as we
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continue, and your leadership, as we continue on. And thank you to Mr. Pablo
for, you know, giving his perspective from the Administration's side as far as the
work they put in to get this budget to us from the Mayor's Office. Mahalo,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you. As I said to my two comrades here,
Mr. Mateo to my left and Mr. Medeiros to my right, I came late today after the
noon lunch, Mr. Chairman, because I went to the pawn shop. And after receiving
your proposal, I turned in my knife and I got my hatchet. And the hatchet was in
regards to your proposal yesterday. And in all seriousness, I can listen to my
fellow County employees from the different departments give reasons why they
need money and they are quite concerned about your proposal, but I do not think
that it was your proposal in totality, Mr. Chairman. I, I really thank you for your
leadership, and I thank you and I think the people of Maui County thank you for
your boldness to take such a serious approach to the condition of Maui County
and its residents. I only wanna say that when I listened today to the different
departments, and, and, and see why and the reasons why they want you to restore
or want this Council to restore the spending, their reasons make sense from a
point of being a department head and having justification as to how they're used
to seeing Maui County run.
However, this time, as Mr. Pablo said, of three years, or whatever it took, of
constant cuts, still we see from property taxes and the General Fund that it is
diminishing. So what do we do? I think as those of us put in this position of
leadership to make policy, we need to take the hard stances to ensure the people
of Maui County that work in the private industry. And we've heard from people
in the hotel industry specifically two days ago of how they have forced some of
their employees to not receive any pay raises for the past three years, not to
mention the cuts that they've made in their operations, not to mention the hours of
many people that they have cut. We in Maui County have not laid off one person.
Now are we proud of this? I think this is what the people of Maui County are, are
looking to judge us. And if private industry has to do it, why not Maui County?
And we've seen in two union agreements that these employees received raises.
And yet, in private industry, I don't think we've seen this occur, Mr. Chairman.
So for myself personally, I again will use that implement that I traded in for,
which is that hatchet. And as offensive as it may seem for my fellow employees
here in Maui County, I, I, I know in my heart that it is the right thing to do.
We've gotta show leadership. We've gotta show compassion for those that live
here. And if they are sacrificing, then for me to put my nose up in the air and not
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take from what our people in this County are experiencing, and not take that
leadership and do the same for Maui County, I think would be, for me,
embarrassing.
I wanna move on and, and, and look at how we are going to deal with the
personnel, and look at some of the cuts that I think all of us have recommended to
you. So, I don't want you as the Chair that took the bold step of making this
recommendation to take it on the chin. I think all of us have got to realize that we
here in the Council, we are here cast with dictating policy for this County. Once
the Administration gets our budget, they will implement it and, and I think that no
one, Mr. Chairman, no one will die from these severe cuts. And as I said, we're
all in it together, and so let's begin to feel some of the pain that our fellow
brothers and sisters in Maui County in the private industry have felt. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chairman Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you. I think this morning, this morning was
quite difficult for me to just listen to some of the testimonies, especially when the
bulk of the testimonies came from a good number of our own departments. You
know, sometimes, sometimes when you take a step back and take a look at the big
picture, Mr. Chairman, and what I saw this morning was a lot of the drawbridges
to some of our castles went up real quickly. And it bothered me to hear some
divisions talk about if the proposal stays as it is, I will not be able to do this. I'm
not gonna be able to do this. I'm not gonna be able to do that. Instead of looking
at how we can get the job done, they put the drawbridges up and they said we're
not gonna be able to do it.
It's not only the tough decisions we're looking at. It's the tough choices that
comes with those decisions. And it's not gonna be easy. Nobody said it's gonna
be easy. But this County at this point, we're not laying off employees, we're
hanging on to them. We're cutting deep with core services. And just, you know,
and just as a reminder, you know, Mr. Pablo was real specific in recognizing, you
know, how much is public safety worth in reference to the, to the Fire
Department's helicopter. May I remind people that this is the same people that,
that deleted the MedEvac. So, let's choose our words wisely, because the, the
impact is broad. So, you know, the tough decisions are yet to come and decisions
are not gonna be the most popular, but somehow we're gonna have to find the
common ground for all of us. And for me, Mr. Chairman, it is the retention of
core services and the retention of our employees.
So this budget, to me, I believe there still is room for reconsiderations by
elimination, and that's just unfortunately where we're gonna have to go, because
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we heard all morning that there are many positions that we need to restore. And,
you know, I just looking at the sheer numbers and I don't have to remind anybody
that if we don't address the issues today, Fiscal Year '12 is not gonna be any more
of a, you know, of a better walk for us. It's gonna be just as tough. And what we
do today will have implications then. So, you know, I shared my frustration this
morning. I took it out on several people. And, you know, I just hope it's the, it's
the wakeup call because it's just gonna continue to be quite difficult when we all
have wish lists and we all want the wish list to be adhered to. But that's not the
reality. We no longer can do business as we did before. The status quo has
changed. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, after that two dissertations I tell you, that's
pretty good. And I think I cannot match and maybe ditto a lot of the statements
that were made. In the business world today, we are tasked with the new norm.
You hear that all the time now, the new norm. What is the new norm? It's not
the way business was, it's the way business will be. And, Chair, you've been in a
corporation for a long time. You know how the business was run. But even those
businesses are changing right now. And it's changing radically. The new norm is
here. And so the government has to look at what our new norm is going to be.
I heard today a number of the departments defending their turf, and, and, and
that's fine. I understand. I been through that kind of exercises when I was in the
business world that you come in and you justify your expenses or you justify your
positions or you justify expansion or deletions, you know. You gotta justify. And
they did a good job and I, I respect that. It's our responsibility now to take it to
the next step, Mr. Pablo. We gotta take it to the next level. And the Mayor's
gonna have to work with us. As one department said, let's, let's let everything go
and then over the next year and...I think it was Ms. Morrison if I'm not
mistaken...we can go figure all this out. Well, I'm sorry. We don't have the
time, Mr. Chair. Now is the reality. Yeah, I don't mind sitting down over the
next year with the good lord's will and the creek don't rise and we're all back
here. Yeah, we can go look at all these changes that need to be made, corrections,
whatever. But now we've gotta do the budget. We can't wait `til next year. We
can't wait `til July and then decide what we're gonna do. So, we're gonna have to
make those decisions.
You took many of our recommendations, Mr. Chair, I myself included, and in fact
I probably was the only one that really went hard on premium pay. I went after
premium pay. 'Cause in the business world, when things go bad, you cut out
premium pay. You cut out overtime. There's no allowance for overtime. But I
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know some departments we had no choice, we had to. But there was others that I
really felt that was really not needed. So from that 12 million, I think I cut
something like 2 million in that area. I, I really believe that was the area to save
money. But, you know, you did and you're right. You did some of the same
things. You recommended some of the same rates that I had recommended for
Hotel and other. So I know you've taken our manao, put it together and brought
this out along with yours. And you did a fabulous job. So anybody out there who
said this is the Chair's budget and he should be reprimanded or chastised or
whatever word you wanna use, I gotta, I got, I got something to tell them. Come
talk to all of us, because we all were part of it. Like Mr. Nishiki said, we all put
our two cents in here, and I'm willing to hear anybody come down and yell at me,
`cause I'm willing. This is the decisions we're gonna have to make So, Chair, I
wait for you and the rest of our colleagues to get started on this, because you
know what, the decisions are to be made now. No more tomorrows, no more next
weeks, no more excuses. And I hope the Mayor's listening to it and I hope the
people of Maui County are listening, 'cause they've all suffered along with us. So
we gotta suffer too. Hopefully we no gotta lay off people, but if we gotta take
two days furlough, then we take two days furlough. If we gotta cut back more on
services, we cut back. So long as the public understands that this cutback is for
all their good.
I hear the people complain, the hotels, and others complain about raising their real
property tax. I hear people complain about raising your bus fares. You put in
here $20, $30, $40 for different aspects for the youth and all that. I think I
disagree with you. I think should be $5 and $10, but that's, we'll just talk about
that in a little, in a little later conversation. But, but you did listen to the public
about bus fares and passes. So, all of us I think, not all of us, but many of us
agree with that idea, yeah? So, Chair, there's a lot to be done, and let's get the,
let's get the show on the road. Let's get it done so that the public sees that we're
not afraid to make position cuts, deletions, freezing, whatever you wanna use,
Chair, whatever term you want. But if there's no money there, if I don't have a
dollar to give you, then I cannot give you that dollar. And that's the way it's
always been. My parents taught me that. My grandparents taught me that. And
those days we had no credit cards so if you didn't have it, you didn't buy it. If
you didn't have it, you didn't do it. Maybe it's time we realize that's the new
norm. The new norm is do it with what you have not with the futuristic
borrowing and selling your soul for the future. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I've been watching, you know, and, and nothing is
easy. And I can empathize with many of the decisions that we have to face. But I
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do also, I appreciate what the Administration is going through, but I also
appreciate, Mr. Chair, that you're trying to look at the concerns of the general
public, interpret that as well as what all, you know, nine of us, you know,
including yourself, what we really are faced with.
I wanna share something with you. And that is that right now in other
jurisdictions, California, Florida, Michigan, all over, it's not just one furlough day
a month, it's one furlough day a week. It is wholesale, you know, layoffs. It is
teachers not knowing whether they're gonna have a job or not. They've already
been given pink slips. We're facing this at our own State. There comes a point
where the pain really, and the suffering, and the community, to me anyway, I, I
look at it and we, we don't have it perhaps as bad as some communities do,
because we've always been fiscally conservative. I really applaud this Council
and past Councils because we've really, really done a yeoman's job. And I really
am proud of Maui County, because we're not in as bad a shape. We have an
Emergency Fund. We're certainly not in as bad a shape as the State. But there
comes a time when also, and I would look at the union negotiators--that is one of
the biggest keys--right now, if the unions were to look at the big picture and look
at the representation, they could show true leadership by actually making our job
easier by having everybody pull back slightly. If we were to rollback our wages
or benefits or a combination of both, you know, we wouldn't have as much
suffering. But that's not the reality. We have people negotiating all these things
right now, and, and to me in the climate that we're in, we should not be
negotiating for higher wages. That's just not reality.
So, many of the problems that we're having to deal with and what you dealt with
when you prepared the budget was because of choices that we have no control
over. I hope that the people who make these decisions for us at the State level,
who sit around the negotiating table and who now wring their hands and say woe
is me and oh, it's so sad and it's so terrible, think about the responsibility that
each one of us has and the potential to solve the problem. I would gladly give up
15 or 20 percent of my own personal wage if I knew that everybody across the
board was sacrificing an equal amount. Then we could roll back taxes, we could
look at all kinds of different options.
But we're faced with the reality, and the reality is this is probably gonna continue
not just for this year, but for the next several years to come. 'Cause we have not
seen the worst of it yet. There are 600 foreclosures in the pipeline. This is only
gonna get worse before it gets better. So, I applaud you for submitting a budget
that albeit it had shock value, I mean particularly taking out the positions. I think,
you know, at least it brought out people to say what they're willing to settle for if
push comes to shove, which is hopefully what we were doing in all the
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deliberations. But sometimes, you know, when you're looking at a choice
between something and a choice between nothing, that's when you get
compromise.
So, I think what we heard definitely, from the departments was compromise. So,
I'm very happy to continue the dialogue to look at perhaps putting these positions
back in since we have learned that it takes between one and two years to actually
reinsert them in the budget, because of the descriptions and everything else and
God knows we don't wanna go there again. I, I'm happy to put that back in with
zero funding, but with a proviso that the Administration has to come back to the
Council to fill that position, or at least identify the source of that funding. 'Cause
that's the biggest, that is the biggest problem. I don't know if that's doable, but
truthfully I think that at some point if we've gotta be accountable to our
constituents, we have to ask those questions. And I think it's reasonable.
People today were justifying why they wanted those positions back in. So, I'm
willing to go that route. I didn't beg for my community, because I feel that when
there's no money, you know, it's very difficult to ask for things when other
people, you know, maybe have it way worse. So, I specifically stayed away from
that. But I'm willing to support your recommendation and continue on with the
dialogue. I don't think we're that far apart, truthfully. I think there's some areas
where we can revisit, but I'm happy to conclude this, and I frankly look forward
to concluding the budget early, because when there is no money, sometimes this
may be the easiest budget that we ever get through. Because you can't get blood
out of a turnip, and right now this is a pretty big vegetable we're looking at.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho'ohalahala, comments?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Mahalo, Chair. Thank you. I think I
agree with all of the Council Members who have spoken previously and each of
them bring, I think, to the table some very strong reasons for why we must
continue to move forward. I, I'm looking...well, first of all, let me say thank you
to all of those who did come forward today to give us some of the, the
information that perhaps needed to be clarified that we did not have during our
budget deliberations. And, and in the same process, I think what has come to
light is that some of the unknowns of which we should have gotten more
information of finally come to the, to the surface. And that is a little troublesome
in terms of it coming at this juncture in the, in the budget deliberations.
So, I'm willing to move forward and take some of their input, make the
corrections that we need to make And then I also would like to revisit those
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areas that I think we each have concern and interest for in, in trying to find some
kind of resolution in the process. I am taken by the fact that it does take two years
to get a position re-described, and that's...but I do agree with your position that
rather than us funding it until they're ready to be filled, perhaps that's when the
funding should come. That makes a lot more sense. And it makes sense because
in light of testimony that was provided to us where one of the employees said that
removing the unfunded EP positions leaves us no room to work within their
program budget, that is an indication of what has occurred. And, and as a result,
we end up not knowing exactly what the departments are doing with their
program funding and how they are filling positions and how they are now
re-describing these positions and how they're changing salaries to these positions.
And then we end up having to accept them as almost after the fact, you know.
And that makes it become a problem in terms of how we prepare and make an
appropriation for, for budget allocations. So, so I do believe it is time for us, as
everyone has said, for us to go back and accept the fact that we're going to come
into difficult times beyond just today, and therefore we must be more prudent.
We must also not leave the perception in the general public that government is
taking care of government, and that the people are the ones that are having to pay
for that. So, I would like us to work diligently so that we can dispel that
perception about what it is we do. So, with that, I'm, I'm willing to move
forward, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just to make it clear, if a position is not funded and
the EP is eliminated, the position still remains on the books. If in future budgets
the department wish to fund and fill this particular position or a position, it will
require, it would require a review or update of the position. So, the recreation of
the position from the bottom is not true. So, the position will remain in the books,
and until it's needed then, you know, going forward in future budgets, then it can
be introduced. Okay. Okay, Members...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Um... (clears throat)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Some clarification on this then. In, in what
you've done by eliminating the EP count, ultimately it doesn't make it so that the
departments' gotta start all over again in recreating the position?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: The only thing that you have done, which I agree on, is
that they now have to come before the Council to state their case, and if we
believe them, then, then that position gets funded? Other than that, the
department cannot fill this position.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Once we remove the EP -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --they can't fill the position. Okay?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If in future budgets they wanna create, not create, they wanna
have this same position for, like say 2012, they put it into 2012, and they have to
prove to us that the position is needed. It would be a new, an added position to
the department. We've done that in all of the budgets. Whenever there's added
positions into the department, they need to justify that.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. I, I, I, and, and I think that's responsible. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --for taking that direction.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. So, just following
up on that, and I'm glad you gave us some clarification on that, because it was the
understanding that we had that oh, they gotta create it again, and I know to do that
it takes a lot of work to do. So, as you have mentioned the scenario of maybe in
2012 they want to reinstate this position and justify for it, so would it then become
or be considered an expansion position or we're just reinstating a position that's
been left on the books?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: An expansion position.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So it would be an expansion -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --position?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So they need to come and justify for that
expansion?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thanks for the clarification.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair. I wanna be clear on something. We had a
department director ask us if we could please leave a frozen/unfunded, in fact
several frozen unfunded/positions in the budget and not delete them. Does this
mean that if they are frozen and unfunded, that if they find money in their
program budget, that they could then fill it?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Frozen/unfunded for that particular year, no. They cannot.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, if it is frozen and unfunded, they cannot fill it?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm sorry. They can.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: They can fill it?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. They can.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, I think this is one of the reasons why we're being
asked to leave frozen/unfunded positions in the budget so if they can find money
in their program budget, then they can fill it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So I think that's, you know, we have to understand what
these terms mean, and I'm not sure we're really clear when we talk about, you
know, the various options.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Yeah, because this is a program budget.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, if they can find the money and it says
frozen/unfunded, they still can fill it?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Whereas if we delete it, they cannot fill it without coming
back to ask us again -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --for the position?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Unless, like Member Johnson had noted, you put in a proviso
that all frozen/unfunded positions require this Council's approval. Can do that?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(Inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, cannot. I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Cannot?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, we will just delete.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... (Laughs)...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, it's either frozen/unfunded, or deleted?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: One or the other, depending on what our intent is?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Just, you know, you guys went through so
many scenarios and it's like who's on first? What's on second? And I don't
know who's on third. And I've just got, just...and I don't want even for the
public to be confused. I would like to request, Chair, that that is all put in writing
so that we have something that we can understand as we move along. I want it in
writing. And if that's not too big a request. If it's funded, or I mean unfunded,
frozen, all these different terms, what that means to that EP count. What that
means to that position. You just said if we freeze it and not fund it, they can use
program money. If we delete it, that position is not taken out of the, it's taken out
of the EP but it's not, it doesn't have to be what, re...re...what is the word you
guys used?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Described.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Re-described, thank you. Thank you, Chair. You
know, just, I just want this to be clear, because I think we have a lot of scenarios
going out there, and you're saying we cannot put provisos, said hey, you know,
let's freeze this. We don't want it funded next year. We cannot put that proviso,
that's what you're saying, Corporation Counsel? If I may ask Corporation
Counsel?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Please.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Please?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, just to clarify.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: What's not permitted is for you to authorize the EP, but
require the Administration to come back for a further approval from you. You
can require a report.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: If you wanted, if you wanted to know if the position was
filled and how they filled it, you can proviso that. But if you wanted them to
come back to you before they fill the position, you would have to delete the EP.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So, if we delete it, then they would have to
come back to us?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, what, what Chair is doing by deleting these
various positions in whatever department, that makes them if they decide to fill it,
they can find money, they have to come back to us and tell us how they found the
money?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Right, if there's no EP.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No EP in that position.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Right. Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Well, that's a little clearer now, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And, and we'll have something in writing.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros..
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I just wanted to ask Corp. Counsel...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Because we're describing some of this, the status of
some of these positions as frozen/unfunded, are those required legal terms?
Because how do you describe frozen -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: ... (Laughs)...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --you know, in, in, in employee status?
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MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: To me, all we gotta say is unfunded, you know.
Because even frozen/unfunded, they still can fill it.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, it's not frozen really. So, why are we using
frozen? I, I don't know. To me, it confuses the issue, because there's more
words, you know, that we're applying to this. So I just was wondering if it's a
legal, some legal terms that we need to apply to it or not.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, I don't think it's a legal term, and, and my
understanding may be different from DPS, because I've noticed that DPS they
have specific terminology they use and it means certain things depending on the
term that you use. So, you may want to check with them as well.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Okay.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: But my understanding, and, and we've not really, we've not
really used that term frozen before this year, but my understanding from the
Administration's perspective, this is what, what our Department was told, when
the, when the position is frozen, it means that the position is not going to be
approved in the Administration. Because we have to get, you know, like if I
wanted to fill, if we wanted to fill a position in Corp. Counsel's office -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: --it has to get approved, you know, through the, I think it's
the Managing Director? I'm sorry. I can't remember if it's the Managing
Director of the Mayor, but somebody has to approve us filling that. And my
understanding is that if our office has identified a position as being frozen, they're
not going to approve it.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So it may be a civil service term that DPS is
using?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: I don't know if DPS is using it. It's a term that we only
started using -- 127 -
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: --this year.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: And it was to address this budget shortfall. The
departments were asked to voluntarily identify positions that we could freeze,
meaning that they're, we're not gonna, we have no plans to fill it this fiscal year
and, and it wouldn't get approved if we tried to fill it.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: I mean, that's my understanding of that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you. But if that's the description of it
in your understanding from the Administration, that it's not going to be filled
when they apply the title frozen to it, and yet program budgeting allows them to
do it. So it's, it's kinda conflicting a term to use. But thank you for trying to -COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (Laughter)...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --describe it. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. You know, I brought it on,
brought it up early on about maybe having the Personnel Director to address some
of the issues that many of us had expressed. And now we've ended it here, I
guess this first round with comments on this. It might be nice to hear. You know,
when you deem it appropriate, Chairman, that we get the Personnel Director to
explain and clarify all of this with regards to frozen positions and deletions and so
forth. So, when, when you deem it appropriate, Mr. Chairman. 'Cause, you
know, we're spinning our wheels here, but for now, I'm, I'm ready to start my
engine and get going with these -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --revisits and so forth, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Presently, the Personnel Director is on Oahu...union
contract. Okay. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I just wanted to find out from an ordinance
perspective. I know we have through capital improvement when we have bond
float, basically we put in a zero amount and then in order for that bond to be
floated or there's authorization to be given to fund that position, what ends up
happening, or to float the bond, that there's a proviso put in where they return to
the Council when that's done. So, I'm looking at Personnel, which while it's a
slightly different thing, I just, I wanna find out. Is there something that we could
change within an ordinance? Or must it be changed by the Charter? I know we
cannot direct the actions of the Administration. But in the same way that I see the
parallel between bond authorization and, you know, this other area. I don't see
why we couldn't put in some type of a provision unless there's something beyond
our control that, you know, union contracts or whatever. I, I just need to know
that, because I would rather give the flexibility, you know, because if it's already
there, then we don't have to create an agenda item or whatever that's just maybe a
simple resolution or whatever, some mechanism where the Administration would
be coming back to us on, on a different basis. Maybe a little bit more user
friendly so that there isn't this long, you know, protracted delay. Because from
what I heard today, many of the people are waiting for positions to be filled now.
So, you know, if Corporation Counsel could address that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair. In the bond scenario that you mentioned, the
bond authorization is a separate ordinance that's required to authorize the bond
project, the bond project. So, you have the, you have the appropriation, that's in
the Budget Ordinance, and then there's a separate ordinance for the bond. So
that's why Council is able to appropriate funds for bond projects, but require the
Administration to come back for bond authorization because it's a separate
ordinance that's required.
In the Personnel scenario, we probably have an old opinion. I can, I can check
and see. But it's just this general idea of the Council authorizing something and
then requiring a second authorization on top of that. And it's just, it's not
allowed. Once Council authorizes something, they authorize it. You can put
strings attached, which are the provisos. You can require reports. You can
require them to report to you if the position is filled or how they funded it, you
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know, that sort of thing. If you want them to come back to you for approval, the
way to do it is to delete the EP, because then they have to come back to you for
that EP to add that EP count to their budget.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And the only other way we could do it is if we
restricted movement of monies from A, B, C Accounts?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: That was discussed in prior budget . . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I know. I remember that long discussion. But, you
know, I know that really deprives, you know, the department of some of the
flexibility. But that's...
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: You know, I, I, I just, I don't wanna do that. That's
not where I'm going. But I really think that there's a lot of frustration that I'm
hearing amongst the Council Members. And it's been going on for a long time,
because it's that we don't even know many times for years. 'Cause even 2010
Budget is not yet concluded. The institutional memory that we have, I mean, I'll
be off the Council by the time you get the answers for some of the questions that
have been posed during this budget. The budget won't even be concluded by the
time I'm through with my office. So for me, we have no basis many times,
Mr. Chair, to really judge what has really transpired in the past in terms of
Carryover/Savings, in terms of what the trends have been, how many times
vehicles are purchased with monies that were allocated for positions. I don't
know. And that's what's so troublesome. So, that's why I'm trying to find a
mechanism whereby during the actual scenario, when these positions are being
filled, that the Council at least has some way to demand accountability, not to us,
but to the taxpayers who are asking us how come you're so beefy, you know, in
your personnel side, or your administration, or whatever it is. We, we need to be
able to answer those questions, Mr. Chair. And that's, that's why I'm asking what
I'm asking, because the information that we get is every bit as important at the
time that it's actually occurring as it is at budget time. 'Cause at budget time, we
always have the, we're under the gun. So how much time can we really spend on
focusing on these things? See what happened today? So I, I think, Traci, you
kind of get my point that there's nothing like having the information at the point
in which you really have that need.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Right. I mean, you can ask for...I'm not exactly sure what
process initiates the filling of a position, but you can ask for that information
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maybe at that, at that time so, so you're notified that they've initiated filling the
position, maybe? So, you know, so you get some advanced notice maybe.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. But, but it's also, it's more than just the
notification. It's where are they getting the money? Where's the beef?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... (Laughs)... I want to know. Inquiring minds want
to know.
MS FUJITA VILLAROSA: You can ask. Yeah. You can, you can proviso that as part
of the report that it includes that information.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. Mr. Chair, it, you know, I, I don't wanna take
up any more time. This is frustrating enough for all of us, but, you know, just hit
the ground running and I guess go from here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions? Okay, Chair is going to take
the easy ones first.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (Laughter)...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Find those.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. This morning we heard that some of the positions that
were deleted had warm bodies to it.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, I just wanna take care of those positions at this time. And
there's another position...well, let's start on Page 7 of the Exhibit 1. Not the, the
revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Which one?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Exhibit 1, the one yesterday. Page 7.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Your proposal.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The delete Driver License Examiner, DF-0096; EP
retired March 2010, which was recently. There's only two, now there's only one
person that does the motor vehicle -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --registration on that island and, and the testing. And reading
the handout that was provided to us by Agnes Hayashi, and you may disagree
with me and you tell me, I'm gonna reinstate that one position because of the
retirement of that, of an employee on March 2010.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No problem.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair? Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So, reference point on the -CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --budget?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Page 7.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 7.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Page 7.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Finance 8-11. And maybe one, two, the third block. Delete
Driver License Examiner, DF-0096.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Restore.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, you reinstate.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any objections to reinstating that position?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Let's see, on Page 10, this is the position on the
bottom of the page, delete Information/Outreach Aid II, HC-0136. And we had
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Housing and Human Services Director here this afternoon. They interviewed and
rd
hired that position, and the person is going to start May -i
I'm gonna reinstate
that position.
.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm sorry. Page 10.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: On the bottom, towards the bottom. ...Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I know there were some in Parks.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: East district.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, on Page 20. Page 20 first.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: This is Aquatics Program. It was noted, and, and we need to
verify this, delete Pool Guard, PRX-0004, frozen/unfunded position. According
to the testifier, that person has a return rights.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And we'll verify.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I...please explain to me what return rights is.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Return rights is, let me use an example. Zach Helm,
Molokai, he is now the Deputy Director for Parks Department. He was the
supervisor on Molokai for Parks. He has return rights should he move, or when
he moved to become the Deputy, and it's part of the union agreement that
employees that support the Administration in some capacity do have that rights.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --his position is, will be left open for that. And, and in this case
here, that position would be held not filled until the person that had this return
rights go back to this position.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. And only he can fill this position?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: He or she, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: That's the only person?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's the only person.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. And we are not funding it?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Got it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any questions, Members? Objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. But we'll verify on that one.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.

- 134 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 27, 2010

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Well...mahalo. You might also check when you're
checking on that. My understanding while working for the County is that some
return rights had time limits to it. So, you might check on that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, yeah. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Will do. On Page 22, this is Waiehu Golf Course. Delete Golf
Course Groundskeeper II, PR-0239. That position is filled.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I had 05.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Which, which position...239?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, 239. We're reinstating the position.
MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Gayle.
MS. REVELS: That position is currently zero funded. If it's filled, did you want to give
it any money?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: According to the testifier, they're utilizing the monies that
identified on Groundskeeper Ito that position.
MS. REVELS: But we are taking that money as well.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. I, I know we're taking that money. So we gotta add
money to this.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: It's an add?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's an add in the sense that we gotta fund that position.
Somebody's there.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: How much? Mr. Chair, how much are we going to
re-add?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: According to the testifier, they're utilizing that $34,164.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: One sixty four.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. That's the full amount.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: On Page 23, Department of Planning. The deletion of the
Supervising Clerk, Staff, can you check on that one there? Because according to
the testifier, this was just vacated last week. Yeah. Page 26...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Wait now. Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Are you, are you saying that you're going to not delete
0075?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's the Supervising Engineer?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Clerk.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Clerk.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, Clerk. Oh, Supervising Clerk?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, I'm telling Staff to go verify that. I, I just wanna make
sure that because of...position was vacated six days ago...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, but it's not filled.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, it's not filled. But the, I, I don't know the ability for
them to fill that position was given enough time, so. If it's not filled, you know,
we'll just delete it.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Page 26.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chairman, on that same page, didn't they
mention another vacancy that was only vacant 30 days? Are they also requesting
filling that? I, I'm not sure which one that was, but I thought I heard her mention
it was only vacant 30 days and the other one was six days.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, that was the Planner V.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. The one above that. Right. So, what's the
status of that one now?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: According to her, the TA, the person that was TA'd to that
position...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, there's a TA in that position?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Used to be.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, used to be?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: But that is a position that has return rights too. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. So, so it doesn't change to what you had it
already described as?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 26, Engineering Program, delete Engineering Aid III,
PW-0018. This position is filled.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What? What page? We missed that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: What page?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Which one?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Page 26.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 26, Engineering Program.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Middle of the page.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, reinstate?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Which one is that?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Which position?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Which position?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Position Engineering Aid III, PW-0018.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, okay. Any money?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: The same amount?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Same amount?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Same amount.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I guess so.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Same amount, yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I think that was all. ...Let's see...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, what's the consideration for their request to
restore the position so that they would have that survey crew available to do all
the surveys?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll come that, come back to those. I'm just taking the ones
that -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Are filled.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --you know, they, they talked about that...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: That are filled?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Wasn't there something in Fire, Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. I just was reminded of that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay. Thank you. I thought I remembered
something in Fire.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Fire was the one that union contract.
NOTE: Pause.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Page 9.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Is that position 0143?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I think so.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: They said was selected and they're processing the
applicant.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: FD-0143?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What was the comments that the Chief made?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: He said they selected the person and was processing
it, I think.
MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair? He said that the, that position had already been offered and
was supposed to start on May 3 rd and she'd already given her two weeks notice at
her other job.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Okay. Chair is going to reinstate that one. Anything
else that I missed? Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair, what about the position at the bottom, 0143,
that they re-described to accountant? Did that have any effect on your proposal?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll come back to that. I understand that -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --this is the grants.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: This person does the grants, yeah? Okay. We'll take care of
Personnel probably tomorrow in depth.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll go to that...the revisit sheet, one to ten.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Where the revisit sheet?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: This one, yeah?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The one that was given to us this morning.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, this morning. Okay. This one?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: This morning.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: What is that sheet described as?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Revisit Exhibit 1.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, this is Page 1 on that sheet, but there's, when you look
into your handout yesterday, it's on Page...Environmental Management, what
page is that? ...Okay. On the handout yesterday, it's Page 5. Sorry, Page 6.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We going start with Page 6?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Everybody got 'em?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: I think so. Wait. Wait, please.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sol, I think...let's see...shoots. Where the hell is that?
Wastewater Reclamation Facility Program, Sewer Fund? That's on page...okay,
Page 4 on the bottom.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I, I, I wanna make sure that I'm looking at the right
document.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So, we're looking at what you passed out yesterday or
are we looking at this . . . (inaudible).. .
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: I, I'd just given you the conespondence...yesterday is...was on
Page...yesterday's is on Page 4.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yesterday?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yesterday. The one that you got this morning is on Page 1.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: The Interfund Transfer, yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I need help, Staff.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MS. REVELS: We handed this out this morning -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Yeah. I got it.
MS. REVELS: --the revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: This is the one, yeah?
MS. REVELS: So, if you have notes on yesterdays and you wanna know where it is on
yesterday's, it's yesterday's Page 4.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Which is this?
MS. REVELS: Which is that.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And then this?
MS. REVELS: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And this?
MS. REVELS: They're the same.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: But we, we're working on this?
MS. REVELS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Everybody got 'em?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yesterday's was Page 4 and today's is
page...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
NOTE: Pause.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Got 'em? Everybody got 'em?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: On the skinny, skinny handout Page 1. On the thick handout,
Page 4.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Got it.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: What item?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What item?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Wastewater Reclamation Facilities Program - Sewer
Fund. Okay, Mr. Kaho'ohalahala, you had a question on that?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Chair, my original concern was to
put an amount of money there to conduct the injected effluent and coastal seep
sampling and analysis plan pursuant to the EPA Compliance Order. I wanted to
be sure that this was something that was going to be done, because by delaying
this, what is going to happen is that we're going to incur more costs in terms of
fulfilling an order from the EPA concerning injection wells.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, your intent in this area regarding salaries and premium
pay?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I would, that's why Chair I asked
you -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --where was the section that was
appropriate to insert this. And I just noted it in this section, yeah.
- 143 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 27, 2010

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I, I think there's an area for injection wells on the CIP.
MS . REVELS: Yes, Mr. Chair. There is funding for Countywide injection wells.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Okay. Maybe in there.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So, off the cuff, do you know
what, what section that it's in?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It's in CIP.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, you just wanna put in a proviso of some kind in there?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Not a proviso. Actually, I wanna put in
an amount, you know, to fulfill that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Where you gonna get the money from?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Well, when we originally submitted that,
that's where I was trying to do my math and get you some amount of dollar by
making some changes within the budget, so. But on here, it's just a notation. Or,
if it's, if there's sufficient dollars in the section that we're talking about that it
could be proviso'd, then I would be willing to...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: How much is the cost for that?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: About $250,000, yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And...well, not now anyway. Just put it on the side.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Just so I know where.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Because what I presenting you is, you know, a balanced
budget and we gotta remove some money somewhere to accommodate that.
Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, Mr. Chair. If I may ask Mr. Kaho' ohalahala a
clarification. I know on the, we got Committee Member proposals. Is that on the
second page, Mr. Kaho' ohalahala, your consideration? That proviso, the 250,000
is expended? Is that...I know it says Sewer Fund.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: It's under Waste, yeah. Wastewater
Reclamation Facilities Program - Sewer Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So, there's no additional monies here
`cause...but just the proviso to set aside 250?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: That was...yeah. And, and my question
was whether or not this was the appropriate section.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Yeah. Okay. Yeah, I just thought, I think this
helps to provide more clarity with regards to Mr. Kaho'ohalahala's proposal,
Chair. All right. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Kaho'ohalahala.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: As I was just told by Staff, that this
would be the appropriate place.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It would be?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So, so in this case then...and would it be
in this one under that amount? Under that first title Wastewater Reclamation at
that amount, 20...20 million?
MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Revels?
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MS. REVELS: We would have to ask the Department whether or not they have the
funding available to do that within their, their budget. But it would defmitely go
there or either Administration and Engineering. I'm not sure which.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And we need, you need to find the funding, where you
gonna get it from, from the Department.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Next one down, Landfill Disposal Program.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What's happening with Sol's proviso now?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, he needs to talk to the Department, 'cause I...if he's
gonna include that in this budget here, and because the budget is balanced, we
need to find the funding or he needs to find the funding from this area.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, I see what you're saying.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You know, we just no can add, keep on adding -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. No, no, no, no.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --... (inaudible) .. . we get stuck.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I understand that. I just wanna know what his
proviso is.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Because I guess here's, here's the, here's the question,
Members. As we put in provisos, Mr. Chairman, we need to find out what that
cost is to put in that proviso.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And when we find that out, then we need to also locate
where that funding is going to be. Yes?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Because I've got a similar area of, from
Environmental Management, but mine had to do with the injection wells. So, I
will wait `til you get to that area -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --before we have that discussion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. And I just made a note on yours on this area.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So, Chair, are, are these similar?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No. What Mr. Nishiki is requesting, and I, I read your
proposed proviso that at the Kahului Wastewater Treatment Plant, that the proviso
read something like do a study because -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Verification study.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --a verification study in regards to utilizing recycled water for
irrigation.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right. So, I don't know if it's the same as Sol's, but I
just didn't wanna duplicate it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. And the $2 million allocated to that particular project is
the area that you wanted to do the proviso.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So I'll just wait.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, Chair. I have some information on
what I am requesting in terms of compliance to, from the EPA -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --as an, as an order. But when we're
doing program budgets, and that's my confusion, is that when we're doing a
program budget and we're looking within the appropriate department, a proviso to
that particular section so that it says that you shall...provided that you -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --complete this study, does it necessarily
require a dollar amount?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It does require...they, they need to know how much it's gonna
cost.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And I'm assuming that it's gonna be from the B Account,
which is operations.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. And...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I'll go back and look at that -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --that section and, and make a proposal.
Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. On Page 5 of yesterday's handout, the thick one, and
today on Page 1, Solid Waste Landfill Disposal Program. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Page what now?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. That was...okay. I think the question I had
was the two, well the elimination of the various positions especially in the Hana
and Molokai, and I think Mr. Medeiros also brought up the issue about Molokai, I
mean Hana, right, Mr. Medeiros? So, that was my concerns, you know, those, in
particular those three and Lanai, because they don't have any, any other outside
help. So, those three positions being deleted and along with the reduction in the B
Account of 900. As we heard yesterday, Mr. Takamine said that probably he
could get away with doing it with $300,000. So, that's why the revisit in that
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area. Those three positions in particular and the reallocation, or in my estimation
if we can get it done for 300,000, we still get 694,000, you know, savings. But
that was what my asking of the revisit in that area was, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The deletion of the Bulldozer Operators was at the
request of the Department. And that's the reason why for the deletion, because
they had promoted the bulldozer operator to -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Supervisor.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Working supervisor.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, yeah. Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --working supervisor.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, that was for, for the, for the both Hana and
Molokai?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. All of the bulldozer operator that you see.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Well, I'll let the, the representatives from
those areas speak more on that. But, you know, looking at the reinstatement of
300,000 as Mr. Takamine had requested, I don't know how we're going to work
that one. Remember, he mentioned that. We asked him what the bare minimum,
he could work with that, and he said 300,000 of the 994,000 in the B Account,
yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I know he mentioned about $50,000 for premium pay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But that was, that was on the other page, yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. But anyhow, Chair, that was, that was my
concerns. That was what I was asking about.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo?
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you. And in the same area, Landfill Disposal
Programs, I wanted to add in a proviso under this particular item. And I'm
hoping this is the, the right place. And the proviso has to do with, with one of the
Consent Decrees to a landfill. And the proviso would read, "Provided that
200,000 be for the Ohiapilo maintenance contract and development of the EPA
required management plan, botulism management plan, and year-end vegetation
study, and provided that a quarterly status report of the Ohiapilo Consent Decree
Project be provided to the Council." And the funds would be directly out of what
is listed right there. This is a project that the Department had, was supposed to
have done several years ago, and we have heard that they, they did only what they
thought was necessary, hence the decree still exists.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The B Account?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No more money.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Good proviso.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll note that. How much was that?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Two...two hundred thousand.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Anything else?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No, Mr. Chair. I'm just going to, you know, I'm just gonna
restate what was stated earlier, and when it gets to other areas, I am just going to
restate the same comment again, because of sheer difficulty. I think Mr. Helm
was real specific and on key when he reminded this body that the unemployment
rate for my island is 17 percent.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: And we're eliminating positions. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Next page, Page 2 on the skinny one.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair? Just on the, the same item.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Because I, I think as was testified by
Mr. Takamine, that the Lanai position -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --were understaffed. And he indicated
that he had, in hindsight now, thought that they should have put that up front,
because now they're in a position where they're sending workers from Maui to
Lanai 'cause there's only one person there that's operating. So, so again, this falls
in that same section here. And so you have that Equipment Operator W for Lanai
that is being deleted.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: How many positions on that island? Three present?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I believe, one...he said three. Yeah.
And so, I, I'm just raising that as a concern that he also brought. And again, but
that's, you know, that's adding another. Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We can come back to that. Okay. Page 2.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: What about just the position with no
funding?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What's that?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then leave...well, you know the
thing that we're trying to get more control or management over? Here's an
instance where you might wanna just let them find the funding to fill them.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Presently, I do have it as deleted. So, we'll come back
to that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Yeah, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: I don't wanna do, you know, have them go find the funds, and
they find the funds and it doesn't make any sense.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 2.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Page 2.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And then page...Members, you know, we're going...the thick
document and the skinny document, which is, you know, can we just concentrate
on the skinny one.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, shoot.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay, Page 2, top of the page, EM 7-24.
Mr. Kaho' ohalahala, you had an issue on this one here?
NOTE: Pause.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: If you're looking at the thick document, document, Page 6.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Chair, I believe this is where I had
my notes that a proviso that an automated refuse collection truck for Lanai was
also, because of what we had been just coming out of. The fact that we had only
one vehicle on Lanai and that that same vehicle has been real difficult to repair. It
took almost six months for it to be repaired, and it's finally repaired, but it is one
of the oldest vehicles that this County has for automated refuse collection. So, it
just makes sense that we should consider now looking at a replacement vehicle
for Lanai so that they will have a backup considering the condition of the current
vehicle, which is again very old.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: ... (Laughs)... Mr. Chairman?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (Laughs)... Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Sol, I guess, I guess the question is like Danny
was saying, it, it's a matter of management, yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: If there is such a vehicle on Maui that we use as a
replacement vehicle for what our fleet is on, in Maui County, why couldn't, or
does the Department have a vehicle here in Maui County? When that one broke,
Sol, why couldn't they have sent it to Lanai? You know, and, and Danny's saying
it's a management situation. And, and do you know -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --why they could not have sent a vehicle -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --that was on Maui to Lanai to take that place when it
broke down?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: When the Department was here for a
review -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --and I was trying to be very nice to the
Department in asking those questions, we had asked all of those questions at the
moment that the vehicle was broken. We were told that there is no replacement
vehicle that can be sent to Lanai, because the automated vehicle on Lanai was all
that we had, and to send a replacement meant that they had to send an old truck
from Maui that required people to manually pick up trash. And then the whole
problem of but we don't have trash picker-uppers on Lanai, so we would have to
send now staff all the way from Maui and that's gonna incur all these costs...so
the answer to us was no, we don't have a replacement vehicle for you. The only
thing is that we're gonna try and get it fixed. It took six months to get it fixed.
And then so my question now is that in being prudent about what we just
experienced and understanding how to alleviate that, then my request now is that
for you, the Department, to get an appropriate vehicle. Now also, the automated
vehicle on Lanai is not the same as the automated vehicles here on Maui. So, they
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don't fit. The trash bins are all different. So you have two different vehicles that
cannot be used.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Interchanged.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, interchanged.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So, that's why I'm, I'm asking for this
consideration, because we were told no all along the way, and we ended up
having to wait all this time to just get the one old vehicle fixed. And that's what
we have. So, so that, yeah...that's the, the reason why.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And so now you want a proviso that there is a
replacement vehicle, right? But that's...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's fine. We may have some information, but we're
checking up with Environmental Management, because I think staff heard that a
truck was forthcoming. So we'll double check.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We already e-mailed Cheryl. Okay, next one down, EM 7-29.
Danny?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chair. Okay. Chairman, thank you. I, if it's okay, Chairman,
I'd like to pass on this one for now, because at this particular point, the, the
Department still does not have a plan in how they're gonna handle metals and
abandoned vehicles for our community Because they're still pending the
Department of Health permit for our landfill as well as coming up with a plan to
hire some vendor to take care of our things. So, until we actually get information
from them, I think I still need to be sure that they address the issue.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department of Finance, we'll come back to that. All the
positions, we'll come back. I know there's one that the CAFR auditor had
recommended, and that would be the Assistant Account System Administrator.
So, we'll return to that one there and the auditor.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And in that area I, I had some adds also. But I guess
we'll come to it when we deal with the entire Finance
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Adds?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (Laughter)...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well adds, adds to get more revenue.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. ... (Inaudible)...thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I, I, I, you know...no, that's what I mean,
Mr. Chairman. But I can wait.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I can wait.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (Laughs)... Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I'm on to the same thing that Member Nishiki is
on to. But this is my caveat, if we're gonna put the positions in, we should put
`em in now, because it might take us a year or two to get the bodies.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (Laughter)...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, let's put the positions in and don't have to give
money.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I think I know what you guys talking about.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah. So, it may be, you know, a no-cost item, but we
might wanna do it so we can start getting the people.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: I thought we had it in here.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, Chair, you did. And then you did
...(Inaudible) ...

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, a certain amount of funding.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And the funding.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Not give the whole year funding.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Little bit. Little bit.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It's in here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, we, we added it in here to ensure that, you know, we get
the bodies as well as the space, yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, the space.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, it, it's in here.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good. Good.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, you got-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, what do you wanna do, reduce the funding from full year to
six month of some kind?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No. You got, you got four bodies.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Plus you got two limited term that now you're funding
full, fully.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: But I had intended on funding two more. And I was
going to limit the funding to like eight months.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Um...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: But I can wait -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. We, we-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --for this discussion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. We, we, we just utilized the recommendation of the
Department -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --in regards to what is being proposed, which was the full
addition, and making the two LTA as full-time positions.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I guess, I guess, Mr. Chairman, when you told
us that we wouldn't have the department heads back again for any more
discussions, I went ahead and, and, and asked the Department can we increase
their revenues by getting more personnel. And so they said, I said well, what
about adding two more personnel, because one and one makes two as far as I'm
concerned. You give more personnel, then you can get more revenues. So, that
was my way in, in looking at it. And, and I think that in the past when you did get
more personnel put in, they did come and say look we got more revenues by
another 500,000, another 1.1 thousand in, in, in back taxes owed on Residential,
oh, not Residential, but in, in, in the area of property taxes. Okay. What was
never addressed at all was the fact that there was $19 million in uncollected, or
not uncollected, in challenges, and another $19 million that was going to be
revenues that we might have to deal with challenges again. So, that's the reason
why I said. And I don't know what Gladys's thought was, was that we had, mine
was to add two more bodies. Because I, I think it's almost a guarantee that we're
going to collect more revenues. I know what your concern is, is that later on we
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may not have these revenues to deal with. But right now, it's a goldmine. And,
and I don't think any of us disagree, you know, that there is 19 and 19 in just
challenges, and there's another 15 million in uncollected back taxes, not to
mention the agricultural direction that you know we, we, we can collect more
money in.
So, I think this is the pod that has me, and I think many of you scrambling to try
to take advantage of, Mr. Chairman. So, my thrust of asking is why not? If, and,
and I'm, and I'm asking for two more warm bodies. I don't know what Gladys
you thought you wanted.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll revisit this.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Let's revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Because, you know, we're going based on the
departments, and if you had conversation with the Department, I sure would-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: With Kalbert.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --I surely would have loved to know that, you know, what was
being discussed.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (Laughter)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So maybe we cut 'em all out. I don't know. Okay. Thank
you. We'll revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Countywide Costs. That's all of us. That's gonna be
changed as we do changes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Okay, so we skip that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department of Housing and Human Concerns, Page 4. Grants
and disbursements for a first-time homebuyers' program. Mr. Molina?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. So, Chair, just procedurally, is this the time
now where we all present our arguments, I guess, if you will to I guess support or
not support your proposal? Okay. And is this where-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. This is all the revisits.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And, and this is where we're gonna make, we make a
decision today -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --on it as well? Oh, okay. Alright, so I don't know
where to, where to begin on this one, Mr. Chair. And, you know, with all due
respect, this proposal to not fund and maybe possibly eventually abolish this
program is quite surprising when we've been told that the program is working. I
guess, when we, it was changed to a grant proposal instead of a loan, then I guess
it was easier for the Administration to administer these funds. And ironically,
when this program was first proposed, I believe this was back in 2005-2006, as
we all know the housing market was just going out of control, and the public
demanded from us as well as the Administration at that time what can we do to
keep our people and get houses for our people. And the initial thrust for this was
for the folks who are in the gap group, not the 80 percent and below like the
Section 8 Housing funding addresses and the Federal First Time Homebuyers'
Loan Program addresses. This was to address those folks who are in the gap
group, the police, fire, nurses, teachers, and to provide them an opportunity to stay
here, which was the impetus for the creation of this program. So, you know, as
I've stated before many, many times, and I, I, I don't know why this program has
come under such scrutiny. Well, the first few times, as Members can recall who
were here, the Administration and the former Housing Director was having a hard
time getting this program off the ground. But then when the current
Administration came in and asked this Council, which we all supported, to have
this now changed into a grant, this is when this program started to take off. And
again, the grants that have been given to each, I guess what was it, 12 families,
maybe 13 families range from I guess 10,000 up to 15,000. And if Members look
at the ordinance, there are stipulations in there to, I guess, decrease the probability
of speculation, which was a concern of some Members. And we of course don't
want that. So, there are mechanisms in the current ordinance. So, the question is
why would we want to take away a program that's working? This is something
this Council has supported, and we've had some very positive responses out there
in the community
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You know, so this is just one tool in the tool box and this, this tool is working.
So, I realize the Administration's request is 300,000 and the current, the prior
fiscal year appropriation was 200,000. And I understand the times that we live in,
and I'm okay with, you know, if the body wants to reduce it to 200,000. I believe
in looking at the Members' Committee proposals, Council Chair Mateo had
requested that, that 100,000 be removed from the Administration's request of
300,000. I can live with that, although personally I'd like to see us help more
families.
And, Mr. Chairman, this is kamaaina people that we're helping. You know, in
talking to Member Medeiros, the Mayor and I went out...this was several months
ago...as part of the announcement of the first recipients of this loan program.
They were both school teachers, they're young families, members of the gap
group. So, this is an opportunity for us to help our people. And, I know some
people look at it as a handout. I see this as a hand up. It's an economic stimulus.
You put people in homes. You give them opportunities. They become
contributors to the Real Property Tax revenue. And that revenue in turn is given
to our nonprofits and the various entities that need help. And when you own a
house, you have to, you're gonna go out there to the various stores to go buy
furniture, all kinds of goods and services. So, in a small way it is an economic
stimulus. So, you get a return.
And we give out grants bigger than this to a lot of other entities and all justified.
And then, but whenever I, the way I see it, if you give out money you expect a
return. We're giving out proposing $425,000 for rental assistance, and that's a
good thing. So, we have to look at the return from that.
But let's also look at the return from giving our assistance, or giving funds to our
citizens to own a home, okay, just to get their foot in the door. And as many of us
here experienced the first time of owning a home, the hardest part is getting that
down payment. That's the hard part. Most people can make the mortgage, but
it's getting that down payment, that hand up.
So, which is why I'm so passionate about this and, you know, I, I'm reluctant to
take full credit for it, because as we know the realities are it takes at least five
Members of a Council to support something and support a good program. And
that's why when people give me, compliment me, I say hey, you know, please
compliment my colleagues on the Council, 'cause they supported it, and any
legislation, anything that is good, we all should take credit with it. And of course,
if anything goes bad, well then, you know, we, we all sink or swim. We're a team
basically, you know. So that's why I've never been one to wave, wave the flag
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and say I did it. I did it. No. It's we did it. It's all about we on the Council,
Mr. Chairman. So, that's I guess at this point my spiel for this.
I was, of course, looking at ways to if we're gonna add and now where. I know
you did put some bond projects and use cash from the General Fund. One area I
was looking at aside from considering raising property taxes, you know, that was
another alternative, I was looking at maybe reducing the Countywide facilities or
there was, I guess, facilities for...looking at your document, Mr. Chairman, on
Page 38 under Bond Fund. Being that this is the gap group that we're trying to
help, policemen, firemen, one consideration I had thought about--and I'm looking
at 200,000, not 300,000, what the Mayor's is, 'cause I realize, you know, we are
in some austere times--taking 100,000 from Countywide fire facilities and
100,000 from Countywide police facilities. So, their, their appropriation would
be 200,000 and, you know, 100,000 from each for the first-time homebuyers'.
Another consideration was Countywide facility building improvements, taking
100 from there, but I'm still in the process of finding the best and least, I guess,
painful area to take some of this appropriation from, aside from possibly making a
small bump in real property taxes. That could be one consideration. I was
looking at the four categories in real property tax, maybe like a 1 cent bump up,
which is, still would be lower than what the, what was proposed by the
Administration. So, I'm looking in that area as well. So, that is where I'm at on
this. So, I'll, I'll leave it at that. But again, this is something, this program is
something that this Council can hang it's hat on, you know, when people ask what
is this Council doing for affordable housing and helping our citizens. So, it's not
just about building houses, but getting our citizens in there, in these houses.
There's a lot of foreclosures as we know. So ironically, now it's providing more
opportunity for those who could not get their foot in the door to own a home. So,
I'll leave my arguments as that, and I'm, I eagerly await to hear the comments
from my colleagues on this. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chair is just going to provide his comments
regarding the deletion of the $300,000, because of the condition that we are at
right now economically. I, I think, not I think, the Chairman removed the
$300,000, because for me, it's the most prudent thing to do at this time. Not
saying that we're gonna do away with the Homebuyers' Fund totally. When
economic times become better, then we can reinstate the program. It was noted to
us that, and you mentioned it, that they do have a Federal program, the HOME
program, that provide down payments up to $15,000 for people that wanna
purchase a home. And also, at the same time, that, you know, people can utilize
their Section 8 in regards to purchasing or putting down payments on homes. But
Chair's gonna make a note and then we can revisit this here. As you know, you
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know, the second round of the A..., the stimulus money provided $8,000 for those
that are first-time homebuyers'. Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and I'm willing to support, you know,
perhaps the 200,000 funding instead of the full 300. But the area that I would also
look at because I look at this as part of the emergency that we're facing, people in
foreclosure. So I would sort of say this is a case where there may be even the
emergency, you know, the Emergency Fund instead of putting quite as much
money as what we were gonna put in there, maybe take a little bit less. You
know, I, I, I mean that's a thought. But I consider housing in, in crisis right now.
And if this is providing an opportunity for many of these people to take advantage
of the foreclosures and get into the market, I'm, I'm all for it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more comments? Okay. We'll
come back to that. Oh, you have a comment, Mr. Kaho'ohalahala, in this area?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Well, the comment is only appropriate if
they were going to look at bringing it back, so.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I guess you got the note from Staff regarding that truck?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes. Can I say I'm very pleased.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So we have a note here from the new
refuse truck for Lanai should, should be here on August or September of this year.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's right. I remember that. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I remember that. See, Danny, I told you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good. Okay, moving on. Hale Mahaolu for homeowners' and
housing counseling program. Mr. Kaho'ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Skinny sheet, Page 4. Or skinny packet, Page 4.
- 162 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 27, 2010

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. And, you know, what my
challenge, Chair, is that my notes are all on the not-so-skinny packet.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Page 10.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Page 4.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No, it's...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's it for my tabs, I don't know where for go.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: ...No, that's why I said my notes are on
this one now. . . (inaudible). . . That's why. Is this the Lahaina?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Hale Mahaolu.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, Hale Mahaolu.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Department of Housing. ...Oh, yeah.
Chair, my notes...I just, I wanted to add an additional amount of $15,000 to that
program.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Your request of 15. Okay. Next one down, grant to
Housing and Land Enterprise of Maui, dba Na Hale 0 Maui. Gladys?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, me. The reason I wanted to revisit this, Chair, is I
wanted to discuss or to ask if there was, I don't know why, but I thought I saw
money someplace else for these people. But I wanna make sure that Na Hale 0
Maui has money to operate. Because, you know, they've done a yeomen's job in
bringing a whole bunch of millions of dollars to the County, and they're working
on getting people into these foreclosures. It would be a shame for them to have
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the grant money and not have any money to operate. So, I'm just concerned
about why we took this out.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I see. I think we moved the monies to...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Someplace else, yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I, I know if, if it's someplace else and they're okay, then
I'm okay. But I wanna make sure.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Affordable Housing or something like that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I, I, I specifically made sure.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. You moved it somewhere else. I cannot
remember where.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Well, I don't need to beat it to death. I just wanna
make sure that they have money to operate on.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I know it was moved.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Human Concerns Program, Early Childhood Program. Bill?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chairman. Yeah. I, I was looking for a place to
make my suggestion. But this wasn't the one. We, I think we're gonna leave this
one or we may ask you if, once we find out, if we can revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You wanna revisit this one again? No?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I, I'd like to leave it open to revisit it again once we
finalize what we're trying to get information on.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Hana Community Association for Hana Dialysis Program.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: What, what number are you on?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right below.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 4, just below.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Page 4, right below. Okay. No, Mr. Chairman.
We, we made contact with some resource people and we're good with that.
Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Enlace Program, Danny Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, for this particular item, the actual was reduced by,
by 50 percent. So, by 50 percent, I don't, I'm, I'm not sure what they can really
do in terms of services. So, my consideration would have been to ease the
burden. Take these funds, move it to Immigration Program, and just zero out
Enlace, and get, get the service provided in immigration.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I, I think it was told to us that...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We still had one.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just this morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. They have one person that's there, and, and he does the
interpretation for the Police Department and interpretations for the Hispanic
community here in Maui County when they require help. But they do help the
Maui Police Department in regards to their need in, in a Hispanic interpreter.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah. Well, perhaps, perhaps that same individual could still
be, be picked up by Immigration. Because Immigration told us that they service
virtually everybody.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: So, if they can use those funds to pick up this, this body, you
know, instead of running a separate program for $66,000. I mean, I don't know.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you very much. Chair, this is a program, of
course, that has evolved along with the Hispanic arrival in our community, which
happened in 1990, and we had thousands of Hispanic workers come to Maui to
save pineapple.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: True.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And at that time, of course, we were ill set up to handle a
Spanish-speaking amount of people back then, you know, that, that was a lot of
people to have land on Maui and most of us not able to communicate in Spanish,
including myself. And so this program was very, very necessary at that time,
because it helped to acculturate all of these people who were Spanish speaking
and who came from a totally different culture into a new culture. Well, this is 20
years later and this is 2010, and I think many of these people have been
assimilated into our community, although we do have new arrivals that, you
know, MEO has nothing to do with anymore but they're just arriving. And
traditionally they've always gone to MEO, because they have found a home there
where people were there to talk with them, understood them, and of course had a
historical tie to them. I think I heard Mr. Baz say this morning that yes, the
program was not as, you know, necessary as it had been; however, there were
certain services that they were still providing in the community, and one of them,
of course, is the link to the legal issues that arise in the community along with
courts and police and, you know, different kinds of situations.
Now, my understanding is that we have a new Administrator in, in the
Immigration Department, and I've had opportunity to discuss this with Mr. Block,
and he tells me that they are trying very hard to service all immigrants. I think
that's very difficult for them to do with the staff they have. They have a very
limited staff. I think one day he told me they process about 1,000 persons who
needed adjustment in their status and their papers of Filipino ancestry. And but
they also serve others, and they, you know, we're seeing a lot of Micronesians,
South Pacific Islanders coming here too. So they are kind of stressed.
The only thing that I would be a little concerned about is we might wanna do this
maybe for one more year and, you know, give them time to find a staff person and
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create the position and find space for that person, and then phase this thing out,
because that's my take on, you know, the role of Enlace.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's why Mr. Baz was willing to, you know, offer the
cuts. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Any more? Member Johnson, followed by
Member Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and, I, I also want to look at what
Council Chair Mateo had said, because I think if the body goes along and there's
a provision to basically secure a position in Immigration for this same person
that's over there, like even if it's done as a grant or something of that sort,
however they do it, I just think it should be housed in one area. And if they
wanna stipulate through a proviso that this is the way it's delivered, I have no
problem with that. But I think it should be housed in, in one area, because there's,
it sort of sends a message that, you know, it's the level for the different ethnic
groups, and you can't really single out any one ethnic group, because we get so
many people from so many places. So...but for the time being, I would be
willing to consider Mr. Mateo's recommendation. House it there, but put a caveat
in there or proviso in Immigration.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, Chair. In my original submittal to
you, I also moved to zero out this account with a proviso and add it that we send
an amount of money to Immigration, because again, I agree with
Member Johnson about the perception that we are dealing with different
ethnicities differently. And the Immigration should be the, the Department that
covers all services for immigrants. So, so I would agree that if we would send an
amount, and in my, mine was a proviso the 50,000 would go to Immigration. But
if the amount is 66 as you are proposing, then I think added to the Immigration
services would give them the kind of support that they may need. And I just
wanted to add that this, as Member Baisa said, this was an acculturation program,
you know.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So, it was intended to help a group of
immigrants to get to be a little bit more familiar with, with Maui or Hawaii, and it
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has been well over 10, 10 years I think. And if I look back at the history of this
particular program funding, to date, from when, from its onset, we have
appropriated about a million dollars to this program. So, I think it's, you know,
when we talk about shelf life, maybe we're getting near the expiration date or we
are at the expiration date, and we need to be mindful of what it is that we are
continuing to provide for in this kind of service and put it where it's, it's needed.
So, yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I agree with you guys.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And, and...I just wanna give my two cents.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair, go ahead. Go ahead.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I, I think the Department needs to work with MEO in regards to
phasing, a phase-out of that program and, and for the County to pick it up. But,
you know, when is the question. Member Victorino, followed by Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I was going to echo that same sentiment,
Chair. You know, I agree, the time has come to maybe make that change over,
but to make sure it's a smooth change over and that, you know, they're not lost in
the shuffle. I think we, you know, I would agree with moving that over, but
giving it another year to make sure the transitional, the transition is smooth and
that this person not only going be helping the Hispanics but all the other
ethnicities, you know. I recently was at the, last week Saturday, at the FACE
meeting and we had Hispanics and Micronesians and all kinds of people there.
And so language does become a barrier at times, you know. So, but I think if we
do this after, in a year's time and move this over very slowly and make sure that
it's done right, I think I have no opposition, you know, putting a proviso that this
be moved over and this would be the transitional year. And that way Mr. Baz
and, and those people could work together with our Immigration and get it taken
care of. So, I agree with you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I also wanna amend this, 'cause I don't wanna
leave people with the impression that Enlace only serves Hispanics. They do
serve everybody who comes in the door, and that's many, many different kinds of
people. But the vast majority have always been Spanish-speaking people, 'cause
they had nowhere else to go. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Thank you. Okay. Next, Substance Abuse Program.
Gladys?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you very much, Chair. This is the line item
for Substance Abuse Programs in the amount of $657.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thousand.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm sorry, $657,000. What I had in mind was some of
this money was given to B.E.S.T. originally and we heard during our swing
throughout the communities a great amount of support for B.E.S.T. And I think
we also heard that B.E.S.T. is having a very difficult time with funding.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We're losing too much.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And I would very, very much like for us to insert a
proviso here that some of this money would go to B.E.S.T. And my
recommendation, this year they only got $60,000. But we also heard that it's also
one of the most effective programs that we have. And, you know, you can do a
lot of programs, but for me, the proof of the pudding is in the recidivism rate.
And B.E.S.T. has been very carefully evaluated and monitored by outside
professionals, and they do show a significant amount of reduction in recidivism.
So, I'd like to see this at least at 100,000 if possible.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, questions or, in regards to the proviso that is
being proposed?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So what, what...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. Because, now it's proviso'd for the B.E.S.T.
Program, is that correct?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. One of the things that I just recall is seeing is
the B.E.S.T. Program funded under any other program?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: I don't know.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. 'Cause I thought that I saw it somewhere in
here, but I could be wrong. But if it is, my only concern would be that if the
B.E.S.T. Program is funded through County grants, about the whole
double-dipping thing. That, that's my only concern.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No. This is the only area that they are in.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Alright. That's all I wanted to find out.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I don't know if somebody...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any more questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The only question I would have then is...and, you
know, I have no problem...but what other programs then would money be taken
away from? You know, and, I, I, I know that's a lump sum and then you have a
whole bunch of programs in there.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. So, so we, we'll get that information.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. I would, I'd like that information before I
make the commitment one way or the other. 'Cause I would hate to help one and
hurt something else that may be real important, yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, I'd like to see that too, please, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The ones that I, we, we have agreements on, you know,
I just noted okay on the side. And then the ones that we need to come back, you
know, we'll come back to 'em. Lahaina Tutoring Program.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. On, on my notes, I had an add of
$650 to just round that off for this to 5,400.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Six hundred fifty dollars.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Six hundred fifty dollars?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Or $250?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Six hundred fifty dollars.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: How much they got last year?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Fifty-four hundred.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Fifty-four.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Fifty-four? Okay. Any questions, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You notice I not asking where you going get the money from,
yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll come back to that later.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Youth Centers.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, Chair, this was another one of
mine You know, the Lanai Youth Center has had some very challenging times,
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and they are having difficult times even trying to re-organize themselves. So,
under Youth Centers, I think they're all lumped in, into that one item there for
funding. And what my proposal was and I was gonna proviso that is a, is a
portion of that funding be directed to the Boys and Girls Club. And the reason for
doing that, I think that we've had an organization that has not been operating.
Even though we've had input from them, there has been internally some, some
difficult challenges with that organization. And only now are they changing over.
So, you saw before us at, at the Budget a brand new person that was coming in
who, thankfully, that there is somebody there at that position. But I'm looking at
giving them more support by an entity that I think has a structure that Lanai could
use, and then have the backup support services that comes from an organization
that can give them what they really need as well as some of the support to the
board itself, you know. So, so this was just an area that I was looking at taking
out an amount from the, the youth centers with a proviso that it goes to the, the
Boys and Girls Club. Yeah. And I'm not...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: That was my, I hope that that's the
section that Lanai's funding comes out of.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Wait a minute.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. You going open up a can of worms, let me tell you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I know.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. And, and again, I think this is another one
that I would ask if you're taking from something? Because I think it was broken
down by which particular -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --youth centers were gonna get money from this
lump sum, wasn't it?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And so then you're gonna take something from
somebody else. Then, either, I, I, then I'm gonna say I wanna know which one,
because that youth center going be hurt, and I don't want that youth center hurt.
So, that's my only concern. If we're gonna take money off of the lump sum and
earmark it for, or proviso it for Lanai, which I have no problem with that. I would
prefer they find the money than take it away from other youth centers.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Because already many youth centers are at bare
minimum. So, am I wrong in saying that, Mr. Chair, that there was an amount
specified for each youth center, like Kihei, whatever, whatever youth centers,
right?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes. On the youth center recipients, Boys and Girls Clubs are
identified at four locations.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Central, Haiku, Upcountry, West Maui. And then there are
six...oh, wait. Two, four, five other youth centers, Hana, Kihei, Lanai, Molokai,
Paia. And all of 'em had reduction in their allocation from 2010, including the
Boys and Girls Club.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, so...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: This is the list.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, but did you say there was one for Lanai?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: One for Lanai.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: In the youth centers, right? Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Switch that over.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And, and all I'm saying is right there.
Whatever that allotment for Lanai is -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --is what I would like to move to the
Boys and Girls Club.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: For Lanai?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I just wanna make that clear. Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Wait, wait. Oh, Lanai no more Boys and Girls Club.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, that's what I'm saying, see. That's...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. And that's why I'm, I'm making a
proviso that we, we do that so that we can get some of that kind of assistance from
an organization that would, in my view, be helpful to that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. If you can work 'em out.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair? Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Have we had a discussion with the Boys and Girls
Club to find out if they're willing to go to Lanai if they're not there? I think we
need to find that out before we do this, because, you know, I don't think we can
force them to go.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Just, it was pointed out to me that these are actually
funded, funding recommended by the Grants -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Review Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I, I'm just gonna leave it at that. So, just leave it.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, wait. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If you can finish up.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Well, only because I think Member Baisa
asked a question.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: During the hearings, I have talked to the
Boys and Girls Club and they are very willing to and interested in, in helping to
support Lanai.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's terrific. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Johnson.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and, I, I also know that for all the other
communities, Boys and Girls Club has always had their doors open. I wanna let
everyone know too that not all funding cuts that were made by the Grants Review
Committee were equal, because many of the organizations that, or the youth
centers that receive funding received a much higher level of funding because the
percentage of monies that they get to operate was more, more than likely from a
County grant. You know, it's from the County allocation. Boys and Girls Club,
because years ago when we were charged with the responsibility to get lean and
mean, they reduced their funding dependency to now only being 40 percent
dependent on the County. So, what appears to be an equitable grant of 10 percent,
because Boys and Girls Club got lean and mean and they cut down on a lot of
their operating expenses, they consolidated their sites, they reduced the cost of
insurance and all those things, Mr. Chair, their funding cut was much more than
10 percent. They should not have gotten any cuts. So, I'm all in favor of
whatever additional monies, if need be, to go to Boys and Girls Club, because
they, that's what we wanna see eventually, is that people just don't keep taking
money every year. That they try to diversify the amount of income that they get.
So, I'm very passionate about Boys and Girls Club, 'cause they have done what
we all challenged them with, which is reduce their dependency on County monies.
And they did that, but as a result of that, they're also being penalized for that.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Next area is Animal Management Program.
Jo Anne?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And that's based on the new information.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, I've just asked Staff to figure out, help us figure
out where we're gonna make up that differential.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Let's see. ...Okay. Members, when we did this one
here, we were under the impression based on the budget, proposed budget
ordinance, that there were $400,000 plus in this account. And based on that, the
Chair had recommended that we remove $150,000 from the Animal Management
Program. The Chair is gonna reinstate the $150,000 to the Animal Management
Program to make it, the funding as requested by the Administration.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Department of Management, let's see.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair, just... (clears throat)...Chair, just
a question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Just to clarify, because I think, and I'm
not sure if this is the appropriate item, but testimony that was provided about the,
the availability or the non-availability of funds for Animal Management at
400,000, and the reality was that there was only 43,000?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Sixty.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sixty thousand.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And it went up to 60...66 from 43,
but...yeah. So, I'm, I'm just confused as how we get one amount but in reality
we're saying that there's, there's way less.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I, I think she kinda explained, or maybe Staff can explain to us.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. So, that was an error then?
MS. REVELS: Yes, Mr. Chair. When the Administration pulled the amount of funds in
the, in the fund, they did it at the end of December. And apparently, they had a
lot of expenses for building and computers, et cetera, that came out in January and
February. So, the amount pulled by the Administration didn't take those expenses
into account.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, the Chair is gonna take a 10 minute
recess.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, we'll, you know, let's do 15.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 5:30?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. Before your, you recess -CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --for that. So, what are your plans? We going go
through one pass, no matter what, how long it takes?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I, I know we had a lot of public testimony this morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I can make one pass, and then -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --probably we, we gonna get done probably by 6:15 p.m.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. One hour.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And I'll just hurry up. Because some of the items that, you
know, if we don't have too many questions, or the ones that we have a lot of
questions, yeah, we'll revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: We can revisit.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Revisit tomorrow.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So, let's return at 5:30 p.m. This meeting is in recess.
. . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

5:18 p.m.
5:32 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is
now readjourned [sic]. Members, we're at Department of Management.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Management, okay. Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chair's recommendation was to reduce by 130, but after
hearing Mr. Schwind in regards to the, the two items in that one particular
area--one is for capital and then this one here is repair, maintenance, and the
like--Members, the Chair is recommending to reinstate that $130,000 for the
security system.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: On Page 5 of the little one.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 5. Office of the Mayor, we'll come back to that delete.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: This is a position. Economic Development Programs, grants
and disbursement for agriculture promotion. Mr. Kaho'ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Chair, I just wanted to, in my
notes here, to do a proviso in that particular item. And that was to proviso that,
that $10,000 go to the Waikikena Foundation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: To who?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: The Waikikena Foundation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Spell it.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: W-a-i-k-i-k-e-n-a.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: W-a-i-k-i-k-e-n-a?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: May I ask Member Kaho' ohalahala to explain what that
is?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. The Waikikena Foundation has,
has been a program that has provided agricultural experiences at the Waikikena
area, which is out in Haiku. They host school children at the site. They have
even hosted the B.E.S.T. program to come out there and look at, it's like an
alternative to education, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Is that Alex Bode?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: This is Alex Bode's program.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Now I know. Tell me Alex Bode, I know.
... (laughs) . . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Well, I don't wanna be partial and
just give you the organization, you know.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, thanks.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. And so, I would just wanna
proviso that so we can do an amount to him.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Yeah, we have it in, we have the proviso in,
in, in the budget ordinance already.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Oh, okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, for this year. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maui County Farm Bureau.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, then that's me again.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, in my original proposal, Chair, I
had a proviso also that of the amount, let's see...yeah, of the 370,000, I had asked
that 50,000 of that be provided to the Hawaii Farmers Union.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Who's that?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Who's that?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Who is that?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, who's that?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. The Hawaii Farmers Union
actually came here with and, and made presentations to the Council. They are
farmers that are organized Statewide and here on Maui as well. And Vince Mina
is a part of that organization. I attended the, one of their meetings, which was
held in Pukalani, to understand what the Farm Union is about. And their support
is national support all the way down to the states and then finally to the counties.
But it is a group of farmers that I think that is representative of the small farmers.
And in terms of they're not doing large commercial farming, but they are surely
large in numbers, which are providing diversified agriculture here in Maui
County. So, when we look at the entire spectrum of farming, I wanna make sure
that we're able to support not only the large commercial farming, but we also are
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going to take a look at farmers who are on a smaller diversified scale, but yet are
large in numbers and providing a lot of food for this community. So, so my hope
is that we would provide them with some support, and that's why I had looked at
a $50,000 amount that could come out of the Farm Bureau that would be
earmarked for this Hawaii Farmers Union, Maui Chapter.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: This is a Maui Chapter and this is a Statewide organization.
Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: It's a national, it's a national organization
that has...the State Farmers Union is a national organization. And then the states
are members of them. And then they have smaller counties or affiliate members
of that. So, Maui has its own -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Chapter.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --yeah, Chapter.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, you know, I can appreciate that. But what
about Maui Aloha Aina? What is that now? How does that fit into this whole
thing, because we, we've set aside 22,000 for them and that's Vincent Mina guys
again, so can you explain the differences between the two and, you know...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. I think...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, you're, you're talking about the same
group of people basically, aren't you?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Oh, no. Not at all. There are a lot of
people that participate with Mr. Mina's conferences, yes. But when you look at
the Farm Bureau...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, this Aina one is only for the conference?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: That's right. That's what he came here
for. And he's done the two conferences that he has been funded to do. So that's
what his funding is for.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Well, I, I think we...I, you know,
Mr. Chair, I'd like to make sure we have a little bit more information about all of
this. You know, I wanna make sure that, you know, I have no problem in helping
other organizations so long as I know they are vibrant and, and contributing to the
community in general. And I don't know enough right now about the union. And
so I wanna know a little bit more.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, I'd like to request that, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And, and for me, you know, I've been very supportive
to the Maui County Farm Bureau Incorporated. I, I know that they do a lot of
good things for this community and they help this community For have a new
organization coming into Maui County, I'm just like you. I, I wanna know more
before we set aside any funding for any organization.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I, I'd just like to suggest that maybe we wanna see a
budget for the 50,000 so we know what it's for. That would help. And I, you
know, I certainly support the idea of, you know, diversifying things, but I think
we should have a budget.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. If we can get a budget in regards to the $50,000 request.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah. Like Mr. Mina, we knew it was for two
conferences.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, we knew.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And, and my take on this one here is that I wanna continue
Maui County Farm Bureau Incorporated and their funding request. Okay, we'll
come back to that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Come back.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next one...
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chair? Sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. I, I just... (clears throat)...warma make a
point too. Also, that if we're requesting a budget of this organization, then we
need to be consistent with other organizations if we're doing it for this one. If
we're requiring it for this one.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What was that again?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: On, on new organizations that are coming in for
funding, if we're requesting that we get a budget from this organization, Hawaii
Farmers Union, Maui Chapter -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --then let's be consistent and with other
organizations in that request.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I think that's a very good idea.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Next one, East Maui Cultural/Economic Development
Dialysis. Bill?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Yeah, we, we, we looked at
this, Mr. Chairman, and we know that in your budget, right, you deleted 35,000?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: In this budget, we deleted 35,000...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: ...because of the duplication.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And so the duplication is in another area,
right?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's there, right...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. Is what?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's there right now. The 45,000.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh. Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's already...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So...wait, I'm, I'm a little bit confused, because we
wanted to...so we, we're keeping the 44,000? Is that what you're saying?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Okay, we're in agreement with that. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, yeah. We -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --already did that. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So it's okay with you then on this one here?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Maui Community College for Long Term Care. Gladys
Baisa, Sol, and Bill Medeiros. And, and, Members, Mr. Victorino is gonna leave
us at 6:00 p.m., and I truly would like to have all eight Members be here while we
review this so that we don't have no questions, you know, having one Member
absent. So, we're gonna go as fast as we can up to 6:00 p.m. and get as much
done. Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Perfect.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. Mr. Chairman, I think you called my name
on this one?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Bill, Gladys, and Sol.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. And what I did was because
Mr. Kaho'ohalahala wasn't here, I mentioned that he was interested in, in this and
that's why I, I mentioned it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sol?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Chair. My request in
my original was to delete the funding of this altogether. And I'm trying to
understand it and went back to take a look at where this program began, what it
has done over the years, and how much funding was appropriated to this entity.
And this is just one of those things that, again, when I talk about shelf life, I
wanna know what the product of this particular program. So, I hope that we can
bring to the, the discussion information that would help you to maybe take a look
at this organization and this entity for what they have accomplished, for what the
currently are proposing to do. And I don't know, you want to have that
discussion now or you wanna...?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We can have that--let me go through Member Baisa, and then
maybe...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I can wait. Ms. Barreras brought us a big handout
today that I really haven't had a chance to take a look at.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So, we can come back tomorrow?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So, revisit then?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let's see, grants and disbursement for Renewable Energy and
Energy Efficiency Programs. Mr. Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, for, for this particular item, I was just needing to
question the purpose of the $65,000, because on Page 50, and...there's another
grant for 1.5 million for Grant Renewal Energies. So, is, is this a pot of money
that that 65,000 request can, can be sought after? Or do we, is there a need for
two separate items, line items, primarily doing the same thing?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You said Page 50, the other one?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ...Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Oh, okay. I got it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I just was notified by Staff is that the grants that is on
page...what page is that, 50?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Is grants that we receive for other people.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Oh, for other people.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: So, this particular energy is for the County's purpose, the
65,000?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MS. REVELS: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, no? What is the $65,000 for?
MS. REVELS: Mr Chair, the 65,000 are grants and disbursements that we give other
people, whereas the, on Page 50, the amount is that people give us.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: One we receive money, the 1.5 million.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: One-point-five we're receiving?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: So we can provide services for energy efficiency, et cetera?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Pablo, if you can?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Well, Mr. Chairman, to make it real easy then, let's, let's just
delete $65,000 and figure out what the heck we going do with 1.5 later on down
the road.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I, I think the $65,000 is for programs to provide energy
efficient, efficiency to residents of this County. Mr. Pablo, if you can correct me
if I'm wrong.
MR. PABLO: Thank you, Chair. That's, that's exactly right. The, the amount of
$65,000 here is what the County provides for, for actually renewable energy
programs. The amount in grant revenue is the, the amount that the OED expects
to apply for and receive in grant revenue. It, it's not a sure thing. They will be
applying for it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Return to this item, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Grant to Maui Visitors Bureau for visitor industry.
Jo Anne?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And I, I did visit about this and the only point
that I was making in bringing this back was about the TAT. But also I was
reminded that if the Governor vetoes the entire budget, in order for us to secure
our TAT funding, which is a part of that, 'cause if it doesn't get overridden by
two-thirds majority of the State Legislature, then what will end up happening is
the Governor's Budget would prevail, which included zero for TAT. That was
my only point in just keeping this alive, because we, I was concerned about what
was gonna happen and my proposal had a percentage link to this. So...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ...that's the only thing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The way I understand it is that the bill didn't go beyond the
Conference Committee. And what was submitted to the Governor, the TAT, was
not in that particular proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. But the only, the only thing is that the Budget
Bill at the State level is a Budget Bill, which included exactly what you
mentioned.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, it was given to me, or I was reminded that the
Governor could veto the entire measure that sent forward of which that piece that
you spoke about is in there or maybe not in there. But I just wanted to make
certain that this amount, we were gonna have sufficient revenues to be able to
address it. 'Cause if we get no 17 million, even what we've got here is not gonna
balance. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Questions, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Moving on. The Department of Parks and Recreation,
grants to Lahaina Restoration.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, that was also me, Mr. Chair. And that, that is the
amount of, I, I contacted them. And that's the amount that they had for their
contract to do the, the maintenance. You know so that's why, you know, to
reduce it, I don't know. I'm not an attorney. But if they had an agreement to take
care of whatever they're taking care of, I just don't know which services are
gonna be dropped.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We can come back to this. This is only the contract to
maintain Front Street.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Recreation and Support Services, Lanai Parks.
Mr. Kaho' ohalahala?
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, Chair. I was just raising that
because of the, the deletion of the Recreation Aide half-time position. So, I'm,
I'm trying to recall what the Director said about that. But that was my only
concern there is...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We can come back. Let's see, grant to Wailuku Main
Street/Tri-Isle Main Street Resource. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. Well, in short, I support
your proposal to reinstate 36,000. Upon speaking with the Executive Director,
there was a request made to possibly add just another smaller amount just up to
say 225. I'll look for monies if...and I'll run that by the body. And also the
insertion of a proviso as well. So, I'm still working on the proviso at this point.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: But we'll look for monies within that Department or
elsewhere, so.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll come back to that then.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. We'll come back to that. Thank you,
Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Technical and Support Services Program.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Me.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I, I, I -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Who's WN? ... (chuckle) ...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --think, I think all of you saw it in my budget proposal,
but I did go down to the Police Department and specifically to the dispatch office
to see what was occurring over there, Mr. Chairman. And it had been because in
speaking to the Police Chief, he, he mentioned that if we could find the money,
then he would have no problem in giving this so-called recruitment and retention
incentive. And so, there I looked at the 18 dispatch positions, and then in my
communication to all of you, I have the justification on, on why they should be
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given this so-called incentive. And the amount is right around 223,000. And I
will find the money.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Gayle, do we know how much was provided in '09 or
'10?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Last budget?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: One twenty-three is what it was.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: One twenty-three.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Excuse me, not 223.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: One twenty-three.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department of...Page 7. We already took care of deletion of
Engineering Aid III. That is already a filled position, filled position. So, that one
is okay. Members, any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Going down, let's see. The delete Clerk III position is
not in this particular program, but it's in the Revolving Fund, so that needs to be
moved. Any questions? Okay.
Department of Transportation, Provided, that disbursement for salaries and
premium pay is limited to 5 percent. Gladys.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No. That's okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The next one down, grant to MEO Ala Hou.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'd like to come back to that, Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I really don't have my suggestion ready at this point, but
I'd like to revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The next one down, Gladys, for the dialysis
transportation.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Dialysis is okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Grant to MEO for Transportation Services - General.
Chair's recommendation is to add $400,000. Gladys?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Grant and disbursement for Public Transit Program - Highway
Fund. Decrease for Paratransit. Gladys and Bill? Oh, Wayne. I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No. I, I have seen Mr. Nishiki's name
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I, I, I had some concern in regards to Paratransit
and what we had signed on and what the original agreement was, Mr. Chairman.
So, I made a call to Mr. Medeiros. He was going to speak with Corporation
Counsel -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --in regards to the documents that were now in the
agreement with Roberts, and I'm waiting for his call back.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: He was talking about possibly, if he got information, in
testifying tomorrow.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And, and we'll take the next three then tomorrow. Or
next two. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. CIP Countywide Bond Fund - Sewer, Countywide
Injection Well Rehabilitation.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. On that one, I, I've got a proviso, Mr. Chairman,
but I am working on what that cost of the proviso is being that you are asking for
that information.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. That's the one, the recycled water, right?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. That was the one for the Kahului.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. I think Mr. Taylor has some, probably some information
regarding that.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: He made an estimate for me maybe four, five years back.
Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll come back to that. Kihei-Makena Community
Plan Area, let's see...Wayne?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And then again, I've got two CIP projects that I want to
initiate in the bond area. And I will go on to explain to you which ones they are.
One is with the Monsanto Group. And this has to do with also the connection for
the new South Maui Police Station. And the other one has to do with the
Waipuilani R-1 Waterline. And hopefully that will connect about 2,700 feet to
properties like Maui Sunset and Maui Schooner. A lot of the condominiums that
could use this waterline -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --for R-1 water.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And so, hopefully I can put that in the bond.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, you know on the police station, my understanding is
they're gonna utilize the recycled water for irrigation.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's already supposed to be in their contract, part of their
$40 million, I guess. So, we'll come back to this then.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let's see, Civil Defense, Mr. Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: My interest was not to, to change numbers or, or anything. It
was just to follow up on the, this particular Department's . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, Danny, can you use your mic?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. To follow up with this Department's abilities to, to try
to track their grants. In communication from the Department in one of their
questions that was asked by Mr. Kaho' ohalahala regarding the status of the grants,
whether it be allocated or encumbered, the response from the Department was all
of the grants had been encumbered, when in fact there's $3 million of grants that
had not been encumbered. And this Department has been fortunate enough to
continue to look for additional grants, which is really terrific, but I think I'd like
to add a proviso that they at least report to us, you know, the status of these
particular grants. I do know that a report is generated in the Director's, in the
Finance Director's Quarterly to us, but it really doesn't give us much information
in terms of their ability to expend monies that they go after because to date they
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still have over $3 million that is just sitting there and we have no idea as to the
total. So, my request at this point would be to add a proviso requesting that they
provide to us some kind of a report that advises us of the status of all these grant
funds. And that's, that's it, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Let's see, Department of Transportation.
Gladys.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair. What I wanted to know about these grants is
number one, I'd like to know if these are actual numbers or estimates, how close
they are. And secondly, what is the intent of the Department to use this money
for?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We going see if we can...or maybe Mr. Pablo, if, I
don't know if you know what we're gonna use the grants for? Probably purchase
bus and the like.
MR. PABLO: No, but we can get that information from the Department.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So, along with your request and Mr. Nishiki's request,
then hopefully we can have done over here. Last page, Members. The first one
there, I'm gonna skip that one for now. And then on the last one, Animal
Management Revolving Fund, I think we've already discussed that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. We already dealt with that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Okay, Members...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, before we adjourn, I'm sorry to ask you to
backtrack, but on the fat proposal on Page 33, where we're talking about CIPs in
the Wailuku-Kahului Community area, there is an appropriation for $300,000 for
Puunene Raceway Park Resurfacing. And what I would like somebody to do is to
please check. You know, when I went to an early meeting in regards to the new
jail they're gonna build in Puunene, and you were there, and they talked about,
you know, infringing upon that Raceway Park. And I wanna know if that's still in
their plans, 'cause if it is, no sense we resurface that and then they go to kick the
people out. So, I'd like to know.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The reason why the Chairman included in his budget is
because of the unsafe condition at that park. The Department of Police as well as
the Fire Department and Public Works Department utilize the track for their
training. As far as the prison, because of the public outcry, I don't know what's
gonna happen.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I don't know, but it seems like the Governor is pushing
that along, and there was some kind of video conference yesterday that I was not
able to watch because I was here, but just thought I, you know, we might wanna
check it out, `cause...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No. Yeah. We, we'll check it out.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: ...it's important and we need to do it, fine. But if they're
gonna, you know, get the people out, I thought we might wanna know. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And part of my testimony at that night was to
make sure that they don't destroy that raceway.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I think we feel the same way. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. If you could find out one more thing too,
because I know that as part of the master planning for this area for...is this gonna
be on any part of the Executive Ordered, the State Executive Ordered land?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Planning Department is currently doing the master plan.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. But I just wanna make sure because executive
orders can be changed, and I was just concerned that if the executive order is
amended, then what Member Baisa is saying is gonna affect everything.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Out of the 240 plus acres, they already removed that one
area...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ...for the new prison.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Members, thank you very much. Tomorrow again we
have a long day. Hopefully we can complete this thing by Friday. I expect to
complete by Friday.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, Members, have a good night rest. The meeting of the
Budget and Finance Committee meeting, Committee for April the 27 th is now
adjourned. ... (gavel).. .
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